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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9544 l-$00.85^334S Ext 9544

Fax: 603.27M332 TDD Access: 1.800.735.2964 www.dhhs.nh.KOv

May 18. 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with the Contractor' listed in bold below to expand supported
housing beds and to continue providing supported housing and community mental health services
to individuals who have severe mental illness and lack permanent housing options in ttie
community, by exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $266,477,
from $25,950,553 to $26,217,030 and by extending the completion dates from June 30. 2022 to
June 30, 2023, effective July 1, 2022, upon Govemor and Council approval. This request is
contingent upon Govemor and Council approval of the corresponding request to amend the
Mental Health contracts with the Contractor listed In bold below. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on August 28, 2019, item
#14, as amended on December 2, 2020, item #13, as amended on July 14, 2021, item #15, as
amended on January 12, 2022, item #18, and most recently amended on February 16,2022, item
#39.

Vendor Name

Current

Individual

Vendor Price

Limitation

{without shared
portion)

Currerrt

Shared Price

Limitation

Current Individual

Vendor Price

Limitation

(includes shared
portion)

increase

(Decrease) to
Individual

Vendor Price

Limitation

increase

Shared Price

Limitation

Revised

Individual

Price

Umitation

(inciudes
shared

portion)

Northern Human

Services
$895,042

$17,156,617 $17,156,617

West Central

Services, Inc. dba

West Central
Behaviorai Health

$509,646
Total Current

Shared Price

Limitation

$11,775,275

$16,771,221 Total shared

Price Limitation

$16,771,221

The Lakes Region
Mental Health

Center, inc.

$2,043,076
$18,304,651

$4,486,300

$18,304,651

Riverfoend

Community Mental
Health, Inc.

$675,082 $12,450,357 $266,477 $17,203,134

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission istojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Monadnock Family
Services

$633,991
$16,895,566 $16,895,566

The Community
Coundl of Nashua,
N.H., d/b/a Greater

Nashua Mental

Health Center at

Community Council

$1,422,471
$17,684,046 $17,684,046

The Mental HeaHh

Center of Greater

Manchester, Inc.
$1,068,404

$17,329,979 $17,329,979

Seacoast Mental

Health Center, Inc.
$658,378

$16,919,953 $16,919,953

Behavioral Health &

Developmental
Services of Strafford

County. Inc. d/b/a
Community Partners
of Strafford County

$1,100,661

$17,362,236 $17,362,236

The Mental Health

Center for Southern
New Hampshire

DBA Center for Life

Management

$682,227

$16,943,802 $18,943,802

TOTALS $9,688,978 $11,775,276 $21,464,253 $266,477 $4,486,300 $26,217,030

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add funding and extend the Housing Bridge Subsidy
Program contract with the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) to continue providing
supported housing and community mental health services to individuals who have severe mental
Illness and lack permanent housing options In the community, in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 406, Housing Bridge Subsidy pr<^ram. This request also removes
housing services from the Mental Health Services contract with the CMHC listed in bold above
through a corresponding amendment and consolidates these services under these Housing
Bridge Subsidy Program contract. This request Includes additional funding to support the
requirement for the CMHC to expand supported housing in their region by adding six (6) additional
supported housing beds. By consolidating housing services under one set of contracts, the
Department will be able to more effectively monitor Contractor performance programmatically and
financially.

This request includes one (1) of the ten (10) Housing Bridge Subsidy contracts. Seven (7)
of the Housing Bridge Subsidy contracts were amended with Governor and Council approval on
January 12,2022 (item #18), and two (2) of the Housing Bridge Subsidy contracts were amended
with Governor and Council approval on February 18, 2022 (item #39).
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During State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023:

• Approximately 525 individuals will be served statewide through the Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program.

• Approximately twelve (12) Individuals will be served statewide through the
Supported Housing Bed Expansion, which makes available a minimum of six (6)
beds per the CMHC listed In bold above to provide supportive housing to adults
with severe mental illness.

The Department will continue monitoring services using the following performance
measures:

•  Percentage of Individuals receiving housing services within fourteen (14) days of
referral.

•  Percentage of individuals housed within thirty (30) days of referral.

•  Percentage of individuals who remain in stable housing for one (1) year or longer.

•  Percentage of. complaints regarding services that are investigated and closed
within ftfteen (15) days of receipt of the complaint.

•  Percentage of individuals receiving services who make a successful transition to
permanent housing within eighteen (18) months of enrollment.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language of the original
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew
services for one (1) of the three (3) years available.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals with
severe mental illness who are at risk of institutionalization will not have the resources to pay for
safe housing and vwll not have access to appropriate mental health supports to remain safely
housed. This will put the State at risk of not fulfilling the requirements of the Community Mental
Health Agreement. Additionally, the lack of consolidation of housing services under one (1) set of
contracts may prevent the Department from being able to monitor Contractor performance more
accurately and effectively.

Area served: Statewide

Respectfully submitted,

A-

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner



FINANCIAL DETAILS

05-95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% Gonoral Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Qass /

Account Oass Title Activity Code

Budget

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget

Amount

2020 102/500731 (Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $278,173 $0 $278,173

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $455,336 $0 $455,336

Sub-total $895,042 $0 $895,042

West Central Services DBA West Central Behavioral Health (Vendor Code 177654-B001)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 ' $189,695 $0 $189,695

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $158,418 $0 $158,418

Sub-total $509,646 $0 $509,646

Lakes Realon Mental Health Center. Irtc. (Vendor Code 154480-B001)

Stale

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Anwunt

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $438,594 $0 $438,594

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $744,465 $0 $744,465

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $791,956 $0 $791,956

Sub-total $2,043,076 $0 $2,043,076

RIvertMnd Community Mental HeaHh. Inc. (Vendor Code 177192-R001)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $142,128 $0 $142,128

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $266,477 $0 $266,477

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $266,477 $0 $266,477

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $0 $266,477 $266,477

Sub-total •  $675,082 $266,477 $941,559

Monadnock Family Services fVendor Code 177510-80051

State

Fiscal Year

Oass/

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 (Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $333,143 $0 $333,143

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $139,315 $0 $139,315

Sub-total $633,991 $0 $633,991

Communitv Council of Nashua. N.H. DBA Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council (Vendor Code 1S4112-B001)

State'

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $149,512 $0 $149,512

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $267,100 $0 $267,100

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $374,838 $0 $374,838

2023 102/500731 (Contracts for Proqram Services 92204117 $631,021 $0 $631,021

Sub-total $1,422,471 $0 $1,422,471

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. (Vendor Code 1771S4-B001

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 (Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $142,128 $0 $142,128

Page 1 of 1



2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $266,477 $0 $266,477

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $393,322 $0 $393,322

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $266,477 $0 $266,477

Sub-total $1,068,404 $0 $1,068,404

Page 1 of 1



S««co88t Mantal HeaHh Cantar, Inc. (Ver>dof Code 174089-R0011

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Amount

. Revised Budget

Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $315,879 $0 $315,879

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92204117 $180,966 $0 $180,966

Sub-total $658,378 $0 $658,378

Behavioral Health & OevelODmerstal Services of Strafford County. Inc. DBA Commuriftv Partners of Strafford County rVendorCode 177278-B002)

Stale

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget

Amount

increase/

(Decrease)

/Vnount

Revised Budget

Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $298,089 $0 $298,089

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $641,039 $0 $641,039

Sub-total $1,100,661 $0 $1,100,661

CLM Center for Life Manaoement fVerKlor Code 17411&-R0011

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget

Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $68,061 $0 $68,061

2021 ■ 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $319,710 $0 $319,710

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 $200,984 $0 $200,984

Sub-total $682,227 $0 $682,227

Total Family Support Stn/lc»s $9,688,976 $266,477 $9,955,455

Funding Amount Shared by Vendors as follows;

05-95-92.922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget

Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92234117 $2,802,675 $0 $2,802,675

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Proaram Services 92234117 $4,486,300 $0 $4,486,300

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92234117 $4,486,300 $0 $4,486,300

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92234117 $4,486,300 $0 $4,486,300

Sub-total $16,261,575 $0 $16,261,575

Grand Total $25,950,553 $256,477 $26,217,030

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Riverbend
Community Mental Health, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 28, 2019, (Item #14), and as subsequently amended and approved on December 2, 2020, (Item
#13), and amended and approved on July 14, 2021 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Section 2.,
Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$17,203,134

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Amendment #2, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A,
Amendment #3, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 7 to read:

7. This Agreement is one (1) of ten (10) Agreements with Vendors that will provide services
for the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M
406. Among the ten (10) Agreements, there is a limit of 500 vouchers across all agencies
utilizing voucher funds. Accordingly, the statewide total price limitation for vouchers among
all ten (10) agreements is $2,802,675 for SPY 2020, $4,348,800 for SFY 2021, $4,486,300
for SFY 2022, and $4,486,300 for SFY 2023. The total price limitation for the lifetime client

stipend among all ten (10) agreements is $137,500.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 8, Subsection 8.1, to
read:

8.1. Payment for services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Amendment #3, Subsection 2.1.,
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program, shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items as specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-4,
Amendment #3 Budget, which does not include the price limitation available for vouchers.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 12 to read:

12. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identified in Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, and in Exhibit B, Methods and
Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by adding Section 15 to read:

15. Payment for services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Amendment #3, SubsoStion 2.2.,
Supported Housing Bed Expansion, shall be on a cost reimbursement basislfcfcAfectual

Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
5/26/2022

SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03 Page 1 of 4 Date
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expenditures incurred, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified
in Exhibit B-4, Budget, Amendment #3.

15.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department with
supporting documentation. The amount billed to the Department shall be less client-
paid rents.

8. Add Exhibit B-4, Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

[ (A
Riverbend Communily Mental Health, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials .-i.-js

S/26/2022
SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

5/26/2022

Date

-DocuSigntd by;

S-
»  [:D0[)06S0<C6ana...

NameiKatja s. fox

Title: ̂ .j sector

5/26/2022

Date

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

— OocuSlgnad by;

Name: Lisa k. Madden

Title: president & CEO

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuSlgn«d by:

5/27/2022

.74fi7t^fU4cuu^n

Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

•  Title:

Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the

Contractor as a Subrecipient in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, any reference to days shall mean business
days.

1.5. The Contractor shall manage complaints in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rule He-M 200, Practice and Procedure, Part 204, Rights
Protection Procedures for Mental Health Services.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement in accordance

with NH Administrative Rules, CHAPTER He-M 400, Community
Mental Health, He-M 400, PART 406, Housing Bridge Subsidy
Program (HBSP), hereby referenced as He-M 400, PART 406.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall provide a shared caseload with a maximum of

500 housing vouchers among all vendors.

2.1.3. The Contractor shall provide scattered-site housing and ensure full

community integration.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure services provided through this Agreement
are not subcontracted by the Contractor.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall review HBSP applications completed by agency
staff for individuals currently connected to the Community Mental
Health Center (CMHC) to ensure all application requirements are met.

Riverbend Communily Mental Health, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03 Page 1 of 14 Date

IM
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #3

2.1.6. The Contractor shall assist individuals, who are not currently

connected to the CMHC, with completing HBSP applications.

2.1.7. The Contractor shalj complete criminal background checks and

registered criminal offender checks for all individuals applying for
HBSP and the New Hampshire Section 811 Project Rental Assistance

program.

2.1.8. The Contractor shall send completed applications to the Department,

in accordance with He-M 400 PART 406.

2.1.9. The Contractor shall facilitate enrollment into the HBSP for individuals

approved by the Department for HBSP services by:

2.1.9.1. Contacting the referring agent, which may include, but is not

limited to, any agency or hospital applying on behalf of an

individual for, or individual who applies directly to the HBSP,

to schedule a meeting in an agreed upon setting, with the

individual and the individual's support team, which may

include, but is not limited to the individual's:

2.1.9.1.1. Guardian or other involved family member, as
appropriate.

2.1.9.1.2. Referring agent.

2.1.9.1.3. Representative payee.

2.1.9.1.4. Natural Supports.

2.1.9.1.5. Identified mental health center representative.

2.1.9.2. Assisting the individual with understanding the HBSP, which

includes, but is not limited to:

2.1.9.2.1. Tenant rights and obligations.

2.1.9.2.2. Annual recertification needs.

2.1.9.2.3. The role of landlords.

2.1.9.3. Collaborating with the individual's CMHC treatment team

and natural supports to assess the individual's immediate

temporary housing and mental health needs.

2.1.9.4. Referring, assisting, and connecting individuals to mental

health treatment services with the Intake Team at the

appropriate CMHC, as requested and needed.

(A
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03 Page 2 of 14 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #3

2.1.9.5. Finalizing individualized housing plans within 15 days from

the date of receiving the approval for services, which

includes, but is not limited to:

2.1.9.5.1. Benefits eligibility and status.

2.1.9.5.2. Access or referral to services as requested and
needed, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.1.9.5.2.1. Supportive services.

2.1.9.5.2.2. Substance use disorder treatment.

2.1.9.5.2.3. Behavioral health care; psychiatric
health care.

2.1.9.5.2.4. Primary and medical health care.

2.1.10. The Contractor shall initiate housing services for the individual within

seven (7) days of finalizing the individualized housing plans. The

Contractor shall ensure individual housing services include, but are

not limited to:

2.1.10.1. Obtaining the individual's housing history.

2.1.10.2. Assessing the individual's housing and community of choice

preferences.

2.1.10.3. Assisting the individual with advocating for CMHC treatment
team engagement to search for appropriate housing units.

2.1.10.4. Assisting the individual with identifying available housing

units rent requirements within the payment standards, as

released by the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority

(NHHFA) and the U.S. Housing and Urban Development

(HUD), in the individual's community of choice.

2.1.10.5. Assisting the individual with obtaining, completing and
submitting housing applications and any adhering to

associated procedures, which may include, but are not

limited to:

2.1.10.5.1. Providing information to complete credit checks.

2.1.10.5.2. Providing references.

2.1.10.5.3. Ensuring compliance with the Fair Housing Act to
ensure reasonable accommodations.

(A
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03

Exhibit A Amendment #3

Page 3 of 14
Contractor Initials

Date 5/26/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #3

2.1.10.6. Assisting the individual with contacting potential landlords,

as appropriate or as requested by the individual.

2.1.10.7. Attending meetings with the individual and the rental agency

or renting landlord to negotiate rent, utilities, and lease

provisions, as appropriate or as requested by the individual,

to ensure the individual secures leases in their own name,

with full rights of tenancy.

2.1.10.8. Ensuring the individual understands fair housing laws.

2.1.10.9. Assisting the individual with identifying initial rental needs
and resources, which include, but are not limited to:

2.1.10.9.1. Security deposits.

2.1.10.9.2. Securing utilities.

2.1.10.9.3. Obtaining furniture.

2.1.10.9.4. Purchasing groceries.

2.1.10.10. Ensuring housing selected by the individual meets all
HUD Housing Choice Voucher requirements set forth in the
NHHFA Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan, by

utilizing the HUD housing quality standards form to complete
initial and annual inspections.

2.1.10.11. Assisting the individual with obtaining permanent
housing vouchers, when available.

2.1.10.12. Assisting individuals who are not currently connected

to the CMHC with applying for all eligible benefits, which

may include, but are not limited to:

2.1.10.12.1. Security deposit financial assistance.

2.1.10.12.2. Assistance with utility payments.

2.1.10.12.3. Assistance with applying for food stamps.

2.1.10.12.4. Assistance with applying for Social Security
Insurance (SSI) or Social Security Disability
Insurance (SSDI), as appropriate.

2.1.10.12.5. Assistance with the appeal process for SSI or
SSDI, as necessary.

2.1.11. The Contractor shall provide housing unit leads in an amount agreed
upon by the Department.
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2.1.12. The Contractor shall ensure access to and delivery of housing support

services to all individuals receiving HBSP services who are not

currently connected to the CMHC. The Contractor shall provide

housing support services that may include, but are not limited to:

2.1.12.1. Assistance with:

2.1.12.1.1. Accessing food needs to decrease food
insecurity.

2.1.12.1.2. Finding donations for and linkage to apartment
furnishing.

2.1.12.1.3. Keeping utility bills in good standing and providing
resources for ongoing utility assistance as
needed.

2.1.12.1.4. Connecting to resources needed to move into a
new rental unit and/or store household items.

2.1.12.1.5. Advocating for functional support services, which
include, but are not limited to Choices for
Independence and/or other support services to
keep the individual safely housed.

2.1.12.1.6. Ensuring the individual continues to be aware of
all services the CMHC is able to provide to assist
with maintaining independent housing.

2.1.12.1.7. Identifying and securing supportive resources for
all individuals enrolled in HBSP, within the

community, which may include, but are not limited
to:

2.1.12.1.7.1. Peer support agencies.

2.1.12.1.7.2. Faith-based groups.

2.1.12.1.7.3. Transportation services.

2.1.12.1.7.4. Primary care services.

2.1.12.1.7.5. Homemaker/personal care
services.

2.1.12.1.7.6. Legal aid.

2.1.12.2. Mediation with landlords for any problems, damages,

infestations, or other situations which may cause the unit to

be unsafe.
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2.1.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Housing Specialist and the

individual's CMHC treatment team to ensure the individual has the full

support of the team and has a successful transition onto their Housing

Choice Voucher.

2.1.14. The Contractor shall identify needs, engage supports, and mobilize

supports for each individual through:

2.1.14.1.Treatmentteam meetings;

2.1.14.2. Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) team meetings;

2.1.14.3. Discharge planning meetings when the individual is leaving:

2.1.14.3.1. New Hampshire Hospital;

2.1.14.3.2. A Designated Receiving Facility:

2.1.14.3.3. Glencliff Home; or

2.1.14.3.4. Transitional Housing Supports;

2.1.14.4. Self-observations;

2.1.14.5. Feedback from landlords; and

2.1.14.6. The Contractor's employed community-based staff.

2.1.15. The Contractor shall ensure the Housing Specialist remains aware of

any housing status change for the individual, which may include, but

is not limited to legal status or death.

2.1.16. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's housing needs continue

to be met, including assisting the individual with housing-related

issues relevant to fulfilling lease requirements, for the duration the

individual is enrolled in the HBSP.

2.1.17. The Contractor shall document and coordinate delivery of community

mental health services that are necessary and the individual has

agreed to receive.

2.1.18. The Contractor shall assist landlords and property managers involved

with HBSP by:

2.1.18.1. Ensuring landlords and/or property owners are aware of

HBSP voucher payments and the process to receive

payments.

2.1.18.2. Assisting with coordinating any needs or changes to the

housing unit or the lease.
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2.1.18.3. Being the point of contact for landlords and/or property

owners, and documenting any interactions or interventions

provided as a result of being the point of contact.

2.1.18.4. Contacting landlords and/or property owners as needed to

assess current status of the HBSP individual's rental

payments or other issues, as necessary.

2.1.18.5. Assisting landlords and/or property owners with transitioning

from HBSP to Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers.

2.1.18.6. Ensuring timely HBSP voucher payments to landlords.

2.1.19. The Contractor shall complete annual re-certifications for individuals

enrolled in HBSP, which include, but is not limited to:

2.1.19.1. Income verification.

2.1.19.2. Notification to the individual and landlord regarding any

changes in voucher amount.

2.1.19.3. Inspection of the unit.

2.1.20. The Contractor shall work with the Department and the NHHFA,

annually and as needed, to ensure each individual has responded to

communications from NHHFA and remains in good standing on the

Housing Choice Voucher waitlist.

2.1.21. The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to permanent

housing by providing support to individuals and landlords for no less

than six (6) consecutive months after the individual receives a

permanent housing voucher.

2.1.22. The Contractor shall be available to consult with the individual's

treatment team regarding other housing programs, services or

assistance, for which individuals who are waiting for HBSP-supported

housing may be eligible, unless written approval to not provide

services is granted by the Department.

2.1.23. The Contractor shall ensure all complaints regarding HBSP services

are Investigated by a complaint investigator within 15 days of

receiving the complaint. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.1.23.1. All parties relevant to the complaint are interviewed by the

complaint investigator.
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2.1.23.2. The complaint investigator makes a determination as to

whether the complaint is founded or unfounded.

2.1.23.3. The complainant is notified, in writing, of the finding.

2.1.23.4. All identities of any complainants are kept confidential.

2.1.23.5. Complainants are aware of the Contractor's process to
request an appeal of findings.

2.1.23.6. The Department is notified, in writing, of the complaint and

the outcome.

2.1.24. The Contractor shall maintain a case file for each individual in the

program that includes, but is not limited to:

2.1.24.1. Releases of information and consent forms.

2:1.24.2. Housing and service plans.

2.1.24.3. Progress and contact notes.

2.1.24.4. Criminal record check and registered offender search.

2.1.24.5. Guardianship orders, as applicable.

2.1.24.6. Representative payee-orders, as applicable.

2.1.24.7. Other housing applications, as applicable.

2.1.24.8. Documentation of service participation.

2.1.24.9. Any medical, mental health, and/or substance use disorder

services requested and provided.

2.1.25. The Contractor shall provide a total stipend of up to $250, or the
balance thereof, to individuals in accordance with the following:

2.1.25.1. The individuals shall be currently enrolled in the HBSP and

have not been provided all of the $250 stipend if previously

enrolled in the HBSP;

2.1.25.2. The individuals shall have documented housing-related
needs, not being met by other identified resources within the

community, such as essential furnishings, equipment and

supplies, including, but not limited to pots and pans, towels,

mattresses, cleaning supplies; and

2.1.25.3. The Contractor obtains written approval from the Department
prior to disbursing any portion of the stipend. ds
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2.1.26. The Contractor shall ensure all records are kept for a minimum of

seven (7) years after an individual leaves HBSP.

2.1.27. The Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with

the Department, at the discretion of the Department.

2.1.28. The Contractor shall work with the Department to create and enforce

programmatic policies approved by the Department.

2.1.29. Phoenix System

2.1.29.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to submit the

following required data elements via the Department's

Phoenix system, ensuring any necessary system changes

are completed within six (6) months from the effective

contract date:

2.1.29.1.1. Individual demographic and encounter data,
including data on non-billable individual specific
services and rendering staff providers on all
encounters, to the Department's Phoenix system,
or its successors, in the format, content,

completeness, frequency, method and timeliness
as specified by the Department. All client data
submitted must include a Medicaid ID number for

individuals who are enrolled in Medicaid.

2.1.29.1.2. Client eligibility with all Phoenix services in
alignment with current reporting specifications.
For an individual's services to be considered

BMHS eligible. SPMI, SMI, LU, SED, and SEDIA
are acceptable.

2.1.29.2. The Contractor shall ensure the general requirements for the
Phoenix System are met which include, but are not limited

to:

2.1.29.2.1. All data collected in the Phoenix System is the
property of the Department to use as it deems
necessary.

2.1.29.2.2. All submitted Phoenix data files and records are

consistent with file specification and specification
of the format and content requirements of those
files.

2.1.29.2.3. Data shall be kept current and updated in the
Contractor's systems as required for federal
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reporting and other reporting requirements and as
specified by the Department to ensure submitted
data is current.

2.1.29.2.4. Errors in data returned to the Contractor shall be

corrected and resubmitted to the Department
within ten (10) business days.

2.1.29.3. The Contractor shall implement review procedures to

validate data submitted to the Department. The review

process will confirm the following:

2.1.29.3.1. All data is formatted in accordance with the file

specifications;

2.1.29.3.2. No records will reject due to illegal characters or
invalid formatting; and

2.1.29.3.3. The Department's tabular summaries of data
submitted by the Contractor match the data in the
Contractor's system.

2.1.29.4. The Contractor shall meet the following data entry

standards:

2.1.29.4.1. Timeliness: monthly data shall be submitted no
later than the fifteenth (15th) of each month for the
prior month's data unless othenwise approved by
the Department, and the Contractor shall review
the Department's tabular summaries within five
(5) business days.

2.1.29.4.2. Completeness: submitted data must represent at
least ninety-eight percent (98%) of billable
services provided, and ninety-eight percent (98%)
individuals served by the Contractor.

2.1.29.4.3. Accuracy: submitted service and member data
shall conform to submission requirements for at
least ninety-eight percent (98%) of the records,
and one-hundred percent One-hundred percent
(100%) of unique member identifiers shall be
accurate and valid.

2.1.29.5. The Department may waive requirements for fields on a

case by case basis. A written waiver communication shall
specify the items being waived. In all circumstances waiver

length shall not exceed 180 days; and where the Contractor
fails to meet standards: the Contractor shall submit a—os
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Corrective Action Plan (CAP) within 30 calendar days of
being notified of an issue. After approval of the CAP, the
Contractor shall carry out all aspects of the CAP. Failure to
carry out the CAP may require a subsequent CAP or other

remedies, as specified by the Department.

2.1.30. Staffing

2.1.30.1. The Contractor shall ensure sufficient Housing Specialist
staffing is available to provide HBSP housing placement and
support services to a minimum number of individuals as

determined by the Department in collaboration with the

Contractor and based on available funding.

2.1.30.2. The Contractor shall complete criminal background checks
and Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS) state
registry checks for all staff working directly with individuals,

prior to the individuals beginning work.

2.1.30.3. The Contractor shall ensure all staff participate in all HBSP
trainings conducted by either NHHFA or the Department.

2.1.31. Reporting

2.1.31.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly progress reports to the
Department, in a formal provided by the Department, no
later than five (5) business days after the conclusion of the

month, specifying:

2.1.31.1.1. The amount of funds expended and the balance
of funds remaining for HBSP services.

2.1.31.1.2. The last name, address, total rent, and HBSP
voucher payment amount for each rental payment
made.

2.1.31.1.3. The names of individuals who attained a

permanent housing voucher or other permanent
living arrangement and the date for which the
voucher or arrangement became effective and in
use by the individual.

2.1.31.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing, each
month of:

2.1.31.2.1. The namesof individuals who exited the program,
the reason, and the date of exit.

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor initials
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2.1.31.2.2. The names of individuals who have passed away,
and the date of their passing.

2.1.31.2.3. The date an individual signs a lease, including
date of move-in.

2.1.31.2.4. Any other changes experienced by the individual
including, but not limited to, address, permanent
housing, and rental amounts.

2.1.31.3. The Contractor shall submit annual progress reports to the

Department on a format provided by the Department. The
Contractor shall ensure annual reports include, but are not

limited to:

2.1.31.3.1. Barriers experienced by individuals waiting to
occupy HBSP supported housing, including but
not limited to:

2.1.31.3.1.1. Transportation.

2.1.31.3.1.2. Substance use disorder services.

2.1.31.3.1.3. Access to mental health services;

2.1.31.3.1.4. Access to medical healthcare.

2.1.31.3.1.5. Unit safety.

2.1.31.3.1.6. Permanent housing transition;

2.1.31.3.1.7. Financial hardship.

2.1.31.3.1.8. Barriers experienced by the
Contractor.

2.1.31.3.2. Resolutions of barriers experienced by the
individual and the Contractor.

2.1.31.3.3. Number of individuals who received an eviction

notice due to their behaviors.

2.1.31.4. The Contractor shall provide individual specific HBSP data

consistent with the Data Reporting requirements of this

agreement, or otherwise identified by the Department, in the

format, content, completeness, frequency, method and

timeliness as specified by the Department.

2.1.32. Performance Measures
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2.1.32.1. The Contractor shall consult and collaborate with the

Department to develop appropriate performance measures,

subject to Department approval.

2.1.32.2. The performance measures will be designated to evaluate:

2.1.32.2.1. Percentage of individuals receiving housing
services.

2.1.32.2.2. Percentage of individuals housed within 90 days
of approval to receive services.

2.1.32.2.3. Percentage of individuals who remain in stable
housing for one (1) year or longer, who include;

2.1.32.2.3.1. Individuals who have experienced
homelessness;

2.1.32.2.3.2. Individuals who were at risk of

homelessness due to eviction;

2.1.32.2.3.3., Individuals who were incarcerated;
and

2.1.32.2.3.4. Individuals who were admitted to

NHH.

2.1.32.2.4. Percentage of complaints regarding HBSP
services that are investigated and closed within
15 days of receipt of the complaint.

2.1.32.2.5. Percentage of individuals receiving services who
make a successful transition to permanent
housing within 18 months of enrollment in HBSP.

2.2. Supported Housing Bed Expansion

2.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a final housing plan to stand up a
minimum of six (6) new supported housing beds by August 1, 2022,

including a detailed timeline and budget, to the Department for

approval within fifteen (15) days from the effective date of Amendment

#3.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient personnel to ensure the safety

of clients, staff and the community, and provide the staffing plan to the

Department within thirty (30) days from the effective date of

Amendment #3.
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2.2.3. The Contractor shall provide written policies and processes, as
applicable, within ninety (90) days from the effective date of
Amendment #3, that include, but are not limited to;

2.2.3.1. Client contributions for clothing, food, and housing.

2.2.3.2. Services to be provided, including specially services.

2.2.3.3. Priority populations to be served.

2.2.3.4. Referrals and evaluations.

2.2.3.5. Admissions, transfers, and discharges.

2.2.3.6. Emergency response plan.

2.2.3.7. Any other policy or process as requested by the Department.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall submit and meet quarterly with the Department,
or as otherwise requested by the Department, to review quarterly
programmatic reports, in a format agreed upon by the Contractor and
the Department, with data elements that include, but are not limited to:

2.2.4.1. Total number of vacant and occupied beds during the
reported period.

2.2.4.2. Total number of individuals referred, admitted and

discharged during the reporting period.

2.2.4.3. Programmatic offerings.

Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

Budget Request for: Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Budget Period: 7/1/2022 to 6/30/2023

Total Program Cost Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Supported Housing Bed Expansion
Line Item Direct Direct. .. Direct

1. Total Salary/Waqes $ 165,432 $  165,432 $

2. Employee Benefits $  49,630 $ 49,630 $
3. Consultants $ - $ - $
4. Equipment: $ $ $

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ - $

Purchase/Depreciation $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $
5. Supplies; $ $ $

Educational $ $ $
Pharmacy $ $ $
Medical $ $ $
Office $  800 $ 800 $

6. Travel $ 9,000 $  9,000 $
7. Occupancy $ 950 s 950 $

8. Current Expenses $ - $ $
Telephone $ 2,600 $  2,600 $

Postage $  800 $  800 $
Subscriptions $ - $ $

Audit and Legal $ 950 $  950 $
Insurance $  1,900 $ 1,900 $
Board Expenses $ . $ $
Miscellaneous (Contingency) $  1,000 $ 1,000 $

9. Software $  1,265 $ 1,265 $
10. Marketing/Communications $ $ - $
11. Staff Education and Training $ 1,600 $ 1,600 $
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ - $
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ . $

Criminal Record Checks $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $
Client Funds $ $ $

14. Admin/Indirect $ 28,550 $  28,550 $ -

TOTAL $ 266,477 $ 266,477 $ -

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A03
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secrctar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that RIVBRBEND COMMUNITY

MENTAL HEALTH, INC. Is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

March 25. 1966. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary'of State's office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this oflice is concerned.

Business ID; 62509

Certificate Number: 0005744143

%

SO.

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxcd

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2022.

William M. Gardner

Sccrctarv of State



DocuSign Envelope 10: 2DA0A1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. Andrea D. Beaudotn. hereby certify that:

1. lama duly elected Assistant Board Secretary of Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, duly
called and held on February 24. 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

VOTE: That the President and/or Treasurer is duly authorized on behalf of Riverbend Community Mental
Health. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies
or departrhents and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of
the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate (s attached. This authority remains
valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Vote. I further certify that it is understood that
the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed below
currently occupy the posit}on(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

4. Lisa K. Madden is duly elected President & CEO of the Corporation.

Dated:

S^hatuTe of Elected Officer
Name: Andrea D. Beaudoin

Title: Assistant Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/20/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford. NH 03110

855 874-0123

NAME*^^ Linda Jaeger, CIC
Kia. E.,,: 855 874-0123 f/Sc. nuI:
ADDRESS: linda.jaeger(gusi.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A : Philadelphia indemnity insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Riverbend Community Mental Health Inc.

278 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B: Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURERE:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE

AODL

iMsa
SUBR

PCUCY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

(mm/do/yyyyi
POLICY EXP

fMM/OP/YYYY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2331228 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE

lilSES TEa oo^rrencal
MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY CZl JECT [x3 LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddeoO

$1,000,000

$100.000

$5,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2331227 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 $1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acodenll

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

(XCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB787070 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000.000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

X RETENTION sSIOK
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LULBILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, descrlM under
DESCRIPTKDN OF OPERATIONS below

s

HCHS20220000047

HCHS20220000049

3A States: NH

01/01/2022

01/01/2022

01/01/2023

01/01/2023

V PER
* STATUTE

OTH-

£a_

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professional

Liability

PHPK2331228 10/01/2021 10/01/2022 $1,000,000 Ea. incident

$3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICtES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

1
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Riverbend
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH. INC.

Mission

We care for the behavioral health ofour community.

Vision

• We provide responsive, accessible, and effective mental health services.

• We seek to sustain mental health and promote wellness.

• We work as partners with consumers and families.

• We view recovery and resiliency as an on-going process in which choice, education, advocacy, and
hope are key elements.

• We are fiscally prudent and work to ensure that necessary resources are available to support our
work, now and in the future.

Values

• We value diversity and see it as essential to our success.

• We value staffand their outstanding commitment and compassion for those we serve.

We value quality and strive to continuously improve our services by incorporating feedback from
consumers, families and community stakeholders.

• We value community partnerships as a way to increase connections and resources that help
consumers and families achieve their goals.

Revised 8-23-07
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KtttelJ Branagan & Sargent
Cerlified I'liblic Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

fManagemenfs Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible fa the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America; this includes the
design, Implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
pr^entation of financial statements that are free from materiafmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accadance vrith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemai
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signrficant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

164 North Main Street. St. Albans, Vermont 05470 | P 802.524.9531 | 800.499.9631 | F 802.624.9533

www,kb9cpo.com
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Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the finandai etatemente referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in Its net assets
and Its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
schedule of functional revenues, schedule of functional expenses, analysis of 6BH revenues, receipts and
receivables, and analysis of client sen/ice fees on Pages 16 through 21 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information Is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards. Is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such Information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in ail material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 23,
2021, on our consideration of Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.'s internal control over financial
reportir>g and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.'s Internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

St. Albans, Vermont
September 23, 2021
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,

ASSETS

2021 Z020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14.523.074 $ 8,821,845

Client service fees receivable, net 944,068 1,340,309
Other receivables 1,662,191 2,041,243

Investments 9,290,242 7,676,854

Prepaid expenses 174,204 158,782
Tenant security deposits 27.257 27,244

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 26,621.036 20.066.277

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT. NET 11.136.269 11,930,491

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in Behavioral Information Systems 109,099 109,099

TOTAL ASSETS $ 37,666,404 $ 32,105,867

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 110.023 $  170,683

Accrued expenses 1,049,309 1,050,813

Tenant security deposits 26,140 27,244

Accrued compensated absences 990,852 925,969

Current portion of long-term debt 253,357 242,475
Deferred revenue 7,512 10,936

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,437,193 2,428,120

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion 7,005,549 12,278,876
Unamortized debt issuance costs (197,077) (222,971)

Long-term debt, net of unamortized debt issuance costs 6.808.472 12.055.905

Interest rate swap liability 283.844 486,672

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 7,092,316 12,542,577

NET ASSETS

Net Assets without donor restrictions 25,181,789 14,515,692
Net Assets with donor restrictions 3,155,106 2,619,476

TOTAL NET ASSETS 28,336,895 17,135,170

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 37.866,404 $ 32,105.867

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2DA0A1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

Rtverbend Cotnmunity Mental Health. Inc.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended June 30,

2021

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

Public support -
Federal

Slate of New Hampshire - BBH

In-kind donations

Contributions

Other

Total Public Support
Revenues -

Client service fees, nat of provision for bad debts
Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Total Revenues

TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

PROGRAM AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Children and adolescents

Emergency services
Behavioral Crisis Treatment Ctr

ACT Team

Outpatient - Concord

Outpatient - Franklin

Multi-Senrice Team • Community Support Program
Mobile Crisis Team

Community Residence • Twitchell
Community Residence • Fellowship
Restorative Partial Hospital

Supportive Living • Community
Bridge Housing
Other Non-BBH

Administrative

TOTAL PROGRAM & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

EXCESS OF PUBLIC SUPPORT AND

REVENUE OVER EXPENSES FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME

PPP Loan Forgiveness

Investment Income

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

Change in fair value of Interest rate swap

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Net Assets Net Assets

withtout Donor with Donor

Restrictions Restrictions All Funds 2020

$  614,256 $ $  814,256 $ 2.770,396

3,233,066 • 3.233.066 1.887,912

170,784 • 170.784 170,784

107,615 12.050 119,565 174,980
1,332,616 - 1.332,616 905,006

6.658.237 12,050 5.670.287 5,915,078

26,766,679 . 28.766.679 24,332,689

4,049,036 . 4,049.036 5,498.640
8,320 (6.320) . -

32.624,035 (8,320) 32.815.715 29,831,329

36.482,272 3.730 38.486.002 35,746.407

5,416,903 5.416.903 5.282,195

1,338.609 • 1.338,609 1,030,095

1.448.814 - 1.446,614 1,504,620

1,535,867 - 1.535.887 1,582,224

5,219.249 - 5.219.249 4,834,709

2,779.628 • 2.779,628 2,371,863

7.020.285 - 7.020.285 6,440,718

1,798.522 - 1.798,522 2.003,129

1.122,608 - 1,122,608 973,232

549,409 - 549.409 548,445

1,866 - 1,866 410,899
1,510,700 - 1,510.700 1,335,925

105,971 105.971 -

3,375,387 - 3,376,387 4,180.076
906,076 - 906,076 1.998.798

34,131,914 . 34.131.914 34,496.928

4.350.358 3.730 4.354.088 1,249.479

5,017,927 5.017,927
1.094,984 531,898 1,626,882 86.771

6,112,911 531,898 6.644,809 86.771

10,483.269 535,628 10.998,897 1,336,250

14,515,692 2,619,478 17,135,170 16,130,466

202,826 202,828 (331,546)

$ 25,181,789 $ 3.155.106 $ 28,338,695 $ 17.135,170

See Accompanying Notes to Finartdal Statements.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Changes in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments

PPP loan forgiveness

Changes in:

Client service fee receivables

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Tenant security deposits

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets

Investment activity, net

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

PPP loan proceeds
Principal payments on long-term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for Interest

2021 2020

$ 10,998,897 $ 1,336,250

1,196,915 1,154.082

958,071 (40,114)

(5,017,927) •

396,241 589,672

379,052 (611,182)

(15.422) (51,766)

(1,117) •

2,719 (81,186)
(3.424) (16,426)

8,894,005 2,279,330

(376,799) (714,094)
(2,571,459) 78,240

(2.948.258) (635,854)

5,017,927
(244,518) (231,576)

(244.518) 4,786,351

5,701,229 6,429,827

8,821,845 2.392,018

$ 14,523,074 $ 8,821,845

$ 244.599 S 252,221

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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Riverbehd Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

OrQanization

RIverbend Community Mental Health. Inc. (Riverbend) Is a nonprofit corporation, organized
under New Hampshire law to provide services In the areas of mental health, and related non-
mental health programs. The organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction
under Section 170 (b)(1)(a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private
foundation under Section 509(a)(2). It operates in the Merhmack and Hillsborough counties
of New Hampshire.

Income Taxes

Rrvert>end Community Mental Health, Inc., is exempt from Income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, It is exempt from income taxes on its
exempt function Income.

Consideration has been given to uncertain tax positions. The federal income tax returns for
the years ended after June 30, 2018, remain open for potential examination by major tax
jurisdictions, generally for three years after they were filed.

Related Organizations

Riverbend is an affiliate of Capital Region Health Care (CRHC). CRHC is a comprehensive
healthcare service system consisting of one hospital, one visiting nurse association, real
estate holding companies and a variety of physician service companies. The affiliation exists
for the purpose of integrating and improving the delivery of healthcare services to the
residents of the central New Hampshire area.

Penacook Assisted Living Facility (PALF) is managed by Riverbend. PALF is a 501 (c)(3)
organization and operates the "John H. Whitaker Place" assisted care community located in
Penacook, New Hampshire.

Basts of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis In accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial
statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AlCPA) "Audit and Accounting Guide for
Not-for-Profit Organizations" (the "Guide"). (ASC) 958-205 was effective January 1. 2018.

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues and gains and losses are
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the
net assets of Rlvert>end and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose In performing the primary objectives of
Riverbend. Riverbend's board may designate assets without restrictions for specific
operational purposes from time to time.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Non-Profit Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor
restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Pfopertv

Property is recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair market value at the date of donation.
Depreciation is provided using both straight-line and accelerated methods, over the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Depreciation

The cost of property, equipment and leasehold improvements Is depreciated over the
estimated useful life of the assets using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives
range from 3 to 40 years.

Grants

Riverbend receives a number of grants from and has entered into various contracts with the
State of New Hampshire and the federal govemment related to the delivery of mental health
senrices.

Vacation Pav and Fringe Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.

In-Kind Donations

Various public and private entHies have donated facilities for Riverbend's operational use.
The estimated fair value of such donated services is recorded as offsetting revenues and
expenses in the accompanying statement of revenue support and expenses of general
funds.

Revenue

(3rant revenue received by Riverbend is deferred until the related services are provided.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on the amount billed for services provided, net of
respective allowances.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Policy for Evaluatlno Collectabllitv of Accounts Receivable

In evaluating the collectabillty of accounts receivable. Riverbend analyzes past results and
identifies trends for each major payor source of revenue for the purpose of estimating the
appropriate amounts of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Data in each major payor
source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Specifically, for receivables relating to services provided to clients having third-party
coverage, an allowance for doubtful accounts and a corresponding provision for bad debts
are established for amounts outstanding for an extended period of time and for third-party
payers experiencing financial difficulties; for receivables relating to self-pay clients, a
provision for bad debts is made In the period services are rendered based on experience
indicating the inability or unwillingness of clients to pay amounts for which they are financially
responsible.

Based on management's assessment, Riverbend provides for estimated uncollectible
amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance. Balances that
remain outstanding after Riverbend has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

Riverbend has recorded an estimate in the allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,141,701
and $1,545,038 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The allowance for doubtful
accounts represents 55% and 54% of total accounts receivable as of June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Client Service Revenue

On July 1, 2020. Riverbend adopted ASC Topic 606 with no significant impact to its financial
position or operations, using the modified retrospective method. There were no contracts
that were not completed as of July 1, 2020. The client had no adjustment to opening net
assets as of July 1, 2020 as a result of adopting ASC Topic 606. There was no material
impact on revenue for the year ended June 30, 2021 as a result of applying ASC Topic 606.

Client Service Revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration the
corporation expects to receive in exchange for the services provided. These amounts are
due from patients or third party payers and include variable consideration for retroactive
adjustments, if any, under reimbursement programs. Performance obligations are
determined based on the nature of the services provided. Client service revenue is
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. Riverbend recognized revenue for
mental health services in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue for contracts with Customers.
Riverbend has determined that these services included under the daily or monthly fee have
the same timing and pattern of transfer and are a series of distinct services that are
considered one performance obligation which is satisfied over time. Riverbend receives
revenues for services under various third-party payer programs which include Medicaid and
other third-party payers. The transaction price is based on standard charges for services
provided to residents, reduced by applicable contractual adjustments, discounts, and implicit
pricing concessions. The estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts are based on
contractual agreements, discount policy, and historical collection experience. The corporation
estimates the transaction price based on the terms of the contract with the payer,
correspondence with the payer and historical trends.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Client service revenue (net of contractual allowances and provision for bad debts)
recognized during the year ended June 30. 2021 totaled $28,766,679. of which $28,367,368
was revenue from third-party payers and $399,311 was revenue from self-pay clients.

Riverbend has agreements with third-party payers that provide payments to Riverbend at
established rates. These payments include;

New Hampshire Medicaid

Riverbend is reimbursed for services rendered to Medicaid clients on the basis of fixed
Fee for Service rates.

New Hampshire Healthy Families

This a managed care organization that reimburses Riverbend Medicaid funds for services
rendered on a fee for service and capitated structure.

Beacon Wellness

This a managed care organization that reimburses Riverbend Medicaid funds for services
rendered on a fee for service and capitated structure.

Amerihealth

This a managed care organization that reimburses Riverbend Medicaid funds for services
rendered on a fee for service and capitated structure.

State of New Hamoshire

Riverbend is reimbursed for certain expenses through support from the State of New
Hampshire general funds accounts. Assertive Continuous Treatment Teams (ACT) for
both adults and children, Mobile Crisis Teams, Refugee Interpreter Services are such
accounts.

Concord Hospital

Riverbend is reimbursed for certain projects through support from the Concord Hospital
for l>ehavioral health services rendered in the emergency room inpatient psychiatric unit
and for general administrative services are all reimbursed on a contractual basis.

Approximately 86% of net client service revenue Is from participation In the state-sponsored
Medicaid programs for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. respectively. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
Interpretation and change. As a result, it is possible that recorded estimates could change
materially in the near term.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Riverbend has adopted professional accounting standards which require that derivative
instruments be recorded at fair value and included in the statement of financial position as
assets or liabilities. Riverbend uses Interest rate swaps to manage risks related to interest
rate movements. Interest rate swap contracts are reported at fair value. Riveibend's interest
rate risk management strategy is to stabilize cash flow requirements by maintaining contracts
to convert variable rate debt to a fixed rate.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total costs were $150,251 and $105,856 at
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 2 CASH

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of cash deposits was $14,550,331 and
$8,849,089 and the bank balance was $14,725,805 and $8,960,504. Of the bank balance,
$5,860,928 and $633,352 was covered by federal deposit insurance under written agreement
between the bank and Riverbend, $7,258,906 and $8,325,265 was offset by debt, and the
remaining $1,605,971 and $1,887 is uninsured.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUhTTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients

Receivable from insurance companies

Medicaid receivable

Medicare receivable

Housing fees

Allowance for doubtful accounts

2021

$ 480,709

554,793

868,095

182,149

23

2.085,769
(1.141,701)

2020

$ 549,835

364,283

1,592,141

352,906

6,182

2,885,347

(1,545.038)

$ 944,068 $1,340,309

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

BBH

Concord Hospital

Federal Grants

Behavioral Information System - BIS

Merrimack County Drug Court

Beacon Health Options - MCO

MCO Directed Payments

State of NH-LTCSP

Due from Penacook Assisted Living Facility

Other

2021

$ 874,290

451,811

59,023

76,767

137,199

12,866

50.235

2020

$ 221,397

224,245

609,751

80,690

292,525

488,022

66,300

13,545

44,768

$1.662491 $2,041,243
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

NOTES

Riverbend has invested funds In various pooled funds with The Colony Group.
approximate breakdown of these investments are as follows at June 30,:

Unrealized Market

2021 Cost Gain (Loss) Value

Cash & Money Market $  179,254 $ - $  179,254

Corporate Bonds 2,039,624 (25.757) 2,013,867

Exchange Traded Funds 2,724.996 858,110 3,583,106

Equities 79,159 (5,099) 74,060

Mutual Funds 3,017,771 422,184 3,439,955

$8,040,804 $1,249,438 $9,290,242

Unrealized Market

2020 Cost Gain (Loss) Value

Cash & Money Market $ 433,019 $ - $ 433,019

Corporate Bonds 410,571 (11,028) 399,543

Exchange Traded Funds 4,157.008 391,102 4.548,110

Equities 74,672 (13,490) 61,182

Mutual Funds 2,303,481 (68,481) 2,235,000

$7,378,751 $ 298,103 $7,676,854

Investment Income (losses) consisted of the following at June 30,

2021 2020

Interest and dividends $ 191,809 $ 221,171

Realized gains (losses) 528,978 (50,750)

Unrealized gains (losses) 958,071 (40.114)

Fee expenses (51,976) (47,510)
Returns from BIS - 3,974

TOTAL $1,626,882 $  86,771

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Professional accounting standards established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The hierarchy gives the highest prionty to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (level 3 measurenrients). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below;

Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Level 1- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2* Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3- Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair
value measurement and unot^ervable.

All investments are categorized as Level 1 and recorded at fair value, as of June 30, 2021.
As required by professional accounting standards, investment assets are classified in their
entirety based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

NOTE 6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, at cost:

2021 2020

Land

Buildings

Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and Fixtures

Equipment

Software licenses

Accumulated Depreciation

NET BOOK VALUE

$  1.275.884

17,707,974

532,136

4,204,035

1,998,972

171,799

25,890,800

(14,754.531)

$ 1,275,884

17,652,170

530,136

3,962,983

1.930,086

162,848

25,514,107

(13,583,616)

$ 11,136,269 $11,930,491

NOTE 7 OTHER INVESTMENTS

Behavioral Information Svstem

Riverbend entered into a joint venture with another New Hampshire Community Mental
Health Center. Under the terms of the joint venture. Riverbend invested $52,350 for a 50%
Interest in Behavioral Information Systems (BIS).

10
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Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

NOTE 7 OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

The ihvestment Is being accounted for under the equity method. Accordingly, 50% of the BIS
operating income for the year has been reflected on the books of Riv0rt>end.

During the years June 30, 2021 and 2020, Riverbend paid BIS $19,500 and $179,660,
respectively, for software support and sen/ices.

included in accounts receivable was $59,023 and $80,540 in amounts due from BIS at June
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Included in accounts payable was $-0- and $12,762 in amounts due to BIS at June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following as of June 30,:

2021 2020

Mortgage payable, $1,200,000 note dated 6/10/19, secured

by Pleasant St. property. Interest at 1.67%. annual

principal and Interest payments of $5,630 with

a final balloon payment of $946,441 due

June, 2029 $ 1,153,906 $ 1,178,424

Bond payable, TD Banknorth dated February 2003, interest

at a fixed rate of 3.06% with annual debt service

payments of varying amounts ranging from $55,000 in

July 2004 to $375,000 in July 2034. Matures July 2034.
The bond is subject to various financial covenant

calculations. 2.885.000 3,046,000

Bond payable, NHHEFA dated September 2017, interest

at a fixed rate of 1.11% through a swap agreement

expiring 9/1/2028 annual debt service payments of varying

amounts ranging from $55,000 in July 2017 to $475,000

in July 2038. Matures July 2038. The bond is subject to

various financial covenant calculations. 3,220,000 3,280,000

11
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NOTE 8

Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Note payable, TD Banknortti dated April 2020. PPP loan
forgiven inFY21. - 5,017,927

7.258.906 12,521,351

Less: Current Portion (253,357) (242,475)

Long-term Debt 7,005,549 12,278,876

Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (197,077) (222,971)

$ 6,808,472 $12,055,905

The aggregate principal payments of the long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30. Amount

2022 $ 253,357

2023 264,272

2024 275,109

2025 286,295

2026 297,237

Thereafter 5,882.636

$ 7,258.906

Riverbend has an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit which is associated with the 2008
bond. The letter of credit is for the favor of the Trustee of the bond for the benefit of the bond

holders under the bond indenture dated September 1, 2017. The letter is for $3,395,000 and
expires September 1, 2028.

NOTE 9 DEFERRED INCOME

2021 2020

Concord Hospital/Dartmouth Hitchcock $  7,512 $ 10,936

12
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RIverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

NOTE 10 LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2021, Riverbend had available a line of credit with an upper limit of
$1,300,000. At that date no t>orrowlngs were outstanding against the line of credit. These
funds are available with an interest rate equal to 1.5% above the Wall Street Journal Prime
Rate with a minimum interest rate of 4%. This line of credit is secured by ali accounts
receivable of the company and Is due on demand. The line of credit matures May 31. 2022.

NOTE 11 RELATED PARTY

Penacook Assisted Living Facility, Inc., an affiliate, owed Riverbend at year end.

The balance is comprised of the following at June 30,:

2021 2020

Ongoing management and administrative services,
recorded in other accounts receivable

Riverbend collected $105,251 and $110,539 for property management services, and $59,268
and $55,918 for contracted housekeeping services during the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Riverljend makes contributions to a 403(b) plan on behalf of its employees. This program
covers substantially all full-time employees. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
such contributions were $399,460 and $366,705, respectively.

NOTE 13 OPERATING LEASES

Riverbend leases operating facilities from various places. The future minimum lease
payments are as follovrs:

Year Ending
June 30,

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Amount

122,722

125.232

92,142

35,605

32,459

$ 408,160

13
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RIverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 13 OPERATING LEASES ( cont'd)

Total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $128,258 and
$138,092. respectively.

NOTE 14 LIQUIDITY

The following reflects Riverbend's financial assets available within one year of June 30. 2021
for general expenditures are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable (net)
Investments

$14,523,074

2,806,259
9,290,242

Financial assets, at year end 26.419.575

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year due to:
Restricted by donor with time or purpose restrictions (3,155,106)

Financial assets available within one

year for general expenditures $23,264,469

Restricted deposits, and reserves are restricted for specific purposes and therefore are not
available for general expenditures.

Investments in real estate and partnerships are not included as they are not considered to be
available within one year.

As part of the Riverbend's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial
assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due.

NOTE 15 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets with donor restrictions are restricted and summarized as follows as of June 30,
2021:

14
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 15 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

2021

Purpose Perpetual
Restricted in Nature Total

Babcock Fund $  144,835 $ $  144,835

Capital Campaign Fund - 2,863,868 2,863,868
Development Fund 146,403 - 146,403

$  291,238 $ 2,863,868 $ 3,155,106

2020

Purpose Perpetual
Restricted in Nature Total

Babcock Fund $  144,835 $ $  144,835

Capital Campaign Fund - 2.332.760 2,332,760
Development Fund 141,883 - 141,883

$  286,718 $ 2,332,760 $ 2,619,478

On December 26, 1978 the Jo Babcock Memorial Fund was established by Henry Frances
Babcock of Belmont, MA, In memory of their daughter. Designated for the treatment of
outpatients, in particular those who are unable to pay for services, the Babcock Fund, may
also be used to purchase equipment for research or treatment.

The initial gift consisted of 250 shares of Merck stock. In street form. The stocks were
subsequently sold. In 1979, the Babcock Family sent additional funds In the form of bonds,
etc.

Capital Campaign Fund - (Charles Schwab)

In the spring of 2003, Riverbend Community Mental Health completed a campaign seeking to
raise capital support from community leaders, families, friends, corporations, and
foundations. The campaign was intended to identify urgent capital projects that could expand
and improve services to a relatively underserved population of clients.

The overall campaign Is also intended to provide new and improved facilities for the
Riverbend community, and enhance the services provided to the patients at Riverbend
Community Mental Health, Inc.

15
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30. 2021

NOTE 15 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

The Development Fund - (Charles Schwab)

The Development Fund consists of agreements with various corporations and foundations
that specifically designate their contributions to be utilized for supporting program sen/ice
expenses; funds are restricted in order for Rivert>end to ensure that almost all of each
individual contribution received can go toward supporting programs and initiatives that
benefit the community.

Below is the breakdown of the restricted activity above for the year ending June 30, 2021:

2021 2020

Investment Income $  216,777 $  71,912

Unrealized gain (loss) on Investments 334,235 (32,028)
Irivestment Fees (19.114) (16,880)

Total Annuity Activity 531,898 23,004

New Grants 12,050 10,186

Net assets released from restrictions (8,320) (102,264)

Beginning Assets with Donor Restrictions 2.619,478 2,688,552

Ending Assets with Donor Restrictions $ 3,155,106 $ 2,619,478

NOTE 16 RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 Coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen
which are likely to negatively impact net income. Other financial impact could occur though
such potential Impact and the duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Possible
effects may include, but are not limited to, disruption to the Riverbend's customers and
revenue, absenteeism in the Riverbend's labor workforce, unavailability of products and
supplies used in operations, and decline in value of assets held by the Rivert)end, including
receivables and property and equipment.

Due to these economic uncertainties Riverbend applied for and received Federal support and
aid funding through the Paycheck Protection Program (aka PPP) and the Provider Relief
Fund, which was implemented as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES Act). These proceeds were used to cover payroll costs, certain interest
payments, rent, and utility costs. These funds were one-off unanticipated payments and any
future relief is uncertain.
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Rrverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021

NOTE 16 RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES (cont'd)

On. April 1. 2020, Riverbend successfully petitioned all three managed care organizations to
waive the Maintenance of Effort (MOE) provisions in each of the respective provider service
agreements. The waiver period is effective only for the period of July 1, 2020 through June
30, 2021, and is thereafter reinstated. An extension to waive the MOE requirements beyond
this effective period is also uncertain at this time.

NOTE 17 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

Riverbend was granted a loan In the amount of $5,017,927 under the Paycheck Protection
Program ("PPP") administered by the Small Business Administration ("SBA"). The loan was
uncoliateralized and was fully guaranteed by the Federal Government. Riverbend used the
PPP loan proceeds for purposes consistent with the loan provisions and received
forgiveness subsequent to year end. For the year ended June 30. 2021, Riverbend has
recognized $5,017,927 as PPP Loan forgiveness in other income.

NOTE 18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accounting standards, Riverbend has evaluated subsequent
events through September 23, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. Events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2021, have been
incorporated into the financial statements herein.
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RK/erbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES. RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended June 30. 2021

Receivable

From

BBH

Beginning

of Year

BBH

Revenues

Per Audited

Financial

Statements

Receipts

for Year

Receivable

from

BBH

End of Year

Contract Year, June 30, 2021

Analvsis of Receiots:

•  BBH & Federal Fund Payments

$  221,397 $ 3,233.066 $ (2,580,173) $ 674,290

07/13/20 $ 22,287 01/22/21 $ 116,475

07/23/20 114,483 02/08/21 139,014

07/23/20 121,524 03/15/21 47,264

07/27/20 61,778 03/18/21 17,855

08/17/20 111,463 03/18/21 16,958

08/31/20 5,000 03/18/21 16,263

09/02/20 129,659 03/18/21 15,794

09/18/20 3,358 03/19/21 5,000

09/18/20 6,636 03/19/21 135,327

09/21/20 20,423 03/19/21 111,007

11/16/20 10,674 04/02/21 608,081

11/17/20 45,420 04/28/21 28,754

11/17/20 111,911 04/28/21 92,296

11/17/20 37,305 04/28/21 132,740

11/17/20 239,409 04/30/21 13,838

11/24/20 8.775 04/30/21 25,184

12/07/20 83,985 04/30/21 7,431

12/07/20 47,271 04/30/21 24,701

01/04/21 95,662 06/23/21 19,047

01/04/21 102,160 06/23/21 97,432

01/05/21 8,838 06/23/21 4,586

01/22/21 16,870 06/23/21 7.708

01/22/21 19,612 06/23/21 113,161

01/22/21 15,760 06/23/21 5.000

01/22/21 17,919 06/23/21 3,830

Less: Federal Monies (682,754)

$ 2,580,173
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Rrverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
ANALYSIS OF CLIENT SERVICE FEES

For the Year Erxled June 30,2021

Accounts

Receivable,
Beglnninq

Contractual

Gross Allowances

Fees & Discounts

Cash

Receipts

Accounts

Receivable,
Ending

Client fees $  549,835 $ 2,626,892 $ (1,186,486) $  (1,509,532) $  480,709

Blue Cross/Blue Shield 93,057 867,748 (326,818) (543,793) 90,194

Medlcald 1,592,141 50.058,868 (25.502,040) (25,280,874) 868,095

Medicare 352,906 1.119,236 (432.829) (857,164) 182,149

Other Insurance 291,226 3,131,549 (1,140,852) (1,817,324) 464,599

Housing fees 6.182 418.259 (21,586) (402,832) 23

Allowance for

Doubtful accounts (1.545,038) 403,337 (1,141.701)

TOTALS $  1.340,309 $ 58,222.552 $ (28,207,274) $ (30.411,519) $  944,068
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RlvedMod Community Mental Health, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year ErxleO June 30.2021

Pau-Through
Entity CFDA

Federal Grantor/Proyam Title AddMonal Award ID Number Number Expendituree

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

PasMd thxoush the State of New Hampshire.
Department of HeaRh and Human Services:

NH State Opiold Response RFP-201MDAS4)544EDIC^5-A01 M.778 t 14,177
NH State opiold Response SS-2010-BOAS^S^CCES4>3^03 93.768 618.665

632.742

National and State Tobacco Control Program 93.367 ^■400

Projects for Asslstarwe'ln Transition from Homeleisness SS-2018-DBH-01.MENTA-04 93.150 36,234

Emergerwy Grants to Address Mental and Substance Use
Disorders During COVlD-19 COVID-19 SS-202<M>BH^7-RAPID-04 93.865 137.680

ProvidOfRoIlelFund COVlD-19 93.498 550,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS > 1.364.256

NOTE A BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedirie of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) Includes the federal award activity of Riverbend Community
Mental Health. Inc. under programs of the federal govemmerU for the year ended June 30.2021. The Information in this Schedule is presented
In accordance with the requirements of Trtle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform Adrrdnlstratlve Requirementa. Cost
Principles, and Audit Reqiiremenu for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Scheduia presents only a selected portion of the
operations of Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc. it is not Intended to and does ml present the financial position, changes bi nei assets,
or cash flows of Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.

NOTES SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognlaed followlr>g the cost
principles contained In the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not aHoweble or are limited as to reimbursement

Riverbend Communliy Mental Haafth. Inc.. has not elected to use the 10 percent de mimirts Indirea cost rate as allowed under the Unilorm
Guidance.
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Report 2

Kittdll Branegan B Sargent
Certifitd Public Accounianti

Vermont License #167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUOmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

RNerbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Riverbend Community
Mental Health, Inc. {a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2021, and the related statements of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 23,2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered RIverlTend Community
Mental Health, Inc-'s Internal control over finandal reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances fw the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Rivert)end
Community Mental Health, Inc.'s internal control. Accordlr^ly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.'s Internal control.

A deficiency in Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functfons, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In
Internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deftciencies, In internal control that la less severe than a
material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been Identified.

154 North Main StfooL St Albans.Vermool 06478 | P 802.624.9531 | 800.499.9531 | F 802.624.9533
www.kbscpa.com
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To the Board of Directors Report 2 (cont'd)
Rivettend Community Mental Health, Inc.

Compifance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Riverbend Community Mental Health. Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with v^ich could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemmeni Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

h

St. Albans, Vermont
September 23,2021
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Bfififiia

o

Kittell Branegan & Sargent
Cerii/ied Public Accoutttatils

Vermont License *187

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Rivert>end Community Mental Health. Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Riverbend Community Mental HeaHh, Ina's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2021. Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc/s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Ma/iagemenf'a ResponaibUtty

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards appScable to its federal programs.

Audltor'a Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Riverbend Community Mental Health,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audK to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Riverbend
Community Mental Health. Inc.'s compliance wfth those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary In the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Rivert>end Community Mental
Health, lnc.'8 compliance.

164 North Main StreBL St. Albans. Vermont 05478 | P 802.624.9531 j 800.499.9631 | F 802.624.9633

vwvw.kbecpa.coni
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To the Board of Directors Report 3 (cont'd)
RIvertend Community Mental Health. Inc.

Opinion on Each Mpfor Federal Program

In our opinion, Rivert>end Community Mental Health, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to atx>ve that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30,2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Rivertrend Community Mental Health, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Riverbend Community Mental Health,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.'s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in Internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemai control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemai control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemai control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemai control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemai
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemai control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of Intemai control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

St. Albans, Vermont
September 23. 2021
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Report 4

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

June 30. 2021-

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. were prepared In accordance with GAAP.

2. There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3. No Instances of noncompllance material to the financial statements of Riverbend Community
Mental Health, Inc., which would be required to be reported In accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. There were no significant deficiencies in Internal control over major federal award programs
disclosed during the audit. No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Rlvert>end
Community Mental Health. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section
200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as a major program were:

93.788 - The Doorways - Hub & Spoke Concord
93.788 - Medication Assisted Treatment (Waypoint FKA Child & Fam. Svs.)

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Types A and 6 programs was $750,000.

9. Rlvert)end Community Mentai Health, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

There were no findings related to the financial statements audit.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

There were no findings or questioned costs related to the major federal award programs.
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Riverbend Communitv Mental Health, Inc.

John Barthelmes, Chair

James Doremus, Vice Chair

Andrea Beaudoin, Assistant Secretary

Lisa Madden, President/CEO, Ex OJficio

Frank Boucher

John Chishoim

Leslie Combs

Christopher Eddy

Benjamin Hodges

Nicholas Larochelle

Rabbi Robin Nafshi

Bradley Osgood

Glenn Shepherd

James Snodgrass

Carol Sobelson, MS, LICSW

Johane Telgener

Kara Wyman

Robert Stcigmeyer, Ex Officio
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LISA K. MADDEN, MSW, LICSVV

PROFFSSIONAT. FXPFRTKNCE

Riverbend Community Mental Health Center, Inc., Concord, NH, 5/2020 - present
President and ChiefExecutive Officer
Concord Hospital, Concord, NH, 5/2020 - present
Vice President ofBehavioral Health
Chief executive for a full service community mental health center serving the greater
Concord community. This position is responsible for the oversight of all clinical,
financial, human resource, community advocacy and fundraising operations.
Riverbend is a member of the Capital Region Health Care system and the President
& CEO sits on the Board of Directors.- This Vice President of Behavioral Health at

Concord Hospital is a member of the senior leadership team. This position works
collaboratively with medical and administrative leadership to advance services for
those dealing with mental illness and addiction issues. This position is responsible
for the oversight of all professional psychiatric services in the facility. The VP
works closely-with the nursing leadership to manage the inpatient psychiatric
treatment services as well.

Southern New Hampshire Health, Nashua, NH, 7/15 - 5/2020
Associate Vice President of Behavioral Health
Executive Director of Region 3 Integrated Deliver}' Network
Responsible for the oversight of all behavioral health services within Southern New
Hampshire Health system, this includes services at Southern New Hampshire Medical
Center (SNHMC) and Foundation Medical Partners (FMP). In addition, ser\'e as the
Executive Director of the 1115 DSRIP Integrated Delivery Network (ION) for the
Greater Nashua region. Duties for both positionsincliide:

•  Member ofthe Executive Leadership Team for both SNHMC and FMP.

•  Oversee the program development, implementation and clinical services in the
following departments:

o Emergency Department
o  Partial Hospital Program (PHP)

0  Intensive Outpatient Program for Substanee Use Disorders(IOP)
o  18 bed inpatient behavioral health unit (BHU)
o  Foundation Counseling and Wellness -outpatient elinical sendees
o Foundation Collaborative Care- outpatient psychiatric evaluation and

medication management

o Center for Reeovery Management - medieation for addietion treatment
(MAT)

o  Integrated Behavioral Health in Primary Care Practiees

•  Responsible for the fiscal management of the above.
•  Work closely with medical providers, practice managers and staff to address the

needs of people living with mental illness and addictions. Addressing issues
related to stigma and supporting their efforts to treat everyone with dignity and
respect.

•  Represent SNHH in community forums including:
o New Hampshire Hospital Association Behavioral Health Peer Group
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0 New Hampshire Hospital Assoeiation Behavioral Health Learning
Collaborative

o Mayor's Suieide Prevention Task Force
•  Seek funding for programs from various foundations and organizations.
•  Participate in quality reviews and discussions with private insurance companies

and state managed care organizations. Discussions include incentive options and
program development opportunities for their members.
Work closely with DHHS leadership to advance clinical treatment options in the
community.

•  Responsible for the implementation of the 1115 DSRIP waiver in Greater Nashua

0  SNHMC is the fiscal agent for ihedemonstration.
0 Work closely with 30 community partners to achieve the goals of the

waiver.

o Member of the Workforce Development Policy Subcommittee, focus on
legislative opportunities that will assist with addressing the workforce
shortage in NH.

o Participate in extensive governance process that assures transparency in
the distribution of funds to community partners,

o Assure the special terms and conditions established by the state are
implemented.

Center for Life Management, Derry, NH
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, 6/05 - 6/15
Responsible for the oversight of efficient operations of outpatient clinical systems of care in
accordance with all federal and state requirements.

Oversee all clinical services for the Community Mental Health Center for Region
10 in New Hampshire. Services include various therapeutic interventions, targeted
case management, supported housing, wellness services, integrated care and
community support services.

•  Increased revenue by over 100% and increased stall by 41%. Responsible tor
the management of approximately 200 employees under operations.
Established and maintain clinical service goals and incentive pay for performance
system within a financially self-sustaining model of care.

•  Provide leadership for extensive program development. Responsible for the
implementation and expansion of new or existing programs in response to
community needs.

Responsible for monitoring clinical and administrative costs and revenue
generation as well as the submission of the annual program budgets to the
President and CEO.

•  Collaborate with the Vice President of Quality and Compliance to determine the
training needs for clinical and administrativestaff.

•  Assist the President and CEO in developing short and long range strategic plan
including program expansions, business development, facilities and capital
usage and/or improvements.

•  Responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an integrated care model
which allows for seamless access to services within the agency, coordination of
services with area healthcare providers, as well as provision of behavioral
healthcare consultation services at the physicians offices.

Assisted in the process of consolidating three sites into one new facility in July
2007. Primary responsibility for the expansion of services in Salem in September
2014.

Worked closely with the COO of a local hospital to develop and expand a long
term contract to provide emergency evaluation services at the hospital and to assist



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2DA0A1F1-3O46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

with disposition to appropriate level of care.

•  Worked extensively with Senior Management to prepare for Medicaid Care
Management in New Hampshire. Part of the team that established the first in the
state per member per month contract with the MCO's inclusive of incentive
metrics.

Lisa K Madden, LICSW, LLC

Consultant, 6/04 - 6105

Independent contractor providing consultation ser\Mces to a community counseling center and a
specialized foster care organization.

Interim Clinic Director, 8104 - 5105

Wayside Youth and Family Support, Framingham, MA
Responsible for the turnaround management of a large community counseling center in
Framingham. Accomplishments include:

•  Reorganized clinical team, supervisory structure and support staff functions
•  Implemented necessar>' performance improvement plans

Hired staff with significantly increased productivity expectations
•  Assisted in the implementation of a new Performance Management and Billing System

Worked diligently to foster a positive work environment through extensive verbal and
written communication; staff involvement in decisions when appropriate; providing
direct feedback when necessary: and by providing support. The goal was to foster a
positive and cooperative "culture" in thcclinic.

•  Assisted senior management with btidget development.

Clinical Supervisor, 7104 - 6105
The Mentor Network, Lawrence MA

•  Provide clinical supervision to MSW's seeking independent liccnsurc.
•  Provide training and consultation to the staff on such topics as diagnostic evaluations,

treatment plans and case presentations.

•  Provide group support andtrauma debriefing after a critical incident.

The Massachusetts Societyfor the Prevention of Cruelty to Children (MSPCC)
The Family Counseling Center

Northeast Regional Clinic Director, Lawrence, .MA 12/99 - 9/03
Responsible for turnaround management of the clinics in the Northeast Region of MSPCC,
specifically the cities of Lawrence, Lynn and Lowell. The clinics had been struggling with staff
recruitment and retention, reduced revenue, poor management ofcontracts, as well as significant
problems in the medical records department. Responsibilities included budget development,
implementation and accountability. Accomplishments include:

Grew clinical team from 15 to 32 clinicians in three years.

•  Developed Multi-Cultural Treatment Team.

Increased annual third party revenue by 70%; increased annual contract revenue by 65%.

Contracts with the Department of Social Services; the Department of Mental Health in
conjunction with the Professional Parent Advocacy League; the Department of Education
and the Community Partnerships for Children andHeadStart.

•  Organized a successful site visit forre-liccnsure from the Department ofPublic Health
(DPH) as well as the Council on Accreditation (CCA).

•  Reorganized Medical Records to meet DPH and CCA standards; reorganize claims
support resulting in increased revenue received forser\'iccs rendered and significantly
reduced write-offs.

•  Participated on the HIPAA Task force-assisted in the development and implementation
of the federally mandated Health Information Portability and Accountability Act policies
and procedures for MSPCC.
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Clinic Director, Hyannis, MA 9/95-12/99
Responsible for the turnaround management of a regional clinic serving children and families on
Cape Cod. The clinic had experienced over 70% turnover, significant reduction in revenue, and a
scries of very negative stories in the local media because of the agency's response to the
implementation of managed care. Responsible for marketing and public relations; redevelopment
of a high quality clinical treatment team; as well as, increasing revenue and program
development. Accomplishments include:

•  Grew clinical team from 12 to 37 in three years.

•  Streamlined intake procedures to increase access to services and reduce wait times.

•  Increased annual third party revenue by 80%.

•  Developed consultative relationships with two of Cape Cod's most well respected
children's services providers.

•  Developed first private/public partnership between MSPCC and a private practice to
increase the availability of specialty clinical services.

•  Developed internship program for Master's level clinician candidates.

North Essex Community Mental Health Center, (NECMHC, Inc.),
Newhuryport/Haverhill, MA

Employee Assistance Professional, Clinical Social Worker, 9/93-7/95

NECMHC, Inc., Newburyport/Haverhill, MA
Clinical Social Worker - Intern, 5193-9/93

Worcester Children's Friend Society, Worcester, MA

Clinical Social Worker - Intern, 9/92-4/93

The Jernherg Corporation, Worcester, MA

EAPCaseManagement Supervisor, 4190-4/93
EAP Case Manager, 2/89-4/90

The Carol Schmidt Diagnostic Center and Emergency Shelter, YOU, Inc., Worcester,
MA, 10/85-2/89

Clinical Counselor I 8l II

KDIJCATION

University of Connecticut, School of Social Work, West Hartford, CT
Masters in Social Work, Casework/Administration, August 1993

Clark University, Worcester, MA
Bachelor of Arts, Govemment/Human Services, May 1985

PROFESSIONAL LICENSE

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, MA # 1026094

TEACHING and PUBLICATION

Mental Health Management, New England College, Graduate School
Summcr2007

Madden, Lisa K., 2009. Targeted Case Management Implementation at the Center for Life
Management, Compliance Watch, volume 2, issue 3, p. 8-10.

References avaHahle upon request
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Chris Mumford

Experience

2017-present Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH

Chief Operating Officer

■  Responsible for all administrative aspects within service programs including budget
development and management, program planning, working with the Community Affairs
Office to develop revenue streams, reporting to funders, and resource deployment.

■  Works with program management to insure adequate staff resources by promoting a work
environment in which staff are supported, offered rich career development opportunities,
and held accountable for performance.

■  Develop, monitor, and oversee Riverbend facilities, in conjunction with the Chief Financial
Officer, to provide adequate, safe space for clients and staff.

■  Work with Chief Financial Officer to develop and oversee a strategic plan for Riverbend
facilities.

•  Develop, monitor, and oversee Riverbend technology to provide efficient service delivery,
documentation, and revenue generation.

•  Maintain agency credibility in the community through strong working relationships with
other area agencies, working with development and public relations staff to feature positive
agency profile, and preparing reports to monitor efficiency and effectiveness of services for
internal and external stakeholders.

•  Oversee creation of policies and procedures for existing/future services.
•  Establish and maintain relationships with Insurers and managed care companies as needed.

■  Attend agency, community and State meetings to represent Riverbend.
■  Update and maintain professional knowledge and skills by attending relevant workshops

and trainings, actively reviewing professional literature and seeking ongoing supervision and
peer discussion.

•  Work with the Bureau of Behavioral Health to implement Bureau directives and
programming to meet Bureau expectations.

■  Communicate agency values to staff and provide positive leadership to help staff view
change as an opportunity.

■  Engage in strategic and tactical planning to identify and maximize opportunities to meet
community need.

•  Maintain positive working relationships with colleagues, direct reports, and others within
Riverbend and in the community.

■  Act, along with CFO, as CEO in his/her absence.
Work effectively with other members of senior management and share in coverage of
management and clinical responsibilities.

2013-present Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH

CSP Program Director

•  Provides leadership for program of-1200 adults with severe and persistent mental illness.
•  Direct Supervision for 12 Managers overseeing a program of 80+ staff.
•  Assures quality of clinical services of the program.
•  Clinical Program development including integrated primary care, therapeutic evidenced-based

practices, issues of engagement, and Trauma-informed service delivery.
■  Manages program operations to optimize efficient service delivery including policy development.
■  Manages resources to obtain positive financial outcomes including budget development.
■  Actively engages in collaboration, teamwork, and relationship building to optimize the quality of

services, program and agency effectiveness, and employee job satisfaction.
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Collaboration with other program directors to assure positive and effective program interface.
Works with senior management to assure program needs are met with regard to personnel, IT, space,
and financial resources.

Establishes and maintains strong working relationships with 5 West, NHH, NFI, NH State Prison,
MCHOC.and BBH.

Assures compliance with documentation and other quality assurance requirements.
Oversees requirements of State law, rules and regulations including the implementation of the
Community Mental Health Agreement as it relates to the program.
Consultation and education across the agency regarding the Adult Needs & Strengths Assessment,
Supported Employment, ACT, DBT, and IMR.
Member of Agency Committees: Clinical Records, Evidence-based practices. Investment and Quality
Council.

Key participant in the program move to the West Street location including needs assessment, design
and coordination of the move.

Ongoing development and training around working with Borderline Personality Disorder.
Agency trainer for Adult Eligibility Determinations.

2009-2013 Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH

Clinical Team Leader

Provided clinical and administrative supervision to 7 Adult Clinicians.
Provided licensure supervision to clinicians from other programs.
Developed and provided staff training on the topics of Borderline Personality Disorder (BPD) and
Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT).
Managed referrals for individual and group psychotherapy at CSP.
Managed the intake schedule for CSP.
Reviewed all forensic referrals to the CSP program and authorizing admission to CSP intake.
Served as interim NHH liaison and back-up to the NHH liaison.
Assured program adherence to HeM 401 regarding intakes and eligibility.
Provided individual psychotherapy to a caseload of up to 20.
Exceeded benchmark by over 275 hours since 2009 averaging more than 15 hours over per
quarter.

Ser\'ed on the Clinical Records Committee.

Coordinated internship opportunities at CSP.
Trained as a trainer for the Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment (ANSA) tool in 2011.

2003-2009 Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH

Adult Clinician I, 11, & III

■  Provided individual and group psychotherapy for adults suffering with Severe and Persistent
Mental Illness.

Completed weekly assessments for State-supported services (eligibility determinations).
Provided linkage to outside resources for those CSP applicants determined not eligible for CSP.
Worked closely with interdisciplinary team.
Co-led DBT Skills group for over 5 years.
Proficiency with Dialectical Behavioral Therapy.
Developed and provided staff training sessions for DBT.
Developed and facilitated a Men's Anger Management Group.
Developed and facilitated a Social Skills Group for adults with psychotic disorders.
Provided short-lenn and solutions-focused individual psychotherapy with the privately insured
client population (those not eligible for CSP) at Riverbend Counseling Associates part-time for
about 18 months.

2002-2003 Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH
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Residential Psychiatric Rehabilitation Specialist

■  Provided Mental Illness Management Services (MIMS) to adults with severe mental illness living
in supported housing.

■ Medication support services

2002-2003 New Hampshire Hospital Concord, NH

Psychiatric Social Worker Internship
•  Initial assessments on an admission unit.

•  Discharge coordination with numerous community agencies.

2001-2002 Carroll County MentalHealth Wolfeboro, NH
Center

Adult Clinician Internship

■  Individual psychotherapy with adults living with severe mental illness.
■  Emergency Services assessment, intervention, and linkage.
■  Facilitated voluntary and involuntary psychiatric hospitalizations.

Participation in DBT Skills group

Education

2001-2003 University of New Hampshire Durham, NH

Master of Social Work

■  Magna Cum Laude

1994-1998 University of New Hampshire Durham, NH

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology

■  Cum Laude

Llcensure

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker

■ March 17, 2007
■  License #1367

■  Provision of licensure supervision since 2007.

References

References are available on request.
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CRYSTAL A.WELCH

CAREER PROFILE

Experienced Chief Financial Officer/ Director of Finance & HR Administration, serving non-profit missions for over twenty
years. Possesses solid leadership, communication and interpersonal skills to establish rapport with all levels of staff and
management as well as outside resources and community partners. Strong qualifications in developing and implementing
financial controls and processes to improve efficiency, productivity and cost control.

CORE QUALIFICATIONS

Accounting & Financial Management Financial Analysis & Reporting
Board Committee Documentation & Planning Risk Management
Human Resources & Payroll Capital Campaigns
Grant Management Investments
Audit Business Planning & Analysis
Projection Modeling Building Construction 8i Renovations
Budgeting Financing and Insurance

KEY INVOLVEMENTS

o

o  Prepare, by way of import and export functionality to/from systems, distribute and present; all financial, cash
management and investment reports on a monthly and annual basis

o  Prepare and distribute departmental financials
Prepare and administer the annual operational, capital, grant and project budget(s) ensuring compliance with all
federal, state, local and contractual guidelines are adhered to if appropriate

o  Develop ancillary rates and negotiate rates/grants with state and local agencies
o Maintain and recommend to the CEO, Board and Board Committees on policy and procedures,

quality/compliance and risk management issues
o  Develop contracts with banks, vendors, and external providers of contracted services
o  Serve as a member of the Executive Management Team and Management Team
o  Develop and maintain a Capital Improvement Plan in conjunction with Facilities Manager
o  Banking administration to include relationship maintenance and cash management
o  Keep accurate books of account while maintaining internal controls and proper accounting cycle
o  Ensure that all invoices and purchase orders have adequate controls installed and that substantiating

documentation is approved and available such that all purchases may pass independent and governmental audits
prior to disbursement

o  Ensure the monthly reconciliation of Balance Sheet accounts as well as reconciliation to other departmental
systems occur and reconcile

o  Direct annual audit
o  Provide leadership, supervision and oversight to finance and human resources staff
o  Serve as liaison to the Finance, Retirement, Compliance, Investment and Endowment oversight committees
o  Prepare, distribute and present all appropriate information to Board Committees on an ongoing basis including

preparation of resolutions that may be necessary
o Attend Board of Trustees and Directors meetings and provide written and verbal financial reports to include

monthly income and expense, cash flow, balance sheets, capital, endowment, fiscal and multi-year projections
and any other reports needed to assess the financial position of the organization.
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SPECIAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

o  Implementation of various software - most notable the implementation of F9, an Excel reporting product that
allows direct linking to the general ledger. It immediately pulls data, in real time, to financial and data reports.
Setup this system and financial reporting package as well as built the linkage back to the general ledger system

o  Successfully create RFP for a new Investment firm, HRIS/payroll system as well as a new Business Insurance
broker assuring follow-through on objectives and implementation, ensuring an outcome of cost effective quality
support

o  Successfully implement analysis and reconciliation processes related to retirement and payroll to ensure timely
and accurate reporting as well as adherence to ERISA guidelines

o Creation of current fiscal year projections as well as multi-year projections and scenarios,
o Create and implement a Cash Flow Forecasting model, to assist in strategic and financial decision making of the

CEO, Finance Committee and the Boards
o  Successful owner and manager of several rental properties over the course of 10+ years - this includes:

o multiple finance projects
o  orchestrate many large scale renovation projects
o management of tenants
o  insurance negotiation - including claims management

o  "Flipped" several homes utilizing private financing arrangements
o  Implement improvements in processes, procedures and workflows that result in improved internal controls and

efficiencies as well as a reduction in staffing needs
o  Implement allocation method to further define and analyze business segments
o Multiple years of clean audits

WORK EXPERIENCE

Chief Financial Officer 10/2021-Current
Riverbend Communit)' Mental Health

Chief Financial Officer 2017-10/2021
New Hampshire Public Radio - Concord, NH

Director of Finance 2016- 2017

Manchester Community Health Center - Manchester, NH

Director of Finance/CFO 2009 —2016
Spaulding Youth Center - Northfield, NH

Accounting Manager/Controller 2000- 2008
Tree Care Industr)' Associadon - Manchester, NH

EDUCATION

B.S. Accounting/Finance (2005) Southern New Hampshire University Manchester, NH

MBA Business Administration Southern New Hampshire University Manchester, NH
♦Temporarily on -hold
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Kevin Irish

Riverbend Community Mental Health

▼ PROFILE

Accomplished business professional with 20+ years of administrative leadership and hands-on
technical experience. A creative problem solver who thinks strategically and owns the responsibility
for project results. Works from a demonstrated ability to merge technology with business needs,
while maintaining a balance between the organizations operational and financial goals. An effective
liaison with solid communication skills who can work with individuals and teams across all levels of an
organization, with a strong advocacy for collaboration building.

▼ PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Chief Information Officer
Riverbend Community Mental Health: Concord, NH 04/2019 - Present
A member of Capital Region Health System, with 14 locations and 430 employees

□  Provide strategic vision and leadership \with regard to the Agency's use of technology including planning, implementing
and maintaining best practices for EMR, ERP, and HRMS technology in a healthcare setting while aligning with agency
functions

□  Responsible for researching and interpreting federal and state regulations related to information technology (HIPAA,
DHHS, etc.) and ensuring that Agency policies and procedures adhere to such mandated regulations and that staff are
educated with regard to their implementation

□  Lead management and support services for LAN/WAN functions including servers, desktops, laptops, wireless
technologies, MFP's, and other hardware and software configurations

□  Responsible for managing security services, appliances, and compliance (CMC, NIST) on the network and external
connections including permissions, anti-virus software, firewalls, intrusion detection/prevention systems, email security
software, and other related components

□  Develop and manage the Operational/Capital technology budget for the Agency including hardware, software, host
services, telehealth, contract managed services, and personnel

□  Co-leadership of the IT Governance Committee, establishing the alignment of technology with new and existing
business objectives, including federal and state led regulations: held in accordance to established corporate policy

Chief Information Officer 03/2018-03/2019
Addison County Visiting Nurse Association : Middlebury, Vermont

□. Serve as the primary resource for clinical and administrative staff related to issues surrounding the use of the
Electronic Health Record, and works with vendors to ensure the effective and efficient functionality of the Agency's
health database software

□  Responsible for maintaining and managing vendor relations and technology related third party support contracts, in
order to ensure proper implementations and support metrics are being met

□  Develop and manage the technology budget for the Agency including hardware, software, host services, telehealth,
contract managed services, and other related expenditures

a  Responsible for maintaining formal inventory of hardware and software, including licensure and related information, for
the Agency's technological assets
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Interim - Director of Technology 10/2017-02/2018
Tower Health - Jennersville Hospital: West Grove, Pennsylvania
A member of the Tower Health Network, with 6 hospitals and 14,000 employees

a  Serve as the Interim Director of Information Technology supporting technology transitions for hospitals purchased from
Community Health Systems. Inc.

a Manage project risks, issues/problems, and cross channel Integration for Laboratory, Radiology, and Emergency
Services; the primary technical and analytical resource for EMR questions, user issues, and system development

□  Responsible for the evaluation and correction of clinical documentation and associated billing, working through both
local and corporate based administrations

□  Realign the resident IT vision to reflect the newly adopted strategies developed by the Health Networks Central Office

Chief Information Officer / VP of Operational Services 05/2011 -09/2017
Lakes Region General Hospital : Laconia, New Hampshire

a Accountable for the planning and management of the IT. Telecom, Facilities, Bio-Medical, and Environmental
Compliance annual budgets, including both operating and capital funding; inclusive of 78 departmental employees,
and 10 direct management reports

□  Technical sponsor for the selection, purchase, and implementation of the Cerner/PeopleSoft Health Information
System — managing project leads, resource assignments, budget, and overall results

□  Developed and executed divisional reorganization plan, realigning personnel to newly created technical, analytical, and
management roles; supporting updated Service Level Agreements to all areas of Ambulatory Care & Practice
Management

□  Established a Tele-Health service in the hospitals immediate and adjoining coverage areas, leading the effort in
collaboration with the Director of Hospitalists and physician members of the Orthopedics group

□  IT Security Compliance Officer responsible for CMS and DMV regulatory compliance; including the annual financial
audit and all cybersecurity related audits and rules

Chief Information Officer 04/2005-05/2011
Heywood Hospital : Gardiner. Massachusetts

a  Senior Team member responsible for all 7x24 technical operations, including all enterprise IT and telecommunication
functions, CRM related activity through client portal services, and analytic reporting

□  Leader to enterprise wide efforts in the development, documentation, testing, and review of business continuity and
disaster recovery plans; meeting regulatory requirements for both CMS and JCAHO; IT Security Compliance Officer

□  Negotiation and signature authority for all IT master purchase contracts and lease agreements

□ Organizational lead to the procurement and installation of technical, administrative, and bio-medical equipment
engineered for use in a newly constructed 72,000sf addition on the hospitals main campus

□  Responsible for maintaining inventory of hardware and software licensure, covering all the hospitals technological
assets, including depreciation schedules and value based operational reinvestments

▼ EDUCATION

B.S. Daniel Webster College A.S. Champlain College
Major: Information Technology Management Major: Computer Science
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid fixDm

this Contract

Lisa K. Madden President & CEO $215,000 0% $0.00

Christopher Mumford COO $135,000 0% $0.00

Crystal Welch CFO $140,000 0% $0.00

Kevin Irish CIO $130,000 0% $0.00
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Lerl A. ShlUaMl*

CommJttioDcr

Kiijt & Fo.x
Dlmtor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

prVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-9S44 I>800-852O34S Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TOD Access: l-SOO-735-2964 u-n-i>'.dhbs.nb.Kov

June 18. 2021
I

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council |

State House - |
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 j

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing Retroactive contracts with the vendors listed below to continue providing
supported housing to people who have serious mental illness and lack permanent housing options
in the community, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation
by $6,285,780 from $9,998,650 to $16,284,430 and extending the completion dales from June
30, 2021 to June 30, 2022 effective retroactive to July 1, 2021. upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Goverrx}r and Council on August 28, 2019, Item
#14 and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on December 2, 2020. item
#13.

Vendor Name

Current

Individual

Vendor Price

Limitation

{¥rtthout shared
portion)

Current

Shardd Price

Limitation

Current Individual

Vendor Price

Limitation

(indudes shared
portion)

Increase

(Oecroaso) to.
Individual

Vendor Price

Limitation

Incroaao

Shared Price

LImltaUon

Revised

Individual

Price

Limitation

(i/ydudos
shared portion)

Northern Human

Services
S161.533

1

1

1

Total Current

Shared Price
Limitation,

$7.2M,975

i

% 7,450,508 $ 93,472

Total shared

Price

LImllation

$4,486,300

$12,030,280

West Central

Services. Inc.

(dA)/aWesl
Central)

$161,533 S 7,450,508 $93,472 $12,030,280

The Lakes

Region Mental
• Health Center,

Inc. (dba
Genesis)

$506,655 $ 7.795,630 $ 438.594 $12,720524

Riverbend

Community
Mental Health

Center. Inc.

$408,605 $ 7,697,580 $ 268,477 $12,450,357

Monadnock

Family Services
$161,533 $ 7,450,508 $ 93,472 $12,030,280

The Community
Coundl ot

Nashua. N.H.

$416,612 S 7,705,587 $267,100 $12,458,987

• 77i« Dtporimtnt of HeoUh and Human Scroicat' M'ttsion it to join co/>imi;/ii/iC4 and fotnilict
in providing opporltniilitt for eitiztnt to ochitvt health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2DA0A1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

His Excellency. Governor Chr1stopl>er T. Sununu
and the HonoraUe Council

Page 2 of 3

d/b/a Greater

Nashua Mental

Health

The Mental
htaalth Center of

Greater

Manchester.

Inc.

S408.60S$ 7.697,580$ 268,477$12,450,357

Seacoast Mental

Health Center.

Inc.

$161,533$ 7,450,508$ 93.472$12,030,280

Behavioral

Health &

Developmental
Services of

Strafford

County, d/b/a
Community
Partners of

Stratford County

$161,533

-

$ 7.450,508$ 93,472$12,030,280

The Mental
Health Center

for Southern

New Hampshire
d/b/a Center for

Life

Management

$161,533$7,450,508$93,472$12,030,280

TOTALS$2,709,675$7,288,975$9,098,650$1,790,480$4,486,300$16,284,430

Funds in the following account are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department did not have the fully executed
contract documents In time for Governor and Executive Council approval to prevent the current
contracts from expiring.

The Department contracts for services through the Community Mental Health Centers,
which are designated by the Department, to serve the towns and cities within a designated
geographic region, as outlined in NH Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C, and NH
Administrative Rule He-M 40.3- Through this Agreement, the Community Mental Health Centers-
will continue to provide direct services to individuals with severe mental illness who are in need
of stable housing through the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program.

The purpose of this request is to increase funding to continue support for housing
vouchers, staff allocations in designated regions, background checks and travel to better support
the provision of the US Housing and Urban development's Section 811 Project Rental Assistance
Program, and to continue the Integrative Housing Voucher Program.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Approximately 525 individuals will be served from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.

Community Mental Health Centers will continue providing services in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 406, Housing Bridge Subsidy program. The program provides housing
support and case management services, bridging the gap from when ari individual is placed on
the Housing Choice Voucher waitlist to when the individual Is approved and receives the voucher.

The average wait time for a Housing Choice Voucher is nine (9) to 11 years. The
Interagency Partnership Agreement between the Department and the New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority has been in effect since May 5, 2014. and allows individuals enrolled in either
housing voucher program to be placed on a speclal preference list that reduces the wait time for
Housing Choice Vouchers to two (2) to three (3) years. Services are provided within Individual's
home communities and Indude facilitating linkages to mental health services and community
support services in order to obtain stable housing and decrease the risk of hospitalization.

The Department will continue monitoring contracted services using the following
performance measures:

•  Percentage of individuals receiving housing services as requested within 14 days
of referral.

•  Percentage of individuals housed within 30 days of referral.

•  Percentage of individuals who remain in stable housing for one (1) year or longer.

•  Percentage of complaints regarding services that are investigated and closed within
.15 days of receipt of the complaint.

•  Percentage of individuals receiving services who make a successful transition to
permanent housing within 18 months of enrollment. ,

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language of the original
.-contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to lour (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Individuals with
severe mental illness and/or involvement with the Department of Corrections will not have the
resources to pay for rental housing and supports and the State will be at risk of not fulfilling the
requirements of the Community Mental Health Agreement.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Loh A. Shibinette

Commissioner'



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2DA0A1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

DepartJTwnt of H««Rh and Human Sarvlcai
FINANCIAL DETAILS

06-06-»2-d2201M117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100%Ganaral Fundt>

Northrn Huwn Strvlc— (Vttxiof Codt 177222^004)

Stale

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Tide Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >60.061 >0 t68.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 >93.472 >0 >93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >0 >93.472 >93.472

SuMotal >161.533 >93.472 >255.005

West Central Sefvieea DBA Weet Central Behavioral Health (Vendor Code 177SS4-B001)

State

Fiscal Year

Class / ■

Account CbssTlUe Activilv Code

Budget
/Vnount

increase/

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Budget

Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Sen/ices 92204117 >66.061 >0 >68.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >93.472 >0 >93,472

2022 102/S00731 Conlmcts tor Prooram Services 92204117 >0 >93.472 >93.472

Sut>-totai >161.533 >93.472 >255.005

1 ahM Ran Ion Mental Health Center, inc. DBA Geneele Behavtoral Heatth (Vendor Code 1$44ao.eooi

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title ActiviN Code

Budget
Amount

increase/

(Decrease)

Amouni

Revised Budget
Amouni

2020 102/500731 firwitmrt* tor Proflram Services 92204117 >66,061 >0 >66.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >436.594 >0 >438.584

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >0 >438.594 >438.594

SutHOlal >506.655 - >436.594 >945.249

Rtveft>end Conwnuntty Memal Health, inc. (Verwior Code 177192-W001)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title Activilv Code

Budgel
/Vnount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
/Unount

2020 102/500731 Contracis for Prooram Services 92204117 >142,128 >0 >142.126

2021 102/500731 Contracls for Prooram Services 92204117 >266.477 .  >0 >266.477

2022 ' 102/S00731 Contracis for Prooram Services 92204117 ' >0 >266.477 >266.477

Sut>-lotal >408.605 >266.477 >675.082

Vandor cede 177610-B00SI

Slate

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Deaease)
Amount

Revised Budget
/Vnount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >68.061 >0 >88.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >93.472 >0 >93,472

2022 102/500731 rnntrjif.t* tor Prooram Senrlces 92204117 >0 >93.472 >93.472

Sut>-tolai >161.533 >93.472 >255.005

rnmfiMinHw rniinrll nf NMhita NH A/wictor Cod« 154112-8001)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title Activity Code

Budget
Amount

increase/

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >149,512 >0 >149,512

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >267.100 >0 >267.100

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >0 >267.100 >267.100

Sub-lotal >416.612 >267.100 >683,712

■Tt«* r*ni»r nf nrcatar ManchMtttr. Inc. (Vandor Cede 177184^001)

State
Fiscal Year

Class/
Account Class Title /^clMty Coda

Budgel
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

/Vnount
Revised Budget

/Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 >142.128 >0 >142.128

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 92204117 >268.477 >0 >268,477

2022 102/500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 >0 >266.477 >266,477

Sutvtotal >408.605 >268.477 >675.082

Pase 1 of 1
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Slate

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title AclMtv Code

Budget
Amount

Incraese/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Controcts (or Prooram Services 92204117 S68.061 $0 $69,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102^00731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 $0 $93,472 $93,472

Sub-totol S161.533 $93,472 $255,005

rj«i«ntmltv Pantntra of StraWord Countv fVeodor Code 177279-6002)

Stole Class/

Account Class Title Activitv Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services ' 92204117 $69,061 $0 $69,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 S93.472

2022 102/500731 retracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 $0 $93,472 $93,472

Sub-total $161,533 $93,472 $255,005

Slate Class/

Account Class Title /^cthfttv Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 $69,061 $0 .  $66,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts tor Prooram Services 92204117 $93,472 $0 $93,472

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92204117 $0 $93,472 $93,472

Sut>-total $161,533 $93,472 $255,005

To1»t Family Support Sarvlcts $2,709,675 $1,790,490 U.509.15S

Funding Amount Shared by Vendore as (oDowa:

bs.95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT <100% General Funda)

Increase/

Slate Class/ Budget (Decrease) Revised Budget

Fiscal Year Account Class Tide ActMtv Code Amount /Vnount /Unouni

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92234t17 • S2.902.675 $0 $2,902,675

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92234117 $4,496,300 $0 $4,496,300

2022 102/500731 Cnnrmrt-s far Prooram Services 92234117 $0 $4,496,300 $4,496,300

Sutvtotal $7,299,975 $4,496,300 $11,775,275

GrandTotal $9,998,650 $6,285,780 $16,264,430

Page 1 of 1
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 68D47ABF-653A-4312-A2A2'729CBAAC9A54

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Rtverbend
Community Mental Health, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 28. 2019, (Item 14). as amended on December 2. 2020, (Item" #13). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the.ContracI as amended and

. in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Section 2..
Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2022

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$12,450,357

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A. Amendment #2.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2 to read:

2, This contract is directly funded with 100% General Funds, anticipated to be available based
upon continued appropriation.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions. Precedent to Paymerit, Section 7 to read;

7.. This Agreement is one (1) of ten (10) Agreements with Vendors that will provide services
for the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M
406. Among the ten (10) Agreements, there is a limit of 500 vouchers across all agencies
utilizing voucher funds. Accordingly, the statewide total pricejimitation for vouchers among
all ten (10) agreements is $2,802,675 for SFY 2020. $4,348,800 for SFY 2021 and
$4,486,300 for SFY 2022. The total price limitation for the lifetime client stipend among all
teri (10)" agreements is $137,500. The combined statewide total shared price limitation
among all agreements Is $11,637,775. which is included in Form P37, General Provisions.
Block 1.8, Price Limitation.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 8. Subsection 8.1, to
read:

8.1.Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
-  fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as
specified In Exhibit B-1 Budget through Exhibit .B-3. Amendment #2 Budget, which does
not include the price limitation available for vouchers or the lifetime.client stipend.

-OS
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7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 12 to read;

12. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required-reports or documentation-as
identified in Exhibit A • Amendment #2, Scope of Services, and In Exhibit B, Methods and

Conditions Precedent to Payment,

8. Add Exhibit B-3. Amendment #2 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. ,
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2021 r upon Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/16/2021

Date .

y^^OocuSlgMd by:

1  fiui

NaS'e'™3a'Tox
Title: Di rector

Riverbend Community Mental Health Center, Inc.

6/16/2021

Date

OMuS>gn«d by:

y,%4^

Title: President & C£0

SS-2020-DBH-01 .HOUSE-04-A02 Riverbend Communily Mental Health, Inc.
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/16/2021

DoceSIOAt^ tff.

Date . Name:
Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the 'Govemor and Executive Council of
the.State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:' {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title;

SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-D4-Ap2 Riverbend Community Menial Health. Inc.
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

'1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency.to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the

contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact

on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify

Service priorities and expenditune requirements under this Agreement so as to

achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the

Contractor as a Subrecipient in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300

1.4. , For the purposes of this agreement, any reference to days shall mean business

' days. ,

1.5.' The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement in accordance with NH

Administrative Rules. CHAPTER He-M 400. Community Mental Health, He-M"^

400, PART 40,6, Housing Bridge Subsidy Program (HBSP), hereby referenced
as He-M 400, PART 406.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide a shared caseload with a maximum of 500
housing vouchers among all vendors.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide scattered-site housing and ensure full community
integration.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure services provided through this Agreement are not

subcontracted by the Contractor.

2. Scope of Services

2.1.. The Contractor shall review HBSP applications completed by agency staff for
individuals currently connected to the Community Mental Health Center

(CMHC) to ensure all application requirements are met.

2.2. The Contractor assist individuals, who are not currently connected to the
CMHC, with cpmpteting HBSP applications.

2.3. The Contractor shall complete criminal background checks and registered •

criminal offender checks for all individuals applying for HBSP and the New

Hampshire Section 811 Project Rental Assistance program. „

RIvofbend Community Menial Heallh, Inc. Exhibit A ' ■" Contractor initials
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2.4. The Contractor sha[l send completed applications to the Department, in
accordance with He-M 400 PART 406.

2.5. The Contractor shall facilitate enrollment into the HBSP for individuals

approved by the Department for HBSP services by;

2.5.1. Contacting the referring agent, which may include, but Is not limited to,
any agency or hospital applying, on behalf of an individual for, or
individual who.applies directly to the HBSP, to schedule a meeting in
an agreed upon setting, with the individual and the individual's support

■/ team, which may include, but Is not limited to the Individual's:

2.5.1.1. Guardian or other involved family member, as appropriate.
2.5.1.2." Referring agent.
2.5.1.3. Representative payee.•

2.5.1.4. Natural Supports.

2.5.1.5." Identified mental health center representative. .

2.5.2. Assisting the individual with understanding the HBSP, which includes,
but Is not limited to:

2.5.2.1. Tenant rights and obligations.

2.5.2.2. Annual recertification needs.

■ 2.5.2.3. The role of landlords.

2.5.3. Collaborating with the Individual's CMHC treatment team and natural
supports to assess the,individual's Immediate temporary housing and
mental health needs.

2.5.4. Referring, assisting, and connecting Individuals to mental health
treatment services with the Intake Team at the appropriate CMHC, as
requested and needed.

2.5.5. Finalizing individualized housing plans within 15 days from the date of
receiving the approval for services, which includes, but Is not limited to:

2.5.5.1. Benefits eligibility and status.

2.5.5.2. Access or referral.to services as requested and needed, which
may include, but are not limited to:

2.5.5.2.1. Supportive services. .

2.5.5.2.2. Substance use disorder treatment.

'  2.5.5.2.3. Behavioral health care; psychiatric health"
care.

2.5.5.2.4. Primary and medical health care.

Rlvertoend Community Mental Health. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ^ _
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2.6. The Contractor shall initiate housing services for the individual within seven (7)
days of finalizing the.lndlvlduallzed housing plans. The Contractor shall ensure
Individual housing services include, but are not limited to:

2.6.1. Obtaining the Individual's housing history.

2.6.2. Assesslrig the individual's housing and community of choice
preferences.

2.6.3. Assisting the Individual with advocating for CMHC treatment team
engagement to search for appropriate housing units.

2.6.4. Assisting the Individual with Identifying available housing units rent
requirements within the payment standards, as released by the New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) and the U.S. Housing
and Urban Development (HUD), in the Individual's community of
choice.

2.6.5. Assisting the Individual with obtaining, completing .and submitting
housing applications and any adhet^lng to associated procedures, which
may Include," but are not limited to:

2.6.5.1. Providing information to complete credit checks.

2.6.5.2. Providing references.

2.6.5.3. Ensuring compliance with the Fair Housing Act to ensure
reasonable accommodations.

2.6.6. Assisting the individual with contacting potential landlords, as
appropriate or as requested by the individual.

2.6.7. Attending meetings with the Individual and the rental agency or renting
^ landlord to negotiate rent, utilities, and lease provisions, as appropriate
or as requested by the Individual, to ensure the individual secures
leases In their own name, with full rights of tenancy.

■  2.6.8. Ensuring the individual understands fair housing laws.

2.6.9. Assisting the Individual with Identifying initial rental needs and
resources, which include, but are not limited to:

2.6.9.1. Security deposits.

2.6.9.2. Securing utilities.

2.6.9.3. Obtaining furniture.

2.6.9.4. Purchasing groceries.

2.6.10. Ensuring housing selected by the individual meets all HUD Housing
Choice Voucher requirements set forth in the NHHFA Housing Choice

RIvoftjond Community Mental Heallh. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Voucher Administrative Plan, by utilizing the HUD housing quality
standards form to complete Initial and annual inspections. ■

2.6.11. Assisting the Individual with obtaining permanent housing vouchers,
when available.

2.6.12. Assisting Individuals who are not currently connected to the CMHC with
applying for all eligible benefits, which may include, but are not limited-

'  to:

2.6.12.1. Security deposit financial assistance.

2.6.12.2. Assistance with utility payments.

2.6.12.3. Assistance with applying for food stamps.

2.6.12.4. Assistance with applying for Social Security Insurarfce
(SSI) or Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI), as
appropriate.

2.6.12.5. Assistance with the appeal process for SSI or SSDI, as
necessary. \

2.7. The Contractor shall provide housing unit leads In an amount agreed upon by
the Department.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure access to and delivery of housing support services

to all Individuals receiving HBSP services who are not currently connected to

the CMHC. The Contractor shall provide housing support services that may
include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Assistance with:

2.8.1.1. Accessing food needs to decrease food Insecurity.

2.8.1.2. Finding donations for and linkage to apartment furnishing.

2.8.1.3. Keeping utility bills in good standing and providing resources, '
for ongoing utility assistance as needed.

2.8.1.4. Connecting to resources rieeded to move into a new rental

unit and/or store household Items.

2.8.1.5. Advocating for functional support services, which include, but

. are not limited to Choices for Independence and/or other

support services to keep the individual safely housed.

2.8.1.6. Ensuring the Individual continues to be aware of all services

the CMHC is able to provide to assist with maintaining
Independent housing.

— M
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2.8.1.7. Identifying and securing supportive resources for all
Individuals enrolled in HBSP, within the community, which may
include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1.7.1. Peer.support agencies.

2.8.1.7.2. Faith-based groups.

2:8.1.7.3. Transportation services.

2.8.1.7.4. Primary care services.

2.8.1.7.5. Homemaker/personal care services.

2.8.1.7.6. Legal aid.

2.8.2. Mediation with landlords for any problems, damages, infestations, or
other situations which may cause the unit to be unsafe.

2.9. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Housing Specialist and the individual's
CMHG treatment team to ensure the individual has the full support of the team
and has a successful transition onto their Housing Choice Voucher.

2.10. The Contractor shall identify needs, engage supports, and mobilize supports
for each individual through:

2.10.1. Treatrhent team meetings;

2.10.2. Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) team meetings;

2.10.3. Discharge planning meetings when the individual is leaving:

2.10.3.1. New Hampshire Hospital;

2.10.3.2. A Designated Receiving Facility;

2.10.3.3. Glencliff Home; or

2.10.3.4. Transitional Housing Supports;

2.10.4. Self-observations;

2.10.5. Feedback from landlords; and

2.10.6. The Contractor's employed community-based staff.

2.11. The Contractor shall ensure the Housing Specialist remains aware of any
housing status change for the individual, which may include, but is not limited
to legal status or death.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's housing needs continue to be met,
including assisting the individual with housing-related issues relevant to

•DS

RJvflfbend Community Montal Health, inc. Exhibit A "contractor initials ̂
SS-2020-DBH^1.HOUSE^.A02 PofloSofH DateCZHZMl

P



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2DAOA1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

DocuSign Envelope 10: 6dD47A8F*653A*4312-A2A2-729CBAAC9A54

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

Exhibit A

fulfilling lease requirements, for the duration the individual is enrolled in the

HBSP.

2.13. The Contractor shall document and coordinate delivery of community mental
health services that are necessary and the individual has agreed to receive.

2.14. The Contractor shall assist landlords and property managers involved with

HBSP by:

■2.14.1. Ensuring landlords and/or property owners are aware of HBSP .
voucher payments and the process to receive payments.

2.14.2. Assisting with coordinating any needs or changes to the housing unit
or the lease.

2.14.3. Being the point of contact for landlords and/or property owners, and
documenting any interactions or interventions provided as a result of
being the point of contact.

2.14.4. Contacting landlords and/or property owners as needed to assess
current'status of the HBSP individual's rental payments or other
issues, as necessary.

2.14.5. Assisting landlords and/or property owners with transitioning'from
HBSP to Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers.

2.14.6. Ensuring timely HBSP voucher payments to landlords.
f

2.15. The Contractor shall complete annual re-certifications for individuals enrolled
in HBSP, which include, but is not limited to:

2.15.1. Income verification.

2.15.2. Notification to the individual and landlord regarding any changes in
voucher amount.

2.15.3. Inspection of the unit.

2.16. The Contractor shall work with the Department and the NHHFA, annually and
as needed, to ensure each individual has responded to communications from
NHHFA and remains in good standing on the Housing Choice Voucher waitlist.

2.17. The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to permanent-housing by
providing support to individuals and landlords for no less than six (6)
consecutive months after the individual receives a permanent housing voucher.

2.18. The Contractor shall be available to consult with the individual's treatment team
regarding other housing programs, services or assistance, for which individuals

QiCw
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who are waiting for HBSP-supported housing may be eiigible, uniess written
approval to not provide services is granted by the Department.

2.19. The Contractor shali ensure aii complaints regarding HBSP services are
investigated by a complaint investigator within 15 days of receiving the
complaint. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.19.1. All parties relevant to the complaint are interviewed by the cornpiaint
investigator.

2.19.2. The complaint investigator makes a determination as to whether the
complaint is founded or unfounded.

I

2.19.3. The complainant is notified, in writing, of the finding.

2.19.4. All identities of any complainants are kept confidential.

2.19.5. Complainants are aware of the Contractor's process to request an

appeal of findings.

2.19.6. The Department is notified, in writing, of the complaint and the
outcome.

2.20. The Contractor shall maintain a case file for each individual in the program that
includes, but is noj limited to: ■ ■

"2.20.1. Releases of information and consent forms.

2.20.2. Housing and service plans.

2.20.3. Progress and contact notes.

2.20.4. Criminal record check and registered offender search. ■

2.20.5. Guardianship orders, as applicable.

2.20.6. Representative payee orders, as applicable. . ,

2.20.7. Other housing applications, as applicable.

2.20.8. Documentation of service participation.

2.20.9. Any medical, mental health, and/or substance use disorder services
requested and provided.

2-.21. The Contractor shall provide a total stipend of up,-to $250, or the balance
thereof, to individuals in accordance with the following:

2.21.1. The individuals shali be currently enrolled in the HBSP and have not .
been provided all of the $250 stipend if previously enrolled in the HBSP;

2.21.2. The individuals shall have documented housing-related needs, not
being met by other identified resources within the community, as
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essential furnishings, equipment and supplies, including, but not limited
to pots and pans, towels, mattresses, cleaning supplies; and

2.21.3. The Contractor obtains written approval from the Department prior to
disbursing any portion of the stipend.

2.22. The Contractor shall ensure all records are kept for a minimum of seven (7)
years after an- individual leaves HBSP.

2.23. The Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the
Department, at the discretion of the Department.

2.24. The Contractor shall work with the Department to create and enforce

programmatic policies approved by the Department.

3. Phoenix System

3.1 -The Contractor shall work with the Department to submit the following required
data elements via the Department's Phoenix system, ensuring any necessary

system changes are completed within six (6) months from the effective contract

date:

3.1.1. Individual demographic and encounter data, including data on non-

billable individual specific services and rendering staff providers on all

encounters, to the Department's Phoenix system, or its successors, in

the format, content, completeness, frequency, method and timeliness
as specified by the Department. All client data submitted must include

a Medicaid ID number for individuals who are enrolled in Medicaid.

3.1.2. Client eligibility with all Phoenix services in alignment with current

reporting specifications. For an individual's services to be considered

BMHS eligible, SPMI, SMI. LU, SED, and SEDIA are acceptable.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the general requirements for the Phoenix System
are met which Include, but are not limited to:

3.2.1. All data collected in the Phoenix System Is the property of the

Department to use as it deems necessary.

.3.2.2. All submitted Phoenix data files and records are consistent with file

specification and'specification of the format and content requirements

of those files.

3.2.3.' Data shall be kept current and updated In the Contractor's systems as

required for federal reporting and other reporting requirements and as

specified by the Department to ensure submitted data is current.

G
fit
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3.2.4. Errors in data returned to the Contractor shall be corrected and

resubmltted to the Department within ten (10) busine'Ss days.

3.3. The Contractor shall implement review procedures to validate data submitted

to the Department. The review process will confirm the following:

3.3.1. All data Is formatted in accordance with the file specifications;

3.3.2. No records will reject due to illegal characters or invalid formatting; and

3.3.3. The Department's tabular summaries of data submitted by the

■Contractor match the data in the Contractor's system.

3.4.' The Contractor shall meet the following data entry standards:

3.4.1'. Timeliness: monthly data shall be submitted no later than the fifteenth
(15lh) of each month for the prior month's data unless otherwise
approved by the Department, and the Contractor shall review the
Department's tabular summaries within five (5) business days.

3.4.2. Completeness: submitted data must represent at least ninety-eight
percent (98%) of billable services provided, and ninety-eight percent
(98%) individuals served by the Contractor.

3.4.3. Accuracy: submitted service and member data shall conform to
submission requirements for at least ninety-eight percent (98%) of the
records, and one-hundred percent One-hundred percent (100%) of
unique member identifiers shall be accurate and valid.

3.5. The Department may waive requirements for fields on a case by case basis. A
written waiver communication shall specify the items being waived. ' In all
circumstances waiver length shall not exceed 180 ."days; and where the
Contractor fails, to meet standards: the Contractor shall submit a Corrective
Action Plan (CAP) within 30 calendar days of being notified of an issue. After
approval of the CAP, the Contractor shall carry out all aspects of the CAP.
Failure to carry out the CAP may require a subsequent CAP or other remedies,
as specified by the Department.

4. Staffing
4.1. The Contractor shall ensure sufficient Housing Specialist staffing is available
■  , to provide HBSP housing placement and support services to a minimum

number of individuals as determined by the Department in collaboration with
the Contractor and based on available funding.

—M
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4.2. The Contractor shall complete criminal background checks and Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services (SEAS) state registry checks for all staff working
directly with individuals, prior to the individuals beginning work.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure all staff participate in all HBSP trainings conducted
by either NHHFA or the Department.

5. Reporting

5.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly progress reports to the Department, in a
format provided by the Department, no later than five (5) business days after
the conclusion of the month, specifying:

5.1.1. The amount of funds expended and the balance of funds remaining for
HBSP services.

5.1.2. The last name, address, total rent, and HBSP voucher payment
amount for each rental payment made.

5.1.3. The names of individuals who attained a permanent housing voucher
■ or other permanent living arrangemeril and the date for which the

voucher or arrangement became effective and in use by the individual.

5.2.The Contractor shall notify the Department, in writing, each month of:

5.2.1. The namesof individuals who exited the program, the reason, and the
date of exit.

5.2.2. The names of individuals who have passed away, and the date of their
passing.

5.2.3. The date an individual signs a lease, including date of move-in.

5.2.4. Any other changes experienced by the individual including, but not "
limited to, address, permanent housing, and rental amounts.

5.3. The Contractor shall submit annual progress reports to the Department on a
format provided by the Department. The Contractor shall ensure annual reports -

.  include, but are not limited to:

5.3.1. . Barriers experienced by individuals waiting to occupy HBSP supported
housing, including but not limited to:

5.3.1.1.Transportation.

5.3.1.2.Substance use disorder services.

5.3.1.3.Access to mental health services;

5.3.1.4.Access to medical healthcare.

i
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5.3.1.5.Unit safely.

5.3.1.6.Permanent housing transition;

5.3.1.7.Financial hardship.

5.3.2. Barriers experienced by the Contractor.

5.3.3. Resolutions of barriers experienced by the individual and the
.  Contractor. • ■ '

5.3.4. Number of individuals who received an eviction notice due to their

behaviors.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide individual specific HBSP data consistent with the

Data Reporting requirements of this agreement, or othen/vise identified by the
Department, in the format, content, completeness, frequency, method and
timeliness as specified by the Department.

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Contractor shall consult and collaborate with the Department to develop
appropriate perfonnance measures, subject to Department approval.

6.2. The performance measures will be designated to evaluate;

6.2.1. Percentage of individuals receiving housing services.

6.2.2. Percentage of individuals housed within 90 days of approval to receive
services.

6.2.3. Percentage of individuals who remain in stable housing for one (1) year
or longer, who include:

6.2.3.1. Individuals who have experienced homelessness;

6.2.3.2. Individuals who were at risk of homelessness due to eviction;

6.2.3.3. Individuals who were incarcerated; and

6.2.3.4. Individuals who were admitted to NHH.

6.2.4. Percentage of complaints regarding HBSP services that are
investigated and closed within 15 days of receipt of the complaint.

6.2.5. Percentage of individuals receiving services who make a successful
transition to permanent housing within 18 months of enrollment in
HBSP.

— OJ

Riverbend Communiiy Mental Heallh. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor initials
SS.2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A02 Page 11 of 11 Date S/ie/ZtyTl
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September 18. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable CourKil

Slate House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Sole Source emendments to existing contracts with the vendors listed below to
•provide housing bridge subsidy services, by Increasing (he total price limitation by $1,354,971
from $8,643,679 to $9,998,650 of which $7,288,975 is shared among all vendors for rental
assistance, for which there Is no maximum or minimum service volume guarantee, with no change
to the contract completion dates of June 30,2021, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% General Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on August 28. 2019. Item
n)A.

Vendor Narhe Current
Individual
Vendor
Price

Limitation

Current
Shared
Price

Limitation

Current
Individual

Price
Limitation

tncreaee
(Docreaso)

to
Individual
Vendor
Price

Limitation

Increase
(Oocrease)
to Shared

Price
Limitation

Revised
Shared •
Price

Limitation

Revised
Individual

Price
Limitation*

Ncrlhern Human
Services.

$158,600 $6,678,775 $2,733 57.450.'50B

West Central
Services d/b/a
West Centra)

Bohavioral
Heailh

1

$158,800

Total
Shared
Price

Limitation
$6,519,975

$6,678,775 $2,733

Increase to
Shared
Price

Limilation
$769,000

Total
Shared
Price

Liniilatlcn
$7,288,975

$7,450.508-

The Lakes
Region Mental
Health Center.

Inc. d/b/a
Genesis

Behavioral
Health

$158,800 $6,678,775 $347,855 $7,795,630

Rrverbend
Community.

K4enta] Heailh,
Inc.

$331,626
•

$6,851,601 $76,979 $7,697,580

Tht Otpdrtmtut of Htolth and Human S<rvi(tt' Mitthn it to join commutiiiirs and fomilitt
in providing opportuniiits far eiliunt io ochitvt htallh and indtpendtnct.
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Monadnock

Family Services
S15S.800 $6,678,775 $2,733 $7,450,508

Community
Cour^l of

Nashua. NH
d/b/a Greater

Nashua Mental

Health Center'al

Community

Council

S348,8S2 $6,868,827 $67,760 $7,705,687

The Mental.

Hcatih Center of

Greater
$331,626 $8,851,601 $76,979 $7,697,580

Manchester, Inc.
Total Increase to Total

Seacoasl Mental

Health Center.
Inc.

$158,800*
Shared

Price

Limitation

$6,519,975

$6,678,775 $2,733
Shared

Price

Limitation

$769,000

Shared
Price

LImllation

$7,288,975.

$7,450,508

Behavioral

health &

Developmental
Svs of Slrafford

Counly.lnc..
d/b/a

Community
Partners of

Stratford County

$158,800 $6,678,775 S2.733 $7,450,508

TheMenlal

Health Center

for Southern

New Hampshire
d/b/a CIM

Center for Life

Management

$158,800
•

$6,678,775 $2,733 • $7,450,508

Total: $2,123,704 $6,619,075 $8,643,679 $565,971 $769,000 $7,288,975 $9,998,650**

* Represents the Tola) Revised Shared Price Limitation plus the respective individual Price Limitation.

** Represents the Total Current individual Price Limitation plus Total Irtcrease/Oecrease to Individual Price Limitation

plus the Total Increase/Dec/ease to Shared Price Limitation.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021 with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state Hscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contracts were originally approved as sole
source.and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labeled as sole source. The
Community Mental Health Centers provide direct services to individuals leaving New Hampshire
Hospital who are in need of stable housing. The Community Mental Health Centers provide
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housing support services to adults .with severe mental illness who lack safe and permanent
housing options In the community through the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program.

The purpose of this request is to increase funding to support additional housing vouchers,
staff allocations in designated regions, background checks and travel to better support the

. provision of the US Housing and Urton Oevalopmenl's Section 811 Project Rental Assistance
Program, add a lifetime stipend for clients' housing related costs, and to implement the pilot
program called the Integrallve Housing Voucher Prograrh.

Approximately 100 additional Individuals will be served from the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval to June 30. 2021, in addition to the 425 who are currently receiving
services'.

• The contractors will provide services In accordance with NH Administrative Rule .He-M
408. Housing Bridge Subsidy program. The program provides housing support services, as well
8S case management services for individuals who othen^se do not currently have a case
manager. The Contractors (xovide services within irtdividuals' home communities, which include
facilitating linkages to mental health iservicds arid community support services in order to obtain
stable,housing and decrease the risK of hospitalizatlon.

The Integrallve Housing Voucher Program will provide housing support services to
individuals who have had involvement in the criminal justice system and who are transitloning to
the community. The Contractor responsible to implement the pilot program vtrill also facilitate
linkages to mental health services and community support services.

The Housing Bridge Subsidy Program and Integrative Housing Voucher Programs serve
as a bridge to the federal Housing Choice Voucher Program, filling the gap from when an
(ndivldubl Is placed on the Housing Choice Voucher waitlist to when (he Individual is approved
and receives the voucher. The average wait time for a Housing Choice Voucher is nine (9) to
0leven(11) years. The Interagency Partnership Agreement between the Department and the New
Hampshire Housing Finance .Authority has been In effect since May 5. 2014, and allows
individuals enrolled in either housing voucher program to be placed on a special preference list
that reduces the wait time for Housing Choice Vouchers to two (2). to three (3) years.

The Department will monitor contracted services by reviewing;

•  The percent of individuals receiving housing services as requesting within fourteen
(14) days of referral.

•  Percent of individuals housed within 30 days of referral.

•  Percent of individuals who remain In stable housing for one (1) year or longer.;

'• Percent of complaints regarding services that are investigated and closed within
fifteen (15) days of receipt of the complaint.

•  Percent of individuals receiving services who make a successful transition to
permanent housing within 18 months of enrollment;

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language of the original
contracts, (he parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties end
Governor and Council approval. The Department Is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

. Should the Governor and Exacutive Council not authorize this request, individuals with
severe mental illness and/or Involvement with (he Department of Correction will not have the
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His Excelteocy. Gcvamor Christopher T. Sununu
' er^d the HoAOfdble Council

Pepe 4 oU

resources to pay for rental housing and supports and (he State will be at risk of not fulfilling the
requirements of the Community Mental Health Agreement.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds; 100% General Funds.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A.' Shibinelte

Commissioner
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FINANCIAL DETAILS

0$-9S-93-9220tO-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF, HHS:

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100^ Genoffll Fund8)

Sute

FItOl Yosr

CUu/

AcCOVflt CUSS TIM ActMryCode

Budget
Amount

Ineroase/

(Decreeso)
Amouni

Revlsod

Budgot
Amount

2020 102/S00731 Contracts tor Program Sorvices 02204117 568,061 50 '  568,061

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92204117 590.739 52.733 593,472

Sub-toUil 5158,600 52.733 5161.533

W«»l Ctniral S«fvlcM DBA West C«ftinl 6«havlOf«l Haalih (V«ndo< C«<>« I77SM>B001)

StAlP

fi»c«iym/

Class f

Account CUssHUe Activity Code

Budget
Amoura

Incroeso/

(Oecreese)
Amount

Revised

Budget
.  Amouru

2020 102/500731 Contracts tor Program Services 92204117 568.061 SO 568.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts tor Program Services 92204117 590,739 52,733 593.472

SutHotol 5158.600 52,733 5161.533

L«li«t Rtfllon MtnUI HMlth Inc. 06A 6>KgvlOf>i H>«Hh (V^fxiof Cofl* 1 >*4a().B001)

Stole'

Flscoi Yoer

Class/

Account Class TlUa Actlvlly Code

Budget
■ Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
AmoofM

Revised

Budget
Amount'

2020 102/500731 Contracts (orProaram Senrlces 92204117 568.061 SO .  568.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Program Sorvlcas 92204117 590.739 5347.855 5438.594

Sub>ioLa1 ' 5158.800 5347.855 5506.655

Rivarbind Cemmunliy Manlst Haillh, inc. (Vartdor Coda 177102-R001)

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title ActivVy Code

Budget
Amount

Irtcreese/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Budget
Amount

•  2020 102/500731 Conirocw (or Proortm Services 92204117 5142.128 -  50 5t4?.l28

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Program SenHoes 92204117 .5189.498 576.979 5266.477

Sut>-l0(8l 5331.626 576.979 5408.605

Monadnoek FamDy Sarvlcaa(Vandor Coda 177$10^00S)

St^e

Flscoi Year

Class/

Account Class Tlllo Activity Code

Budget -
Amount

tncraase/

(Oeaoase)
ArrrounI

Revised

Budget
Amount

2020 .102/500731 Contracts (or Program Sor^cos 92204117 568.061 SO 568,061

2021 • 102/500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92204117 .  590.739 52.733 593,472

Sut>total 5158.600 52.733 5161,533

Commur^iry Council of Natnui, NH fVander Coda tS4l12>BOOt)

Sute

Flscoi Yeai

Class/

Account Ciess TiOe Activity Code

Budget
Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount .

Revised

Budget
Amount

2020 102/500731 CoiStracts (or Program Services 92204117 5149.512 SO ■ 5149.512

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92204117 5199.340 567.760 5267.100

■ Suthtoiel ' 5348.852 567.760 5416,612

Tha Manul HaSlth Cantar of Graatar MarKhtaiar.trK. (Vandor Coda 1771 aa-BOOl)

Stole

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account Class Title Actlvlly Code

Budget
Amount

Irvcroose/

(Decrease)
Amount

Revlsod

Budget
Amount

•2020 102/500731 Contracts lor Program Services ■  92204117 5142.126 SO 5142.128

2021 102/500731 Cortuads (or Program Services 92204117 5169.498 576.679 5268.477

Sub'totel 5331.826 576.679 5408.805

Pa|c \ pr 2
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9fKM«t HMUh tnc. (V«Hdor Codt 17<OI»ROO<>

Increase/ Revised

Slata Ctaaa/ Budget (Decrease) Budget

Flacal Yaor Account Ctsss Title AcUvily Code /Kmoimt Amount - Amount

2020 102/S00731 Contracts (or Program Services 922041t7 S&S.061 50 S68.061

2021 102/500731 Conirocts (or Prooram Services 92204117 . S90.739 $2,733 593.472

Subtotal SI 59.000 $2,733 5161.533

Commonthr Pamntr* ol Slrtflerd C©un«vtV#ndOi Coda 177J7a-eoe?l

Increese/ Re>4ted

Suia etaas/ Budget (Decreesa) Budget

Flacal Year Account Class Title ActMiyCcde Amount Amount Amouni

2020 102«00731 Contracts (or Program Servkas 92204117 599.061 50 568.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts (or Program Servloes 92204117 S90.739 52.733 593.472

Sub-io(8) S159.900 52.733 •  5161.533

CLM Canur (or LM«'ManM«m*At (Vandor Coda 174116^0011

Incraasa/ Revisod

State Class/ Budget ■ (Decrease) Budget

FImsI Year Account Ctsss Tide ActlvliyCode Amount Amouni ' Amount

2020 102/500731 Contracts (or Program Servicas 92204117 569.061 50 568.061

2021 102/500731 Contracts (orProoram Services 92204117 590.739 52.733 593.472

Sub'toial 5159.800 $2,733 5161.533

Total PomUf Support Sarvtcas it.1t3.704 1595,971 52.709.675

Funding Amounl Shared by Vondora as foOoMs:

O5-95-M-92201(M117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS 06PT OF. HHS:
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICes. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% Ganoral Fonda)

(ncreesa/ Revised

State CUss/ Budget (Oocreate) Budget

Flscol Year Account Class Tide ActMtyCodo Amount' Amount Amount

2020 102/500731 Conirods (or PrtxirBm Services 92234117 1 52.902.675 '  SO 52.602.675

2021 102/500731 Contracts lor PnXKam SeMces '  92234117 53.717,300 5769.000 54.466.300

Sub-total 56.519,975 $769,000 57,266.975

Grand Total iB.643.679 il.3U.971 $9.998.€$0

a»ie 2 at 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

This 1*^ Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
•Amendment #1') is by and between the State of-New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Stale" or "Department") and Riverbend Community Mental Health,
Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation with a place of
business at PO Box 2032, 3 N. Main St.. Concord. NH 03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 28. 2019.-(Item 14). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continual delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing arid the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. • Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$7,697,580.

2. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 1. Provisions Applicabla to All Services. Subsection
1.6. to read:

1.6. The Contractor shall provide a shared maximum of five hundred (500) housing voucheris
among all vendors.

3. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services." Subsection 2.1. Paragraph
2.1.3. to read:

2.1.3. Finalizing individualized housing plans within fifteen (15) days from the date of receiving
the initial referral for services, which includes, but is rK>! limited to:

2.1.3.1. Benefits eligibility and status.

2.1.3.2. Access or referral to services.as requested and needed, which may include, but is
not limited to: •

2.1.3.2.1. Supportive services.

2.1.3.2.2. Substance use treatment; recovery support services.

2.1.3.2.3. Behavioral health care; psychiatric healthcare.

2.1.3.2.4. Primary health care.

4. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.2. to read:

2.2. The Contractor shall initiate individual housing services within seven (7) days of finalizing
the Individualized housing plan. Individual housirig services Include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Obtaining the individual's housing history.

2.2.2. Assessing individual housing preferences.

2.2.3. ' Assisting the Individual with identifying available housing units with rent
requirements within the paymeni siandards as release by the New^ew Haropshire

1
Riverbend Communily Henlal Health. Inc. . Amendmenl#! Contraclor Inilials

107W7U20
SS-2020-D8H-01-HOUSE-04.A0I Page 1 of 5 Dale,:
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New Hampshire Depiartment of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA), in the individual's communities of choice.

2.2.4. Assisting individuals - with obtaining, completing, and submitting housing
applications and any associated procedures, such as credit or reference checks
and compliance vrith the Fair Housing Act to ensure reasonable accommodations.

2.2.5. Assisting individuals with contacting potential landlords.

2.2.6. Attending meetings with the renting agency or renting landlord to negotiate-rent,
utilities, and lease provisions.

2.2.7. Ensuring the individuals secure leases in their own name with full rights of tenancy.

2.2.8. Ensuring individuals understand fair housing laws.

2.2.9. Assisting individuals with identifying initial rental needs ar^t resources which
includes, but Is not limited to;

2.2.9.1. Security deposits.

2.2.9.2. Security utilities.

2.2.9.3. Obtaining furniture.

2.2.9.4. Purchasing groceries.

2.2.10. Ensuring housing selected by an individual meets the U.S. Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). Housing Choice Voucher requirements set forth in the New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Housing Choice Voucher Administrative
Plan, and by utilizir^g the HUD housing quality standards form to complete initial
and annual inspections.

2.2.11. Providing assistance with applying for all benefits for which an individual may be
eligible, which Includes but is not limited to:

2.2.11.1. Security deposit financial assistance.

2.2.11.2. Assistance with utility payments.

2.2.11.3. Assistance with applying for food stamps.

2.2.11.4. Assistance with applying for Social Security Insurance (SSI) or Social
Security Disability Insurance (SSDI). as appropriate.

2.2.11.5. Assistance with appeal processes for SSI or SSDI. as necessary.

2.2.11.6. Assistance with obtaining permanent . housing vouchers, when
available.

'  5. Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.6, Paragraph
2.6.2. to read:

2.6.2. Review each individual's Income annually, and as changes to income are reported to
,. ensure proper calculation of rent in accordance vrith applicable HUD guidelines and to

ensure the individual continues to meet the extremely low income deriniiion as documented
by HUD.

6. Modify Exhibit A. Scope Of Services, by adding Section 2. Scope of Services, by adding Subsection
2.12. to read:

2.12. The Contractor shall woric with the Department to create and enforce programmatic policies
approved by the Department.

jrr2?13. to
X/C-w

•  7. f^dify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services, by adding Subsecti

Rivertjend Community Mental Health, inc. Amendment Contractor irutials
'  JLU/ifl/^U20

SS-2020-DBH-01-HOUSE-04-A01 . Page 2 of 5 Dale ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ^
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

read:

2.13. The Contractor shall provide a lifetime stipend of. up to S250 to individuals who:

2.13.1. Are actively part of the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program.

2.13.2. Have documented housing related needs not being met by other identified
resources within the community.

2.13.3. Have not used all of the allowable $250 stipend while previously participating in the
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Seclion 4, Reporting, Subsection 4.2. by adding Paragraph
4.2.5. to read:

4.2.5. The last name, address, total lifetime stipend amount used, a description of the housir>g
related costs, and who the payment was made to.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices, Section 5. Performance Measures, Subsection 5.2 to read:

•5.2. The performance measures will be designated to evaluate: .

5.2.1. Percent of individuals receiving housing services provided under subsection 2.2. of
this contract.".

5.2.2. Percent of individuals housed within ninety (90) calendar days of referral.

5.2.3. Percent of individuals who do not renr^ln In stable housing for one (1) year or longer
who include:

5.2.3.1. Individuals who have experienced homelessness;

5.2.3.2. .indrviduals who were at risk of homelessness due to eviction; and

5.2.3.3. Individuals who were admitted to NHH.

10. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Seclion 7. to read:

7. ''This Agreement is one (1) of ten (10) Agreements with Vendors that will provide services for
the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program in accordance .with NH Administrative Rule He-M 406.
Among the ten (10) agreernents; (hera Is a limit of 500 vouchers across all agencies utilizing
voucher funds from the State. Accordingly, the statewide total price limilaliori for vouchers
among all ten (10) Agreements is $2,802,675 for SFY20 and $4,348,800 for SPY 21. The total
price limitation for the lifetime client stipend among all ten (10) Agreements is $137,500. The
combined statewide total shared price limitation among all agreements is $7,288,975, which
has been included In Block 1.8 Price Limitation of the General Provisions. P-37.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to.Payment, Section 8.. subsection 8.1 to
read:

.  8.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as
specified in Exhibit 8-1 Budget, and Exhibit B-2, Amendment Budget, which does not
Include the price limitation available for vouchers or the lifetime client stipend;.

12. Modify Exhibit 8-2, Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-2, Amendment #1 Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

-OS

Riverbend Communily Mental Hesilh, Inc. Amendment iiri Contractor Initials
WW7U20

SS-202O-D8H.0l.HOUSe-04-A01 Page 3 of 5 Dale

e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

y-

All term's ar^J conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #iremain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/14/2020

Dale

»r:

—pmn

Name:'^«t3a fox

Title:

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

10/14/2020

Date

G
o«cvti9««< ftr:

/T.

MW>tt»pf4CC-

Namei^'is^ k. Madden
Title: president & ceo

Riverbend Communiiy Mental Heallh, Inc. Amendment
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Services

The preceding Amendmenl. having been review^ by this oifice. is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

—Owutli^kv:

10/19/2020

—owuM^kr

•otCAfmejTC^^

Date Name:<^a^h.enne Pinos

Attorney

I hereby certrfythat the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
■  Title:

Riverbend CommunUy Mental Health, Inc. Amendment
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state GF new HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

. DiyiSION FOR BEHAyiORAL HEALTH

JI9 PtCASANT STREET. CON.CORO. NH 03301
603-37I-9S44 I.800-8S2-3343 Ci(. 9S44

F42:603-27M332 TOO Accm: I•800*733.2964 w««-w.dhhi.nh.gev

August 13. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, NH ,03301

REQUESTED ACTION

'l. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into sole source contracts with the ten (10) vendors identified In the table below
to provide housing bridge subsidy services in an amount not to exceed $8,643,679. of
which $6,519,975 is a shared among all vendors for rental assistance, for which there is
no maximum or minimum service volume guarantee, effective October l. 2019, or upon
.Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30. 2021.
"100% General Funds.

Vendor Vendor

Code

Locations Vendor-

Specific
Price

Limitation

Housing
Bridge
Subsidy

Shared Price

Limitation

Total Price

Limitation

Northern Human

Services

177222-

.  8001
Conway $158,800 $6,519,975 $6,678,775

West Central Services

DBA West Central

Behavioral Health

177654-

B001
Lebanon $158,800 $6,519,975 $6,678,775

The Lakes Region
Menial Health Center,

Inc. DBA Genesis

Behavioral Health

154480-

B001
Laconia $158,800 $6,519,975 $6,678,775

Riverbend Community
Mental Health, Inc.

177192-

R0.01
Concord $331,626 $6,519,975 $6,851,601

Monadnock Family

Services

177510-

8005
Keene $158,800

N

$6,519,975 $6,678,775
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His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. SurMjnu
and Mis Honorable Council
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Community Council of
Nashua. NH

DBA Greater Nashua

Mental Health Center

at Cornmunity Council

154112-

B001
Nashua $348,852 $6,519,975 $6,868,827

The Mental Health

Center of Greater

Manchester. Inc.

177184-

B001
Manchester $331,626 $6,519,975 $6,851,601

Seacoast Mental

Health Center. Inc.
174089-

R001
Portsmouth $158,600 $6,519,975' $6,678,775

Behavioral Health &

Developmental Svs of
Strafford County, Inc..
DBA Community
Partners of Strafford

County

177278-

8002
Dover $158,800" $6,519,975 $6,678,775

The Mental Health

Center for Southern

New Hampshire DBA
CLM Center for Life

Management

174116-

. R001
Derry ,  $158,800 $6,519,975 $6,678,775

TOTAL $2,123,704 $6,519,975 $8,643,679

2. Contingent upon the approval of Requested Action 1, authorize the Department of Health
and Human Services to make an advance payment available In September 2019, up to a
maximum $311,408 of the $6,519,975 Housing Bridge Subsidy shared price limitation to
be shared among all vendors to ensure housing subsidies are available for clients upon
Governor and Executive Council approval.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for
State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in
the future operating budget, with authority .to adjust amounts vyithin the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funds) . '

Please see attached financial details.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the Community f^entai Health Centers (CMHCs)
provide direct services to individuals leaving New Hampshire Hospital who may lack stable
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and His Honorable Council
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housing. These egreements will enable the CMHCs to provide housing support services to adults
with severe mental illness who lack safe and penmaoenl housmg options in the community
through the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program.

Approximately 425 individuals will be served from October 1. 2019 to June 30,2021.

The contractors wilt work with eligible Individuals with severe mental illness who are at
risk of being homeless to provide them with rental subsidies and supports. First priority will t>e
given to individuals who are ready for discharge from New Hampshire Hospital and lack stable
housing.

The contractors will provide services in accordance wiih NH Administrative Rule He-M
.40,6. Housing Bridge Subsidy prpgram. The program provides housing support services, as well
as case managemertt services for individuals who otherwise do not currently have a case
manager. The Contractors provide services within individuals' home communities, which
includes facilitating linkages to mentai-health services and local community support services in
order to obtain stable housing and decrease the risk of hospitallzation.

The Houslog Bridge Subsidy Program serves as a bridge to the federal Housing Choice
Voucher ProgramVfilling the gap between from when an individuals is placed on the Housing
Choice Voucher wait list to when the individaul is approved and receives the voucher. The
average wait for a Housing Choice Voucher is 9,to 11 years. The an Inleragency Partnership
Agreement between the Department and the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority has
been in effect since May 5, 2014 and allows individuals enrolled in the Housing Bridge Program
to be placedon a special preference list that reduces the wait time for Housing Choice Vouchers
from 9-11 years to 2- 3 years.

Participants in the program are provided subsidies and contribute thirty (30) percent of
their household income toward rent! The subsidy is $715 per month with some ability to increase
the ampunt based on housing costs.

The services supported by this contract are a central component of the Community Mental
Health Agreement (Amanda D Settlement), which requires the State to develop and implement,
measures to meet individuals' heeds that support their ability to live .in their communities In
integrated settings.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of each of the ten (10) contracts, the parties have the option
to extend contract services for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor
and Executive Council.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of all ten (10) vendors and ihe delivery of
services required under this agreement using the following performance measures:

• Maintaining and ensuring timely Housing Bridge voucher payments to all landlords.

•  Provide housing support services for all individuals in order to secure safe and
affordable housing in the Individual's community of choice and to ensure they
maintain safe, stable housing.

•  Ensure individuals remain in good standing on the Section 8 Housing Choice
.  Voucher waitlist.
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• Assist individuals to identify and transition out of the Housing Bridge Subsidy
program into other integrated, permanent housing options.

•  Conduct annual housing inspections and inccnie verification reviews.

• Develop annual housing support plans and coordinate with treatment providers,
community organizations, and case managers to ensure individuals have access
to needed and. requested health and social supports. ^

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize ihis request, approximately 425
individuals with severe mental illness may lose their rental housing and supports and the State
will be at risk of not fulfilling the requirements of the Comrnunily Mental Health Agreement.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% Gerieral Funds.

Respectfully submitted

(rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deptirtmeni efHcolih end Humnn Servitee' Mitsion it to join cemnui/iijio o;id familiu
II lireoiiing epponunilit* for eitiunt lo ochitut heolih ond indtpendtnce
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Financial Details

health and social services, health and human svcs oept of. HHS: behavioral
H^LTH DIV. bureau OP MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% General Funde}

Northem Human Services Q/endor Code 177222'B004)

FItcal Year Clata 1 Account Ciaao Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or orooram services 92204117 568.061

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 92204117 S90.739

Subtotal 5156.600

Fiftcel Year' Claae' Account Claa'e Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts lor orooram services 92204117 568.061

2021 102-500731 Contracts for orooram services 92204117. 590.739

-  Subroraf 5156.600

Fiscal Year Clase / Account . Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731. Contracts for orooram services 92204117 568.061

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or prooram services 92204117 . 590.739

.  Subtora/ 5158 800

Rivertend Community Mental Health, inc. (Vendor Code I77i9?-R00i)

Ffacol Year Clase/ Account Class TItJo Job Number Total Amount

2020 .  102-500731 Contracts (or proorem services 92204117 $142,126

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or prooram services 92204117' 5169.496

Subrota/ 5331.626

Flscol Year Clase/Account . Class Tiuo ■ Job Number TotsI/tmount.

2020 102-500731 . Contracts (or prooram services 92204117 • 568.061

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or prooram services 92204117 590.739

Sublota/ S1S6.8X

Community Council of Nasttua. NH (Vendor Code 1S4112-S001)"

Fiscal Year Clase/Account Class Tiue Job Number Total Amount

2020 - 102-500731 Contracts for prbqram services 92204117 $149,512 .■
2021 102-500731 • Contracts (or proqram servtces 92204117 $199,340

Subrotaf 5348.852

Tt\e Mental Health Center of Greatef Manchester, inc. (Vendor Code i77lB4'aO0i)

Flocol Year Class/Account Class TIUo Job Number Total Amount

2020 1D2-50073T Contracts for prooram services 92204117 SU2.128
2021 102-50073.1 Contracts for prooram services 92204117 5189.496

Subtotal $331,626

Flnanciil OeuH

Pajc 1 of 2
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•  . Financial Oeldils

Seccoal Mental Health Center. Inc. (Ven<5of Code 17408&-R001)

Plscsi Year , Claa'e r Account ClaaaTlde Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-5W731 ContfBcis for prodram services 92204117 560.061

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92204117 $90,739

SuPfora/ $156,600

CorrvnvmlY Partners ol Stafford County (Vendor Code 177276>8002)

Fiscal Year Claat / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Conirecta for prooram services 92204117 $68,061.

2021 102-500731 Contracts for prooram services 92204117 $90,739

Subiofof $156,800

CLM Center of Ufo Monaqemeni (Vendor Code t74l 1S-R001)

Fiscal Year Claee/Account

^  »

Class Title Job Number ^  Tout Amount

2020. 102-500731 Contracts tor prooram services 92204117 ' $66,061

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor prooram services '92204117 $90,739

Subforaf $156,600

Total Family Support Sorvlcoo $2,123,704

Funding Amounts Shared by Vendors as foOows:

0$<9$-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% Genorol Fun'da)

Fiscal Year ' Class/Account Class Title Job Number - Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92234117 $2,602,675

2021 102-500731 Contracts for program services 92234117 $3,717,300

SuP/o/a/ $6,519,975

FininclstOeiiU

Ps|t 2 of 2
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Notice: Thij agreemeni and all of its aruchmenti (he)! become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council Tor approvaJ. Any informition that it private, conndemial or proprietary must
be clearly idenlined to the agciKy and agreed to in vmting prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301.3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

PO Bos 2032, 3 N. Main Sireei

Concord, KH 03302-2032

I.S Contractor Phone

Number

603-226-7305

1.6. Account Number
092A1I7

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2021

1.6 Price Limitation

A

$6,851,601

1.9 ContractingOITicerforState Agency
Nathan D. Whitjv Director

Turr

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number .
603-271-963!

I.n Con 1.12 Name and Title of ConirMor Signatory

Pe+er Ev-ers ?r<si'cknf GED

1.13 Aclmowlcdgemcm: State of . County of

On , before the undersigned ofTiccr, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or tatisfaciorily.
o0^iKKybo,^he person whose name is signed in block I.M. and acknowledged thai s/he executed this document in (he capacity

1

,4
.12.

Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

%  c ^
r^.13.2 NquRc'dtt^iilc of Notary or Justice of the

/lo
f?IH"«"8tiV

Peace

 ^(Ot'cT "cyigCLCHve
c Agency Signature

Daic:^/'^ I
rovaJ by theN.H.

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

ersonni1.16 Approval by theN.H. Departmeni of Administration. Division of Personnel 0/eppliceble)

By: Director. On:

1.17 Approval by (Ji^ttomey Cer^l (FormJJubstancc and Exccuiion) (tfoppUcobU)

ByT / / yv > // / / On: mm
1.18 Appro^ ̂the Goy6mor a^ EieCuiivc Council O/oppHcabJe)

By: On:

Page I of 4
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I. EMPLOYMENT OF COKTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Sute ofNew Hampshire, aciing
(hfough (he egeney identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contrector identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor') to pcrfom,
and the Contractor ihatl perform, the work or ule of goods, or
both, identified &r>d more panicularty described in the attached
EXHIBrr A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OP SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of NewHompshirt^ if '
applicable., this Agreement, and ell obligations of the parties
herMndcr, shaJI become erfeciive on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in svhichcase
the Agreement shall become efTeciive on the dale the .
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contraaor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Conuaclor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk .of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
beeome effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Comracior, including without limitation, any obligation to ̂ y

' (he Contractor for. any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Servica by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, idi obligations of the State hcreundcr, irwluding,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcreundcr, are
coniingeni upon the availability and continued appropriaiion '
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hcreundcr in excess of such available appropriated
fiinds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become avail^e, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer f\jnds from any other account-
to the Account identified in block ).6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRJCEff»RJCE LIMITATION/

PAYMEhrr.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are idcniified and more ponicularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contrector in the
performance hereof, end sh^l be the only and (he complete
compensaiion to the Conlraclor for the Services. The Stale
shall have no liability to the Comraetor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable (o the Comraetor under this Agreement
(hose liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSa
80:7 through RSA 80:7<cr any otha. provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
cofltrery. and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authoriied, or actually
made hcreundcr, exceed the Price Umiution set forth in block
1.8.

6. compliance by CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with (he performance of (he Services, the
Coniraaor shall comply with all statutes, iasvs, regulations,
aivl orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or dury upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to uiiliie auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities. Including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or appticanii for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take'
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. .

, 6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of (he
United Slates, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment OpporTunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Oepanment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules; regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
pcrsoruicl necessary to perform (he Services. The Contractor
wamnu thai all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qufijtficd to perform the Services, and shall be properly
liccrtsed and otherwise authorized to do so under ell applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this AgTcement, and for a period of six (6) months ofier Ihe
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporaiion with whom it is engaged, in o combined effon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is o State
employee or official, who is rrraterially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of (his

of4

Contractor Initials i

Datca[^jS;



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2DA0A1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: C4C1933F-71 B0-475e-A04A-CDD9OF2O8DSA

Agreemem. This provision shell survive lenniniiion of ihii
Agreemeni.
7.3 TheComrocting OITiccr specified in block 1.9, or hts or
her tueeessor. shell be the Stele's representetivc. In ihe event
of any dispuie concerning ihc interpretetion of this Agreement,
(he Contracting OfTtcer't decision shell be finel for the Stete.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shell coitftituic an event of default hcrcunder
("Event ofDefault"):
1.1.1 failure to perform the Services cetisfactoriiy or on
schedule;
8.1.2 fkilurc to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform wy other covenant, term or condition
of this Agraemcnt.
8.2 Upon ihe occurrence of any Eveni of Default, the State
may take any ortc, or more, or all, of the following Bciions:
8.2.1 give the Conrrector a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it (o be remedied within, in (he
absence of a greater or leuer specificaiionof li|ne, Ihiny (30)
days from (he date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminaie this Agreement, effeclive two
(2) days after giving (he Contractor notice of icnninstion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
ofOefauli and suspending all payments (o be made under this.
Agreement and ordering that the portion of (he contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be pud to the Contractor;
8.2.-3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages (he State sufTera by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or ' .
8.2.4 (real (he Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law orin equity,'or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDEN-nAUTY/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall,mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performartce of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, rcpons,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial (productions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
prinlouls, notes, lencrs, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfmished.

9.2 All data and any propeny which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under (his Agreement, shall be the property ofihe State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

P8S«3

10. TERMlNATiON. In the event of an early termination o,f
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfliccT, not later than fifteen (15) days after (he dale of
termination, a report ("Temiiniiion Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the comraci price earned, to
and iMluding the date of termination. The form, cubjcci
miner, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be ideniical.to those of any Firtal. Report
described In the anached EXHlBfr A.

11. CONTACTOR'S RELATION TO TUE STATE. In
the pcrfofThance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ail
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
on employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
offtcers, employees, agcnu or memben shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefiu, workers'compensation '
or other emohtmcnis provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATIONfSUaCOrOTtkCTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Slate. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of Ihe State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor ihaJi defend,
indemnify and hold harmless (he State, its ofTtem and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its oflicers and employees, end any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted againn the State, its officers
and ernployccs„by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out offer which may be '
claimed to arise out oOthe acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Noiwithstonding the foregoing, nothing herein,
contained shall.be deemed to constitute a waiver of (he
sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the tCTTTtinaiion of this Agreemeni.

14. insurance.
14.1 The Contractor shall, oi its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, end shall-require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain end maintain in force, the following
insurance: ,
14.1.1 comprehensive ger>eral liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less lhan SI.(X)0,000per occurrence end $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparogreph 9.2 herein, in on amount not
less than 80%' of (he whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagroph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanmem of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licer\s^ in the State of New
Hampshire.

ofd
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14.3 The Conirector shaJI furnish to Ihe Ccniractinf OfHca
identified in block 1.9, or his or her suMcuor, a c«nifieaie<i)
ofinsurancc for &)l itisunnce required under (hit Agreemeni.
Contnctor thai! also furnish to (he Contraciing Ofhccr
identiOed in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
iruurance for all rcnewal(s) of irtfurance required under this -
Agreement no later than thiny (30) days prior to the eapiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ocnifics(e<s) of
iiuurancc and any renewals ihaeof shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each cc>tincalc(s)of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Coniraalng Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than (hiny'(30) days prior wrinen
noiice of cancellation or modification of.lhe policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies end warrants thai the Conuaciof is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A
("■Workers' Compe/uor/o/i
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to (he
requirements of N.H..RSA chapter 281 ^A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure •
and maJmain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
C4nr>ection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Coniracior shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 28l-A.and any .
applicable renewa](s) (haeof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor.-or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Worken'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services uitder this Agreement.

id. WATVER OF BREACH. No failure by (he State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequcni Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Dcfauti shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and'all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or oiher Event of Dcfauii
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any noiice by a pony hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the

time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Siatiss Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

IB. AMENDMENT. This Agrocmcnt may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by Ihe Coventor and
Executive Council of (he State ofNew Hampshire unless no
such approval is required under the circunftstances purtuani to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agre'emeni'shoJI be construed in accordance with the
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and ii binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreemeni
is the wording chosen by the parties to expiexs their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party. • •

ZO. TUJ RD PARTI ES. The panics hereto do not' intend to
benefit any third partia and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such b^efit.

2). HEADINGS. The headings thrcughouiihc Agreement
are for reference purposes only, imd the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inierprctaiion, constnjction or meaning of the-
provisions of this Agrameni.

22..SPECIA1.. PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the a'ftaehed EXHIBIT Care incorporated hereinby
refercrtce.

23. SEVERABtLITTf. In the event any ofihe provisions of
this Agreement art held by a coun of eompeieni jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of (his.Agreemeni will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire'Agreemeni and
undcrtianding between the panics, and superaedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating herao. .

Page 4 of 4
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Scope of Services

1, Provisions Appll^b.le to All Sefvic^
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed deschption of the .language assistance

services they wil) provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (1.0) days of the
contract effeptive date.

• 1.2: The' Contractor agrees that; to the extent future legislative action by the New
.Harnpshlre General Court or federal or slate court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has .the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure .requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. . For the purposes of this .agreement, the Department has Idenlrfied the

Contractor as a Subredpient in accordance with. 2 CFR 200.300

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, any reference to days shall mean business
days.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 406, Housing Bridge Subsidy Program (HBSP).

1.6. The Contractor, shall provide a shared ̂ maximum of four hundred ar^d twenty-
five (425) housing vouchers among all vendors.

1.7.. The Contractor shall ensure scattcred-.site housing is. provided with full
community integration.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. the Coritractor shall facilitate enrollment into HBSP for individuals found eligible
by the DeparVnent for HBSP services by;

2.1.1.' Contacting the referring agent, which oould be any agency, hospital, or
individuals throughout New Hampshire who has applied to the.Housing
Bridge Program, to schedule a face-to-face meeting with the individual
and the iri.dlyi.duar-s support team, which may include, but is not limited

■  to:

2.1.1.1. The guardian or other involved family member, as
appropriate.

2.1.1.2. The referring agent.

2.1.1.3. An identified mental health center representative.

f'LR>y»»t»nd Commvofty Uontsl Inc. EiHWl A Con&®CWr tnlUob'
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2.1.2. Assessing the indlyiduars Immediate temporary housing needs in
cbllaboration vvHh the Individual's siJppoh team.

2.1.3. Creating an individualized housing plan within five (5) days from the
date of receiving the initial referral for services, vyhich includes, but is
not limited to:

2.1.3.1. Benefits eligibility and status.

2.1.3.2. Aocess or referral to services as requested and needed,
which may Include, but is not limited to;

2.1:3.2.1. Supportive services.

2.1.3.2.2. Substance, use.

2.1.3.2.3. Behavioral health care; psychiatric health
care.

2.1.3.2.4., Primary health care.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure individual housing services are provided within
fourteen (14) days of receiving the initial referral. The Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Obtain (he indiyiduars housing history.
2:2.2. Assess indiyidjual housing preferences.

2.2.3. Assist the individual with identrfying available housing units within fair
m3ri(et rent requirements. In indivlduars, communities of choice.

2.2.4. Assist individuals with obtaining, completing and submitting housing
applications, that may Include, but are not limited to:

2.2.4.1. . Reasonable accommodations in accordance with the Fair
Housing Act.

2.2.4.2. ' Credit checks.

. 2.2.4.3. . Provision of references.

2.2.5. Assist individuals with contacting potential landlords..

2.2.6. Attend meetings with the rentihgagency or renting laridlbrd to negotiate
rent, utilities, and lease provisions.

2.2.7. Ensure the iridividuals secure leases in their own name with full rights
of tenancy.

2.2.6. Ensure individuals understand fair housing laws.

2.2.9. Assist individuals with Identifying initial rental needs and resources
Includlr^g but not limited to:

2.2.9.1. Security deposits.

2.2.9.2. Securing utilities.

RJviitond Comflrtinttjr Mental HmHA. Inc. EjtfilbftA ^
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2.2.9.3. Obtaining furniture.

2.2.9.4. Purchasing groceries.

2.2.10. Ensure "housing selected by an individual meets the U.S. Housing and
Urban Development (HUO). Housing Choice Voucher requirements by
utilizing the HUD habitabllitY standards form to complete Initial and
annual inspectioris.

2.2.11. Provide assi8tar»ce vyith applying for all benefits for which .on individual
may be eligible, including but not limlled to;'

2.2.11.1. Security deposit financial assistance.

2.2.11.2. Assistance with utility payments.

2.2.11.3. Assistance with applying for food stamps.

2.2.11.4. Assistance with applying for Social Security Insuranfce <SSI)
or Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI). as
appropriate.

2.2.11.6. Assistance with the appeal prdCdss for SSI or SSDI, as
necessary. . ,

2.2.11.6. Assistance with obtaining permanent housing vouchers,
when available.

2.3. The Contractor, shall provide housing support services as needed and as
desired by each individual, which may Include, but is not limited to:

2.3.1. Assistance with annual revisions to housing and support plans, or more
frequently as needed.

2.3.2. Assistance with identifying end securing . resources within the
comrnunity which may Include but is not limited to:

2.3.2.1. Peer support agencies.

2.3.2.2. Faith-based groups.

2.3.2.3. Transportation services.

2.3.2.4. Primary care services.

2.3.2.5. Homemaker/personal care services.

2.3.2.6. Legal aid.

^ 2.4. The Contractor shall identify each IndfvlduaVs needs through:
2.4.1. Treatment team meetings.

2.4.2. Setf-observalions.

2.4.3. Feedback from landlords.

Convnurtiy M#mol Health. «nc. ^ £xNMA Coawcinr Iftltlab
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-2.4.4. The Contractors employed case managers.

2.5.. The Contractor shall document and ooordlnate delivery of needed community
mental health services for which the individual has agreed to receive.

2.6. The Contractor shall continue to administer HBSP services for all ihdMdua.ls
currently residing In HBSP voucher-supported housing. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Ensure individual housing neads continue to be met. including assisting
the individual with housing relate issues relevant to fulfilling lease
requirements.

2.6.2. Review each indMduare income annually, and as changes to income
are report^, ensure proper calculation of rent in accordance with
applicable HUD guidelines. r

2.6.3. Assist each individual with reporting changes to the appropriate entities,
including the'Departmenl.

2.6.4. Complete and document annual inspections of ea^ ihidlviduare rental
unit.

2.6.5. Be the point of contact for landlords, and document any interections or
interventions provided as a result of being the point of contact.

2.6.6. Ensure timely Housing Bridge voucher payments to landlords.

2.7. - the Contractor shall work vyith the Department and the New Hampshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA) oh en annual basis, and as needed; to ensure each
individual has responded to corhmunicatibns from NHHFA and remains in good-
standing on the Housing Choice Voucher waitlist.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to permanent housing by
providing support to individuals and landlords for no less than six (6) consecutive
months after the individual receives a permanent housing voucher.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide other housiing programs, services pr assistance,
for which Individuals who are waiting for HBSP supported housing may be
eligible, unless written approval to not provide services iS: granted by the

. Department.

2.10. The Contractor ^ihall ensure all complaints regarding HBSP services are
investigated by a complaint, investigator within fifteen (15) days of receiving the
complaint. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.10.1. All parties relevant to the complaint are interviewed by the complaint
investigator.

2.10.2. The complaint Investigator makes a determination as to whether the
complaint is founded or unfounded.

PiRhrofbsnd Convnuntty Uenisi HetfiA. inc. * EifiiMA Contractor iniUsit
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.  2.10.3. The complainant Is notified. In writing, of the finding.

2.10.4. All identities of any complainants are kept oonfideritial.

2.10.5. Complainants are aware oif Ihe Gpntractor'e process to r^uest eiri
appeal of findings.

2.10.6. The Department Is notified, in writing, of the complaint and the outcome.

2.11. The Contractor shall maintain a case file for each individual In the program to
include, but not be limited to:

2.11.1. Releases of Information and consent forms.

2.11.2. Housing and service plans.

2.11.3. Progress and contact notes.

2.11.4. Documentation of service participation.

2.11.5. Any medical, menial health, and substance use services requested and
provided.

3. Staffing
3.1. The Contractor shall ensure sufTicient staffing is available to provide HBSP

housing placement and support services to a minimum number of Individuals as
determined by the Department in coilaboratioh with the Contractor and based

on available funding.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure:

3.2.1. All staffing and volunteers updergo NH Crirhinal background checks.

3.2.2. All staffing and volunteer names are submitted to the Bureau of Adult
arvt Elderly Services for review against the Slate Consumer Protective
Service Registry.

3.2.3. All staffing and volunteers participate in any and all HBSP trainings
conducted by either NHHFA or the Department.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall submit annual narrative progress reports to the Department
on agency letterhead that is acceptable to the Department. The Cor^tractor shall
ensure annual reports include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Barriers experienced by individuals waiting to occupy HBSP supported
housing.

4.1.2. Barriers experienced by the Contractor.

4.1.3. Resolutions of barriers experienced.

Rlvoitond CommunfTy Mmul Hedlh.' Inc. EjMM A ContrBcUv IniUtb / ̂
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4.1.4.. Number of indisriduals who moved and number of individuals who
remained at the same address during the year.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly progress reports to the Department In a
format provided by the Departinenl; no later than five (5) busir^ess days after
the concjusionof the.month. specrfying: '

4.2.1. The amount of funds expended and the balance of funds.rernalnlng for
HBSP services.

4.2.2. The last name, address, total rent, .and HBSP voucher payment amount
for each rental payment made.

4.2.3. The names of individuals who exited the program, the reason, and the
date of exit.

4.2.4. The names of individuals who attained a permanent housing voucher
or other permanent living arrangerneni and the date for which the
voucher or atrangement became effective and in use by the individual.

4.3. ' The Contractor shall notify the department, in writing, of the data an individual
signs a lease, including date of move-in.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide individual sp6cific HBSP data consistent with the
Data Reporting requirements of this agreement, or otherwise identified by the
Department. In the format, content, completeness, frequency, method and
timeliness as specified by the Department.

4.4.1. The Contractor shall include an identifier within its reporting that
enables the Contractor to report on the type, intensity and frequency of
community mental health services HBSP participants receive from the
Contractor.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. 'The Contractor shall consult and collaborate with (he Department to develop

appropriate performance measures, subject to Department ajsproval.

5.2. The performance measures will be designed to evaluate:

5.2.1. Percent of individual's receiving housing services as requested within
fourteen (14) days of referral.

.  5.2.2. Percent of individuals housed within thirty (30) days of referral.

■  6.2.3. Percent of individuals who remain in stable housing for one (1) year or
longer.

5.2.4. Percent of complaints regarding HBSP services that are investigated
and closed within frfteen (15) days of receipt of (he complaint. .

K.  EiWWtA CortrBctof mitiaH
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5.2.5. Percent of individuals receiving services who make a successful
transition to permanent housing within eighteen months of enrollment
In HBSP.

rUvoftenP CommunBy Uemot Heanh. trc. EtfUMiA CcntrsctortnlUab'.
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Method and Gondltlons Precedent to Pavmeht

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.6,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% General Funds, aniicipated.to be available based
upon continued appropriation, which are conditioned upon continued support of the
program by the slate ar^d federal goyemments.

3. The Contractor agreeS to pro\^de the services In Exhibit Ai Scope of Service In
compliance with funding requirements.

4. Failure to meet the eco^ of services may jeopardize, the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

5. Prior to September 15, 2019 a one-time payment shall be made in an amount to be
determined by the Department that is sufficient to meet Housing Bridge Voucher
coslsfor the month of October 2019.

6. Housing Bridge Voucher payrhents shall not exceed $715.00 per client, per month.

7. This Agreement is one (1) of ten (10) Agreements with Vendors that will provide services
for the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program in accordance with NH Administrative Rule
He-M 406. Among the ten (10) agreements, there is a limit of.425 vouchers across all
agencies utilizing voucher funds from the State. Accordingly, the statewide total price
limitation for vouchers among all ten (10) Agreements is $2,802,675 for SFY20.and
$3,717,300 for SFY 21. for a total price limitation among all agreements of $6,619,975.

. which has been include in Block 1.6 Price Limitation of the General. Provisions. P-37.

8. Payment for said ser\nces shall be made monthly as follows;
8.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred

In the futfillmenl of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved
line.Items as specified in Exhibit G-1, Budget, and Exhibit 6-2, Budget, whch does
not include the price limitation available for vouchers.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
tenth (10"*) Nvorking day of each . month, which. identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month..

I

6.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Depahment in order to initiate payment..

8.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and K sufficient funds
are available. . .

9. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have reoords available for Department review, as
requested.

iLRlvert>end Communtty Mefl(a> Ha&llh. Inc. EjMUi a Contractor ln!(l«t]
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10.Thefind'l ihvdid^ shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completiohdate specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Blo^ 1.7 Completion Date.

11. In lieu of hard copies, alt invoices may be assigried an electronic signature and emailed
to Tanja.Godtfr6d$6n@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Manager ■
Bureau of Behavioral Health Services

Division for Behavioral H^lih
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301.

12. Payments may be vnthheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. '

IB.Notwithstianding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this, agreement may. be withheld, in whole or In part.^in the event of non-
compliance vvith any Federal or State jaw, rule or regulalioh applicable to the services
provided, or If the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

14.Notwiihstdodin9 paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37-,. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price llmitallon. and to adjusting encurnbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both' parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

ilRfv«rbond Community Menlol Hoolth, Inc. ExNM D Connctor Inltbb.
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ConUeclors Obligations: Tho dontrecior covenants end agrees tha(.en funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only asrpaymeni to tha Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals er^, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covanants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compllonco with Foderel and Stato Laws: If the Contractor is permiited to ddiarmlna ihe etiglbBjiy
of individuals such eligibility detennlnaUon shsll bo made in occordonce with applicable federal and
state lews, regulolkms. orders, guidelines, policies end procedures.

2. Time end Manner of Ootormlnatlon; Ellglbiilry determinations shall be mede on fonns provided by
the Oepartment for that puipose.end shall be mede end remade at such times as are prescribed by
Ihe Oepartrneril.

• 3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain e data file on e^ recipient of services haraundar. which Tile shall include all
tnformalion necessary to suppoh an eligibility detennination end such other information es the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnsh the Department wlih all forms and documeniotion
regarding eligibinty determit^aUons that the Depertmenl may request or require.

4. - Fair Ho.arfnge: The Contradtor understands that all applicants for'services hereurtder, es well as
individuals'dedored Ineligible hqvo'e right to a (air hearing regarding that determination. Tho
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ell opplicants for services shall be permltt^ to fill out
on application form and that each eppQconi or re-appiicani shall be Infcnmed of his/her'dght to ofalr
hearing In accordance with Department ragulelions.

5. Gratultloo or Klctrbacks: The Contractor egress that il is a breach of this Contract to accept or
moke a payment, gratuity or offer pi employmenl on behalf of (he Conirector. ony Sub-Contractor or
the State (n order to influence the ̂ rformance of Ihe Scope of Work detailed iri Exhibit A of this
Cdntrecl. The Stele mey terminate this Contrect and eny sub-contrect or sub-agreement if His
determined thai payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered.br received by
eriy offidaJs. of(1cert|. erhployees or agents of (ha Contractor or Sub-Contractor.'

6. Retrooctlve Paymonto: Notwilhstanding onytNng to the contrary contained In the Contreci or.lnony
other document, contract or undorsiending. it is expressly understood ond agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be mede hereundar to reimburse the Contractor for costs irtcurred for
eny purpose or for any services provided to any indivlduaJ prior lo tha Effective Date of the Contmct
end r>o. payments shall t>e mada for expenses incurred by the Contmctor for eny services provided
prior to the date on wttlch the individual applies for services or (except es otherwise provided by the
f^erai regulations) prior to a date'rminaiion ihoi tho Indlvlduel is ePgible for such services.

7. Conditlona of Pureheao: Notwithstanding anything to tha contrary conlained in the Contreci. nothing
herein conipined shall be deemed io obiigalo or requ.ire the Department to purchase services
hereunder el e rale which reimburses tho Contractor In excess of tho Contractors costs, at o rota '
which exceeds the emourtis reesor\at>Je and r^essary to assure the quality of such servlca. or at a
rate which exceeds (ha rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Individuals or other third party
fundera for au^ saoi^ce. If at any lime during the tarm of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the' Department shell determine thai the Contractor has'usad
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other then such costs, or has r'ecalved payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rales charged by the Conlmclor to ir^eiigibla individuals
or other third party fundera, the Department may cioct to;

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to (he Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursam^tln

excess of costs; j C
£jtfilHiC-$p«ci8lProvUloni ContraclorlnKsIs'
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7.3., Demand repayment of (he excess payment by the Contractor in twhich event feiiure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When tho Contractor Is
pemtitted to determine the anglbtlity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Deportment for all funds paid by the Department to the Controctpr for services
provided io any individ.ual who is found by the Department to t>e ineligible for such serviceset
any time during (he period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In eddition to the eligibility records specified ebove, the Contractor
covenants er>d agrees to meinl'ain the following records during the Contract Penod:

6..1. Fiscal Records; books, records, documents and other data evtdendng 'and renoctlr>g ell costs
end other expenses Incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Condacl. end aii
income received or coOected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be

'  maintained In eccordance with accounting procedures end practices which sufficiently and
prope^ reflect ell such costs and expenses, end which ere ecceptable to the Department, end
to include, without limitation, a!) ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such as
purcha^ requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inveniories. valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollmeni, attendance, or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, viihich records shaD b^ude all records of application and
eliglMlity (including all form.s required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of servt^s and eB invoices sutimitted (o the Department lo obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^icai Records: Where appropriate end as prescribed by (ho Deportrnont regulations, the
• Conlraclor shall retain medical recortis on each patianVracipieni of services.

9. Audit: Contrecior.sheli submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the dose of tho
agency Tiscal ̂ ar. it Is recommended ihel the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Mbnageiment and Budget Circular A-t 33. 'Audits of States. Local Governments, end Non
Profit Organizations' end the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations,
Programs, Aciivltles and Functions, issued by the LIS General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
thoy pertain to financial compilanco audits.

6.t. Audit and Review: Ourir^g tho (orm of this Contract and (he period for retention hereunder', (he
Department, the United Stales Department ol Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representaiives shall hovo access to all reports and records maintained pursuaniio
tho Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and ironscripts.

9.2. Audit- LiabiQties: In addition to end not in any way in timiiqiion of obligations of the Contract. It is
underitood ond ogrood by tho Conlrector that the Contractor shall be held liable for ony state
or federal audit exceptions and shell return to tho Department, oil paymonts mode under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowe.d because of such an
exception.

10. ConridontiallTy of Rocorde: At! information, reports, end records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with (he performance of the eervicea end the Contract shall be confidential and'shell not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state lows ond tho rogui^tibns of
the Department regarding tho usb and disclosure of such mformation, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their oKiclDl duties end'for purposes
directly cortnected to the administration of the services end the Contract; ond provided Krrther. thai
the use or dlsdosure by any psrty of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly cannocied wtth the administration of tho Department or (he Contractor's responsibilities wtlh
respect to purchased services hereundar Is prohibited except on writton consar>l of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Ejtfilbii C - ,Sp«c!a1 Previsloni Comrector inUtb.k
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Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

It. Reports; Fiscal arid Stalisti'calf.The Contractor egrees to submjt the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Intarim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses Incurred by (he Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other Infonr^etlon es shall bo doomed satisfactory by the^Oepartmeni to
justify the rale of payrnent hereundar. Such Finondai Repots shell be submitted on the form
designated by the De(wrtmenl or ̂ med satisfactory by the Deportment.

11.2. Final Report: A final ra^rt shad be aubmined within thlt^ (30) days after the end of-the term
of this ContnacL Th,e Final Report shall bo in o form satisfactory to the Department and shall,
contain a summary aiatamaht of progress toward goals and objectives staled in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Sorvlcea: Disadowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for tn the Contract ar>d upon payment of the price limitation '
heraunder, the Contract end ail the obiigations of the parties hereundar (except s'uQh obligations es.
by the terms of the ContracI ere to be performed after the end of the term-ol this. Contract and/or
survis^ (f)e termination of.the Cont/ddl) shell terminate, provided however, that if. upon review oflhe -
Final Expenditure Report (he Department shall disallow any expanses cJaimed by the Contractor as
costs hereundar the Department shell retain the right, at Its. discretion, to deduct (he amount of such
expenses as are dlsaOov^ed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other materials prepared '
during of resulting from the (^rfoimanco of the services of the Contract shell Include ihefoHowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wtih the State
of New Hampshire. Departm'enl of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by (he Stela of New Hatripshlre and/or such other funding sources as were avdileble or
required, o.g., the United States Dopartmeni of Health end Human Services.

•  ' * \

1.4. Prior Approvel and Copyright Ownorahlp: AD materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the coritract shaft have prior appro.val from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shell not roproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior \vritten approval from DHHS-

15. Operation of Facilhloa: Compliance with Lews and Rogulatlona: In the operation of anylecilitias
.for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with el) laws, orders and regulations of federal,
olate, county and municipal authorities end with any direction of any Public Officer.or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of (he sersrices el such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said fao'lity or (he performance of the said services.

.. the Contractor will procure said license or permit, end vrill at all times comply vriih the terms arid
'  conditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the forogbing requirements, the
' Contractor hereby covenanis and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the fedli'lios shall

comply with ail rules,orders, regulations, end requirements of the'State Office of the Fire Marshalend
the local fire protection egency, arid shall be In cdnformonco with local building and zohliSg'codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal EmploymonI Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor vrill provide an Equal Employmqnl
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. OfTice of Justice Program's (OCR), If it has
received a single eward of S500.000 or mora. H the recipient receives $25,060 or more end has 50 or

Exhlbll C - Stwdsi Pix>vWoni Contracto' (nliJala f ̂
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more omployMS. II wlil maintain o current EEOP on file and submii an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, ce/tif)^ng that Its EEOP is on file. For redpionb receiving lass than $25.000.'or public grantees
with fewer thon SO employees, regardless of the omotml of the award, the recipient wfO provide on '
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR cer^fying It is not required to submit or melntsin en EEOP. Non-
profit orgar^zotlons. Indian Tribes, end medical end educe.fional institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requir^ent, but ere required to submit a certificafion form to (he OCR to claim the exemption.

' EEOP Cenificaiion Forms are available ot: httpyAvww.t^p.usdoj/atMuVoa/pdfa/cert.pdf.

17. Limned Englioh Proficiency fLCP): As dartfled by .Execudvo Order 13166. Improving Access to
Servlcofi for.porsons with Limited English Proficiency..end resulting agency guidance, nationolorigin
.discrlmlnotion liScfudas discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compCenca with the Omnibus Crime Control and Sole Streets Act of 1966 end Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act oM964, Contractors must toko reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful occess to Its progrems.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whtotlebtower Protections: The
following shell oppiy to ell contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In46
CFR2.101.(curTenlJy.$150.000) :

COKTAACTOR EMPCOYEE WMSTlEBLOWEA RiGHTS AND REOUlREUErTT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHisriESLOwER Rights (SEP 2013)

(d) This contract end employees working on this contract wtll be subject to (he whistleblower rights
end remedies in the pilot program on Cont/octor employee whlsttoblower protections esteblishedel
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 626 of Ihe National Defervse Authdriiation Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shaD Inform Its employees in writing, in predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and prolocUons under 41 U.S.C. 4712. os described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paregroph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified ocquisiiioh threshold.

19. Subcontraetore: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
bul Iho Corilractor shellratain the rasponslblGty arid occountability for the funcUon(s). Prior to
subcontractlng.-the Contractor shaD evaluate the subcontrBctofs ebllily to perform the delegated
runction(s). This is o'ccom'pGshed through a wriaon-agreement that spoclfias activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the sut>conlr8Ctor's portormanco is not adequate. Sutrcontractors ere subject to the same controclual
conditions es the C^lraictor end (he Controctoi Is responsible to ensure subcontrecior compliance
with those conditions.

When (he Contractor delegates e function to a subcontrector. the Contractor shall do the following;

19.1. Eyelueie (he prospective subconlractor'a ability to perform the eclMiies. before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies octivlties andrepoiting
responsibilities end how soncllon^revocetion will be monegod if the fiubconiractor's
perforfnance Is not adequate

19.3. Mor^itor the subcontractor's performance on en ongoing basis

ExhWl C - Sp*d9i Pm*Ulens Contraow JnlilaJj ̂
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. 19.4. Provide (o DHHS on annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated fuhctlonsand
responsibilities, and When the subcontrecto^s performance win be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at Its discretion, reviewand approve eO subcontrects.

II the Contrectof idenlines deftciendes or areas for improvement ere ideniined. the Contractor shall
(sVe directive action.

20. Centred'Ooflnltlont;

20.1. ■ COSTS: Shall mean those direct end indirect Items of expense delormlned by the Department
to be enoweble end reimbursable in eccordence with cost and accounting principles established
In accordenge with stele and fedoret laws. regulatJons, rules end orders.

20.2. OEPAftTMEfiT: NH Deperlment of Hesith and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If eppticable. shall mean the document submined by the Contractor on e.
form or forms required by the Oepartmeni and cpntainlng a description of the se'rvfces end/or .
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with tho terms end conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of lime or that specified ectivlty determined by the Department end specified
In Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW; Wherever fede'ra) or state laws, regulations, rufes, orders, end -
poiicies. etc. are referred to in tho Contract, the said reference shall t>e deemed to meeo
alt such lews, reguIaUons. etc. as they niey be amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTIf^G OTHER FEOEfUL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Coritract will not supplent eny existing federal funds evailebie for these services.

UEjdrloii C - Special Prevtiloni Controctoi Inniab
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REVISIOWS TO STANDAftO CONTRACT UNOU ACE

1. Rovlslona to Form P>37, Gonarel Provtalonf

1.1. Si^ilon 4 CondHional Nfltum of AQroament. is repia^d BS foaows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMgNT.

NoMthstanding any provision of iMs AgroomenI to (he contrary, ell obligsUons of the Stale'
hereunder. Including wflhoul limliaUon. the continuance of payments. In whole or in part,
under (his Agreement era cohUngeni upon continued epproprlatioo or aveilaOility of funds,
Including any subsequent; changes lo the appropriation or evaitablllty of funds effected by
any. state or federal logtsiettve or executive octlon (hot reduces,, eliminolos. or oiherwiso
modifies the oppropriatioti or oyaliabllity of furtding for this Agreement end (he Scope of
Services .provided in Exhibit A. ̂ pe of Servicas. in whole or In pad. In no event shaD the
State be tiable (or any payments hereunder In excess of oppropriaied or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, I'erminstidn or modification of appropriated or available fur^fs, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold paymenl until such funds become available, if ever.
The Sliita shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify servicas.under this Agreement
Immediaiely upon givirg the Contractor notice ofi such reduction, termination or
modification. The Slate shaD not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account^s) kfeniified in biocK' 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other eccouni- In the event funds are reduced or unavailable. •

■ 1.2. Section 10. Termination, is emer>ded by edding the fodowtng language:

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving lhe Contractor written notice that the State is .exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the evont of early tenfiinalion. (he Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for servtcas under the
Agreement including but not limited to. Identifying the present end future needs of clients
receivlr>g services under the Agreement eryf establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 the Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Slate and shell promptly provide dotalled
information to support (he Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termlnation of the Agreement and Transition han

.  end shall provide ongoing communication 8r>d rovis'cns of the Trartsilibn Plan to the Slate
' as requested.

10.4 In (he event (hat services under the Agreernent, inctudii>g but not limited to dients receMng
servicas under the Agr.eemeni bra ironsiiioned to having services delivered by another
entity irxtiuding contracted providers or the Stale, the Contractor shall provida a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish o method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shell include the proposed communications In its
Transition Ran submitted to (he State as described above.

2. Ronewel

2.1. The Oepartment reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to four <4) additional yoors.
contingent upori satisfactory delivery of services, available fundir>g. written agreement of the
parties end approval of the Govomor end Executive Council.

EjiNMI 0*1.- ReYtslvllCu«pOw^« (o SianCafd Conna Contractor InhUi'

CUOMMBMII Pogtioil
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Now Hompshrre Depsrtfnont of Heefth and Human Sorvlcoa
Exhibit 0

CERTiFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE RE9UIREMENTS

The Vendor idenUfled In Section 1.3 of ̂ e Geher^ Proytatona ̂ rpeo to cpmpfy wtlh t^prpvtoiona of
Sediiioni &1Si-5l60of (heOru^,rt»Wt^lece^'of L,10t>^90. Tm V. .S.ubtKtoO'; 41
M-S.C. 70'1 et 0Tt6 further osrott to Ksve the Contra^.o reprwentcthie. as in .S^tona
IJ'1 end 1J2bftheGenerB|PrDvtel^s'exe^ethe'fofiowir>g Certlfi^lon:

ALTERATIVE I - FOR jSRANTEES OTHER THAN INOiVIDUALS

US OEPARTniENt OF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATION ̂ CONTAcTORS
uS Department of AORtcuLtuRE - coRt Actors

this certlficetJon b r^ulred by the r^taikma (mpiemen'tins Sections SISIaSIGO of tl^ Orv^^ree
WorkptBce M pf 18M (Pub. L IpO^SO; .Titto V, Si/btftie'P; 41 U.S.C. 701 et s^.): T^ Jenuery ai,
IfiBO 'reguWtons Mwre.efranded end publbhedes Pert it of the May 25,1990 Federei Registef (pages
21691-21^91)., end ̂ uim.eefWcetim by grahtein (wd by.inference, eub^rent^'^ .
CMnjectonij; pdwlo .ewerd/thet (hay;'wfD mpintefri 0 dirug^^.woAptM. Si^ion ̂ iy.636(c)'Of t>\e
r^utMon proven th^ a g At'ee (Bnd by Infersnce. si^ranteM end oub^ntr^oni) that b e State'
irnay el^.tp m^'e oine perttfli»tion-tb the'Oepertment in e^ federal Rscaliyear.in De'u of certificates for
^each grerit during the f^.ers) fiscal yw cpyered 6y iKe qertlficatlo'n. The certificate set out below Is a
rhpta^l fepreedhtptlbn pf fact upbn wfilch rbllence b plaeed'wheri the egehcy owsr^p'tiie. grant. Feba
certiTftetiohor vf'otatlon of the certificBiion shall be' grounds for suspension of.payments', ousjsisnslon or
larm.ln'Btip'n.of grianb. or gpWr^'efit.wtde suspension of debar^nt. Contracted uslrig this fonin sh(M.ld
adnd H to: ,. ; "

Cornfnbaioner
' NH D^artment df Meanh end Human Servlcas
126 Pleasant .Street.
Concord.'NM033bl'-9^S

1. TM grantee certifies thet.nwOl of mQ continue to pro^e a dnjg.-lroe workplace by:
1.1. RublaHing 0 i^loternenl ndlifyir^ employes t^'the unlawful mtmufactufe.'dis^'utlon.

dapenslng'. ppsse'oWn'dr use of a icomfpHbd eubstafice Is prohlbRed'ln t^'g'rantae'o'
workplace end specifying the actbrui thai wlU be.taken egslnst employees for.'^tation of such'
prohbftlon: '

1.2. Eetabllshtrtg on ongoing drug-free dw^ness program to Inform employ^ about
1.2.1. Thectongersofdrug obu'telnthe.wbrt^larUt:
1.2.2. T^.c^nteebpoti^ of n^alnteiplhgo drug-free workplisce;
1 .'2.3. Any available drug MunMllrig,,rdhabDitettor>,. end emplpyae' esslitanca programs: end
1.2.4. The pdruifties tinat r^y be Irnposed.ypdn ̂ ptoybesfdrdnig abuse '^latlohs

occurring In.tho workplace: . . '
1.1 Making ft 0 fequtiemant that each empbyee (0 be engaged in the peiformance'cf the grani be

gryeh a copy of iKe sbtemieint required by p&agroph (a):
1:4. Notify^ tha.emplqyee in tfw etaternent relqu^ by paragiaph (0) thai, as a condition of

ennpldymotrt yrufar.the grant, the atnpbyoe'wQi ' . •
1.4.1.' Mide by tiw terms the etat'dhttrit: end
1.4.2. Notify (he empldyisr-ln vi^r^g of his or her.convlctipn for 0 violation of a crtmlnal drug

otptuta occurring In the worikplacq no later than five calendar days after such
odrlvlctidn;'

1.5. 'Notif^ng (he agency b.wrding. wtthin ten calendar days after recayirrg rvotbe under
sub^regraph l.4.2'froni en empby^ of otf^rwber^Mng actual rioti^of eMhconviction,
Erhpioyero of convicted emptoyees'musl pro^a notA; Inciudihg position (iUa, to evisry grarit
officer on 'whose grar^ ectK^ (he cbnvided employoe working, u'hbsa this Fedefcl pgertcy

.EjMMD--CciUAu9on.r»asrdneOrueFre» V«n0orMUtfi
Wcri(pt»d9 ReoUrenerts

1./C
OJO»«enien> ' Ptpoi.ofS Oite
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htU de8l9nbted e point for the of audh hoUeeo. Notice dhoil'include the
W.entincMlon num^^e) of ei^ offacted Qrent; '

1:6. Teking one of the foHo^g ecUona. wOhIn ̂ O.calender dayo cd.feceMng noto'undeir
euttpareg/epK 1;4.2. wi^ to any Wtio to M ccnvtcted'
1.6.1. "T^lng opproprtota perobpnet octibn ogeVial Buch en empioyee. up to end Ihdudlng

tiaifmln^n.'oortttstfint wtlh the requirempiita of the RehabUltation'^^ pf '1973. es
em^oi^* Of ''

1.6.2. RequtHhg auch empioyoe to panidpote uWectorOy In e dnjg abiM essbtiince or
rehdbliaetlpn prpgrom opprbvbd. for .euch (^rpbaee by p Federal, $teto. or heoBh.
^ enforc^e'rd, or (^e'r opbrbprlote'dgenc/

1.7. - Making e good faith effoH 'tb continue te malr^'ri.e drug-free.worltptace threifgh
tmptementfltlonof parngmphal.l. i.z; r3..i.4:-l.5;".ehd I.e.

2.' The gr^tee may Inaerl in the apace provided below the aRe(e) for the perfdrmahoe of done In
connect .vyith (Iw epectfie.grQn^

Place of Perfonnanca (atreet eddreaa, diy. county, atpte. zip ciode) (list each Ideation)

Check □ if there ere.wor^fecea on file that are not IdehiMed here.

venao,fe^fliv^rt>€ncl tOfr)m\in/tu

Date

Clo

Name:'

r

•  uE^eoo 0 - C«ni)c»aen reotnSne Oruo Free s^nevMiioh ^
Wortptocb BeeuUenWrci ' ' '-m '" / i y

O'Owon'Oro Qjta )
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

ThoVm^or IdepM^'ln Soctlbri. V3.of ̂  Oene.rBl ̂ rovitions egrpea to c^ply wflh the prpvlalohe of
Sedion 310 of Public Lew,101*121. Govemmen't wide Guldan^ for New RMtrlc(k>ns on Lotbyihp, end •
31 U)S.C/13S2,.aru1 further ̂ 'reM to ha^-the'C.ontrBcto'r'B refpresei^tive.-oa Ueritihed Iri Sectiws 1.11
ancf l'i2 of the Generel Piro^bne executia the folbwing Certified

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ̂ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUqAttbN T CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . CdjfTRACTORS
Prpomnu) {indlcel'e eppi^bto progmm eoverod):
rTempoiery Asolstbnce to N^yF^lliu uiSder TUe iv-A
*ChUd Support Enfpit^ement.Prpgrom.uhder Title fV-O
'Sodal Seiyfc^ Grant Pipgrem under TlUe XX

ProBTcm ui^er TUe XIX
'Community Services Bldch Grarrt under Titto VI
*CHi)d Care Development Block (Wiit under TMe IV

the underslg.ned certlfin. to the best of his or her knowl^ppe and belief, that;

1. No Federal aippmprtated funds hoM bedn paid or wU) be paid by or on behalf of the undersloned; to
any person for Influmclnp ior aKamp^ to .Inftuance ah ofh^'r or employee of any egarvcy. a Member

-  dfCongress.OndfnMr'oremdloyeepfCo'norew.oranemp.loyeedfaMemtMrofCohgresoin
cdnrtectibn wfth.tha awardirig of any Feddral coritrect, cphtin'UBtlon, renawal. amervdmenl. or
mpdifleptiph of any F^e.roj eontrael. g'mrrt. loan,' or co^rative agroe^nt (and by specific mehUon
eub^rantM Of sub^ntr^oO-

.2. If any funds other then Federal epprdp'rtated funds ha've beeri'paid or will be paid to any ̂ ropn for
Influencing or ottimp^ to Irrfiuence 6ri pfTlcer.or empto^ of any. egsricy. o Merhber of Confess,
•an officer orernplp^ isf .Cohgress. or an .em^yee of a M^ber of .Corigrptis in cpnnectbh with this
Federal cony^, grpnt.- loan, or'coope^l^ agreement (end by speclfrc mention sut^rishlee or But>-
conUBCtOT). the un'ders^'rMid'ehBtl compete end birtrmlt Stahdard Form LiX. (Disclosure Fonrri to'
Re^ Lobbying. In aocordanee with Bs instructions, etta^ed.ei^ identlTrad as Standard ̂ Ib'lt £•<.)

3. The undersigned .shaO reguire thai lha lang^s of thb cartJficdtbn be irtcluded in the award
document for subiewards at all tiers (jniluding subcdidradto. oubrgrahtp. and pontr^ u'r^ar grants,
loans, and CQojxtratl^ pgreem'artts) end that all eub^ipients shall certify' arid di^ilMe accprdlngty,

This certJflcation. b a matertal r^reientation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
.was rnode or'entared (nto. Subrnbslor) of'<h'b cert/ficalidr> b e prerequisitejlor moklng or entering into Ihb
transaction tmpoipd by Se^lon i'352i tltb 31, U.S. C'pde. ̂ ypers^.'wtwfalb'toftie the required
certiffcallon Bhsll'be e'ubject to a ci^ penet^ of rSol^leu than f10.000 and not rridre the'ri $100,000 for
each ouch failure.

v.n<xjrNart*>:t^iv.cr^ad Wnnr0\)ni fi/(
D.oTni inc ■ ^

Cuowcmaris Pegs i of .1

;

Name? ViiVci^"
T»e; .

C. £ o

EiNbA E - CcrtlAcsten RD^erdlne Lobbytng .Vvr^w ixnialitf ■
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ OEBARMEflt. SUSPg>f^lQtf
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTV MATTERS

The Vender Identlflod in S^on 1.3 of the Gonara) Provt^iqria agreee (o comply wttK the pn^albne of
Executive Offite of iho Rrey<ttnl. Executfvt p.rder 12M0 end ;4S CF^.Pert 76 r^rdtng Peibcuhient.
Sue^n^n,' end Other Retpona&Oity Mettera, end agrew to the Contractbr'a
reprettittaiJ^. ea identlft^ In Sect«na 1.11. end 1.13 of the Geher^ PrpvUkina exocute foOoiefng-
Certtficetiori;

iN^TRyctibNS FOR pertn.FiCATiqN
1.' By'elghlno on'd eubmltUng thla pfopMo) (c^rsd). the dr^pectlue primary porUclpont ta providing the

certJftcetbn bet out betow'.

2. The IrubQIty of e person to provide the ceiilflcettoh f<^ulred bet6w w(U r>pt neceaaahly msult In .dental
ofpartldpe^ in thU cov^ed trensoeijon. If necesoery. the prospediyB par^tpant.ahali.aubmlt on
ei^lanitoh of why tt ̂ nhdt provide tl^ oertlficaUon. T^ certificetiori or.exptanepdn wirO) be'
considered In oonndcUon wtlh the NH'Pepartmeni d He^ and Hurne'n SdM^- .(OHt^S)
ddermlnotion whether to enter into thbbontectlq^^ However, feihjred (he prape^eprtrneiy
pertietpan't to furr^h a oprtltipat^ or on ej^Aandt^.eluiird^ualil^ euch person from porticlpdtton In
•thb bTB/isoetldn.

, 3. The certifieatJo.n In thfa clauie Is a metertal rc^resehlBtio'n of feet upon which .roliahM was placed
when pi^S ddennined'U) enter into thb trdnsaMbn. Iflt b later deterfnlhed thd the pfospecUve'
primary ̂ icl^t knbwi^ly rendered an ermnopOs pertifiation, In addition to d^r remedbs
.available to the Federal Gpvemment; DHHS msy'termlriate thb transaction for cause or idefauft.

4. T>e prospective primary.p8rticipant shaO pipvide InrunMlate written notice to the OHHS egericy to
wh.orn thb propc^ b submitted If at dny tirne the pmpectl^ primary, pjartictpant 'taom'o
thai its cerilftcat^ Was errorwoM when submttl'ed oi has bec^e errbneous by reason of chonged
clrcumslarices.

5. The tisnms'covered transec(ion.vd'at^rred.''suspended,'*iheiiglble."(oweftlef covered
■  transaction,* 'pbrtlctpaht.* 'person.* 'prtmpry cpvsmd trahsbctlp.h.* 'prtnctpal* '•proposal.' end
•  'Mlynte^ excluded.' as used in thbdause. have the meanings set out in the O^ltibna arid
Coyerat^ sections of the rubs (mpbniienUnb Eiecutj^ drder 12S40; 45 CFR Part 76. See thb
attachbd defiriltbrb.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by lubmlhing thb proposal (contract) that, should ̂ e
proposed'covered transaction ̂ .entered Into, (I shall not {(no^hgty enter thto.ariy.bwer tier-covered
trahsecdonvytth a person who b debarred, eutpended.: deciprpd tneDgibie. or ̂ untpHly 'pxcftided
friorri parti^tibn In thb covered tmris^ion, unbss autMrtzed by DHHS.

' 7. The prpspectlye primary participant further.egrees by ei^mittlng thb p/oposai that It wtll ihcfude the
cbuse titbd/CerithcatJon Regard^ Oeb.arfnent. Suspensioh. IneUglblltty end Voluhta^ iExctyston •

Tier Covered Tmnsa^ns;' pnpvi^ by OHHS. without rnod/flcotion. In oQ tower tier .co^red
trerrsactipns and. in eir^lcltaUona for tower tbr Covered trerksactlohs.

6. A particlpBht In a coW.^ed transaction rhoy r.ely ypoh a ceriKrcatbn of a prospective portldpant In a
Ipwer.'tbr covered trertsoctioh (K{it H fs riot debonod, suspe^ed. Inellgbb. or'tnyolurib^ excluded
from'the povet^ trbrj^ctiori, unless tl Krtbws thist tt^ certificalion b errdneoys.' A' participbnt may
decide the method ei^ frepuen^ by ̂ ICh It determines thb isilglbiGty qf tto prlnclpbb'.'
-partictptytt may. but b not requl^ to. 'check the Nonpfociii^cmi Ust (of excluded partbs]'.'

6. No.thlng contained Iri the foregoing shall be conttnred to require, establishment of a.sysiem of records
In ordw to rerider In good faith the certlfic^bn required by.thb clause. Theknqw^gea^ '

Pi'EjMM F - CerUSuOon'Rfgotnng Oeteimerd, Surperoion Vender MUab *
'  /yid .OOwr ftapbmlbOy-MettBi

cuetoni^t) ' Pe^iof2 Deto.
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;

(nformatjon of a partlelpaht b not reqvtrod Iq exceed tMi wtilch to normalV pbaaeteed by a prudent .
pe/Mh in the ordln^'eourse of bueln^ deblings.

10. Accept for tronftadldn^ aidhoHzM under paragmph 6 of these Ih^truetioi^, If a pirticipsnt In a
covert transiekdlbn.kw^ e'r^re Into a IpMr tier coydi^ titnsa^n Mth 6 pe^ri to
ausp^ed, dettarr^. Ineligtolei or yphmtaiily e>«ludedffiorn;partjdi;^n In ̂ to.triknttctioni In
'addition to other remedlM evisl.labia to the F^eml govemrhent DKHS may tiehnthate ihto trene^ctipn
for cause or d^ufi.

PRlMAfty CQ^RED tiWNSAGTiONS
■11'. Tftie pfds;^ly« prfa^'ry paftldpant'ceiliriesto the beel of Its k'howledQe and belief. 0^ it and Its

prtndpato':' ' '
11.1. bm nipt presehUy.debarred, aitoprndod; proposed for debarment. decla.red tnallglble. or

yoluntartly aXciudad fmrn-cPvered trafttacftlon's by any Fedafsl depvtmeni-or egency.
.  11.2. ha^r)dtwtththelh'r^yaarpen^pradbdir^thb.pfoposd.(co'ittr8cl)bieenconvteiedotorh6d

a ch^.judgmeht rphdarad against .them for cpmmtf^n of ^|.rd or o ciiminpl.pffonM' In
' oohnedibn'with cbtair^ing. ettem^g to obtain, or perfpnrh^ b pubDc (Federtb. State or Ibcaf)
Iranu^'n.pr'econbad ur>^a.pub[totnrts^^ vfptotib.n dF^enilor'Stota ajrUtiytl

Of commtoaton of ^bezitompnt, theft, forgery,- brfb;^. fq'blfication or destfuct^ of ;
'  record's,'m^Mgf8be;6ta!erhento;orrtoMi^atplenp'roperty-, ' <

11.3. dre'nbl prinenUy Indited for ottwrwIse.crirhfhelly'or'cMDy'chafg^ t>y a goyenynental entity
(Fadem), ^tiste or local) wllft co<mmto8lon.pf any of-tira'bfferiiet.'enumbrstpd i'n parDgmph-<0(b)
of ihto'cerUflcirtfeh: and

11.4. have not within e'thriaei'yeer penod pracading this opplicotiorypn^josal had .otm or 'more public
traru^actiont (Federal, State or locaO (erfnihbt^ for pause or'd^ull.

12. Where Ihe.prospective primary'participant to urvobla to 'Oarlify to any of (he statemtenta In th'is
certifcetlbh. auch prmpecttoe particljpant oh^D atfaKh' ^ explanstibn to (hit proposal (Street).

LPWER TIER.CiQVEREO TRANSACTIONS
13. By signlng'end.oubrnmJ.ng thb l6wer.tl8rproposar(co.ntract)'..tKe p'fospecUye lower tiar i^rilcipent. ins

dj^ned ln'4'S'CFR Pbirt 76. certifies (o the bert of Its k'nowtodga o'nd'beltof th'at It and lib prtn'cipeto!
13.1. are hot'pm^Uy debarri^. sut;Mnded. pro^'ad'fQr'deba'rment; dedared InaliglbSe, or

voiuhiarl.ly'exdudeid'frbm pa'rtictootion' Injhto'transaction' by bny fedpral department pr egprKy.
13.2. .wtwielheprmpec^.lo^rttorpertldp!mtto].uhabtot'ocert'ifytoahydftMebpye, such'

prospecti^ partlclj^t shall attach an erprlanaUoin' tp this proj^e) (contr^)'.
14. The prdbpectlw lo^r tier participartt further agrees by.b.u^Rtirig this proposal (cont^) that It wU)

-Ind'ude (Kb clause entitled *^i^ica'tior> R'egordirig bebpn^m,''Suspen8loh. (riel}g!bDi!y;.and
Vpfurrtary Elusion '• Lower Tier .CoWit^ Transectto''ns,'* vifthput m^rficatibri In eD toww tibr covered
(ransactibhs eh'd In all eblicltatibns for tower-tier'coyeM tre'iis^ons.

Vendor Nar™: (LOrO fO
ncamo, loc. ^

Nsfhe:

EeiW F - QenMciOon Rosirtlne Debermert, Scopenaion V«rieor tnAtob
Are .Other RsipiomWBy Msttm K

cucwonis?!} Pfl^2.ot2. Oete
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CgRnFICATIQN OF COMPUANCE WITH RgQUIREMg^^•S PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL WONDISCRIMIMATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH*BASED ORGANtZATIONS AND

■  ' WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS • .

The Vendor tdentffiad Hf Beetle^ 1.3 of the Ge'nerol Provtslphs by signature of (he Cohtrisctbr^e
representative'as idenlifted in Sections 1.11 Bnd-l.l2of the General Provisions! to execute.thefollpwtno
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require ony subgrantees or subcontroctors to comply. wHh eny opplicoble
fodorsi nondiscrimlnalion requlrefnonti. which msy include:

■ the Omnibus Crime Conlroi dnd Sefe Streets Act ot 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohiMs
recipients of federei funding under this statute from discriminating, either In empioymont practices or In
the delivery of services or bonerita. on the bos.is of race, color, religion, national origin.'and sex, the Act
requires certain .recipients to produce en EqueLEmployment Opportunrty Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Preventioh Act of 2002 (42 U.^.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the crvil rights obligations of the Sefe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discrimtnaling. either In employmeni practices or In the delivery of eervices or
benefits; on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act includes Equal
EmplqynienI Opportunity Plan requrrements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1664 (42 U.S:C. Section 200bd. which prohiblis rMipiente Of federal fihancial
esslstan^ from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program' or actrv'ity):

• the RehabilHaiion Ad of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sectiori 794). which prohibits reeipienis of Pederal flnancldl
asaisiance from discriminating on the basis of d'isebility. in regard to emptoymonl and the delivery of
servicescrbenefrts. in ony program or aclMty; ' '

• the Americans with Oisabilities Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sedions 12131-34). which prohibKs
discrimlnoiion end ensures equal opportunity for'persons with disabilities in employment. Slate end local
government services, public eccommodalions. commercial facilllies. and trensportalion;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sedions 1681.1683.1685-88), which prohibits
discrimination on (he basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; .

- the Age Oiscriminat'cn Ad of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). whi^ prohibits dbcrimmation or^ the
basis ̂  .age m progroms or adrvitles receiving Federal financial assistanca. It does nol include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatior>s > OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondischmindion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (oquel protection d the laws for foUh-based and community
organizations): ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamen^l principles and policy-making
crHeha for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pl. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Tre.otment for Ferth-Based
Organizations); end Whisilobtowar proiedions 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. 1. 112-239. enaded Jarurary 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contrad Employee Whistleblower Protedions. which proteds employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing adivilles in eonnedion with federal grants and controds.

The {Cenifcste set out below is a material representation of fad-upqn which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiftcetion or violation of the cenrftcalion shell be grounds for
suspension of payments, ouspension or termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or
debarmenl!

EjoitbOG

Venoa^inUab
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In (he oyont a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State odmintstrstive egency mdkes e funding of
didcriminetton efter a due prxeee hoaring on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
egelnst a recipienl of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding (o the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Hurhan Services, and
to the Department of HeoHh end Human Services Office of the Ombudsmen.

The VerKfor Identified In ̂ Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provtsloris agrees by signature of the pdntractor'e
rcpresentalive'as idonl'rfied In Sections 1.11 er^ 1.12 of the GenemI Prbviaions. to execute the foUc^ng
certification;

I. By signing end submitting this proposal fconUect) the Vendor agrees to comj^ with (lie provisions
indicated above.

Dit?

V.n<ter Name: ft, VCrbend COmPOWn/iU
^.rvtai Hca ith; ino.

<11.1 o

EjrtWlG
vcineorrnnua

CT>i.i)i.niiCni|iWit i*niilrirr—i'fn<f»)Or finiVrmtim-riinm f r>g*ifr-rT rr *irri ftnirTfrnrfWn
•TA V«Hi*C»Mr prM0er«
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubOc Law 103i>227, part C - Envlrmmehtal TbbDCM SrrMe. also khoivA u the Pro^hbd'rw Act of 16A4
(Ad). requMthst smoking np) be per^^ {n>ny pottlbn of any Indoor fdcEDty owr^ or.letued or
oor(tr^od by ah entfty ̂  used mutihely, or reguleily for the pro^lbn of h^Bh, day cs'ro. oduosUon.
or library aenhcias to'^Ctfren dri'der the a^ of 1B. If the servl^ funded by. Federal prbg^d eUhdr'
directly or'throi^S Stale or local govemm'efnta. by Federal grant, contmei, loan, or iqa'n g'uamhtee. the
hriy ddu-n^ o'ppty.to chOdren'a aerytcos provided in prtveto residences. focOfiiM furled aoiety.'tV
Mt^ica^ or Modlcald fu'ndo. and pcrtimi of fpdCtiea used for ir^'jant dn^ or alcoM traatnWnt: .Failure
tooom^.ydth (he 'provtalo'nb of the law may muB In thd Imposition of a cM menotdiry ̂ naUy of up 'to '
S100Q per day ohcVor the Imp'^lUdn of an edrhlnlstmtlye compi^uice order on the responsible e^ndty.

the Vendor IdentffM In Section 1.3 of .the General Proyblona eoreea,.by eignoture of the Controciof'a
lapresentatlve-es IdenlifK^ jn 'Spaion i .11 and 1.12 of the Gtohe.rdrPmylsiorn, to execute Ihe fbnowthg
eertlficallon:

1r ;6y signing end. Bubmltting this cx^ntrM, the Vendor i^rees to mpka remhable afforta to cb^ty wdth
eA appDcable provisions'of Pul^ic Lew t0^227. Part C. known as the Pi^hOdmh Ad of 19M.

V

Var

1Date

f{,^thOfnd Communiiu
^ fyKnftu huai'th, i nc.

Aame: Jc,

.Etft!bfiH~Ce>tSc<t^Po9ara^ vendor trttsh
Envkonmonm Tobecce .Smoto '

cuooenicoii ' Pe^lol'1 Dtta
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HEALTH tNSURArjCE PORTABILITY
ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

Tho vendor l.dentmod In ̂ rtton 1.3 of ̂  General Provtsldna of the Agreemen! egrees.tp
cpnip|y wfth the Hiee|ih Irteurahce Portabllity and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 end
^ the Stendarda.for prtyacy ar^ Secu.rfty of IndMdually" Identifabie Hdawi Informatloh. 45
CFR parts 160..and 164.app.lIcablo to btrtlnessoaao As defin^ herein^ 'eusirTeis
AmocI^o' shell mean this Vendor and subcontriactorB and eoents of the V^dbr that rewNe,
uM or have, access to protected health Information under this Agr^mehi and 'Covered Entrt/
ahall n^an the State of New Hantpshlre. ̂paftrrrtini of Health end Hurnan Servl^!

(1 • Peyinltlof^a.
a. 'Breach' shall have same meaning es the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45.

Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business As&odate' has the meaning given such term In-section 160.103 of Tllle 45.. Code
of Federal Regulations'. .

c. ZfifiXfiOtifOtibf! has the rna.anhggNen such term in section 160.10.3 of Thle 45.
Code of Federal R^ulations.

'Desloneted Record Set' ̂hail have the some meaning es the term 'designated recdrtl set*
In 45.CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AqoreQetion' shall have the same meaning as the t4rm 'data eggregation' In 45 CFR
Section ̂ 164.501.

"Health care Qpefatlons' shall haye the seme rneariing as the 'term 'health core operations'
In 45 GFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Acf means the Health, Information Teclinoto^ for Econorhic and Clihicel Health
Act, TitfeXIII. Subtitle D. Pert 1 & 2 of the Airhertcah Recovery end Relnvestmarrt Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPjAA' means the Health Ifisurande pbrtablllty arfd Accoyntablj/ty Act of 1996. Public Lew
104-191 e.nd the SUhderds (or Prtvacy pnd SbM.dty of Indlyldualiy Idenlifleble Heafih
Ihformatior), 4$ CF^R Parts 160.162 end 164 and ameridments thereio.

j. 'Indivlduar shalj have the same meaning os ihe.tenn •indlviduar In 45 CFR Section 160.103.
and shall Irfdude a ̂ rsori wtio qualifies bs e i^rsb'nal.represientative In accordance with 45
Q^R Section 164.501(g). , ' '

j. 'Privacy Rule' aha!) rnea.n the Standards.for Prtvacy of IndivMually. idphtifiablo Hcalih
Info'rmatlon.ai 4§ CFR Parts 160 and 1j^. promulgated under HIPAA by. the United-Stales
De^rtrtSent of Hej&.lth and Human Services.

K. 'Protect^ Health fnfohnBtlon' ahall have the same fnOorilng as the terrh 'protected health
Informati.oh' In 45 .CFR Section 160.10.3, .limited to the Information created or redeived by
Buslriess Asedciate frofn or bn behalf of Gbyie'red Entity. ' - P

S/W* ExTftfll Vender hSMi
He^ tnunjvie.Portit0ty Act
CUaiheu AiioidxtD Aqreenwn

PqjB 1 o> 6 - Detfi
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I. 'Required bv Let^ ehall heve the.eame meaning eji the term 'required by taw*- In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. TSecretenr' ehall ntean the Sectary of the Pepar^nt of Health end Human SeM^ br
hia/her deslgnM.

*1. -g^Ufity Rtilg' ehell moan the ̂ curfty Standards for the Prttfectfbn of.Electronic Protected
•Health i^rrruatfori jat 45 QFR Part 164. Subpart C, end ennendmenla ti^reto.

0- 'Unsecured.^rolerted.Heatth Information: means protected health information tha| Is not
aecunad by a .technblbjni fetandafo that fehdera protected health Infbrrhation unuaablb,
unreadable. Of (ndeclplrerable to uneulhortted individuals end Is develops oren'doreed by
^ ̂hdar'ds developing brigahtzatJon that Is 'eccredited by the AmeHuii National Standards
Instltyfo. ■ .

p. Other Deilnltiona. All terms not ptheniiHse define^ herein shaQ have the rrieanlhg
estat)li5h^ 'urjder 45 .C;F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164.- ea amended from time to time ar>d the
HrTECH ' :
Act-." ■ . "

(2) Buaineaa Asaoclate Use' and Placloaure of P^tected HeatthlrTformatfon.

a. ^sinesa Associate, ahal) not use. dis.dose. maintain or transmit Protected Health
fotorrnabor) (PHI) excppt ea fepsoftably nocbssary" to provide the se.rvlcea outlln"^ under
b^lbH A of the Agrwment. Further, Buslnew Associate'. Ihdudbi'g bui not lirrilt^ lb ell
# dlrpctore.. oflic8fB. employees and agents; ihall.not use, d.lsclp^. malrtte'ln or'trensmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a vliplation of fte Privacy and ̂ curfty Rule.-

b. Business Assqdate may UMprdisdose PHI:
I- For the pro^r managerhent erid.admlnLstratipn of the Business Associate;
II. ^ required by jaw, pursubni tp the terrns set forth In paVagraph d. below; o»
III. F.or data aggregation purposes for ttie heelth care operotions of Covert

Entity.

c. To the extent Busfopss ASsoclato Is permitted urider the Agreement to disclose PHI tp a
third party. Business AMOda.te rnusl obtain, prior to maWng any such disdosure. (I)
re'a'sonable.assurances from th'e third party mat such PHl wlil beheld cbnfldentiaDy and
.used of further dlsdosqd only as required by |pw or for the purpo.sb for which tt wPs
dtedosed to the third pa^; arid (ii) en agreemcrit from auch third party to hoilfy Buslrfess
Aiwpdpi.e. In ecco.rdarice with the .HIPM Privacy. Security', end Breach NoilflcbCcn
Rules of any breaches of the coriiWantJalrty of tho PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such bread).

d. The Busiriess ̂ soctate shall not, unless such dl^osure Is reasonably necessary to
proVidb aervlces. under Exhibit A of the Agreement disclose any PHI In fesporiad to a

•  request for disclosure on the basis th'al It Is requlred'by law. ̂ put hret riotifyirig
Covert Ehbty so thai Covered Entity l^s en opportunity (p object to the' disdosure and
to seek epprbpriata relief. If Covered Entity objects to such discipsure. the Business

yn\4 EeWI VerxtoWaah/ £
tnunws PtilslOy.AciBuiiiieu Axiodro<Xewnert -j |
Ps9(i2ore 6«to
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Asaoclate phall refrain from disdo'slrig PHI until Covered Er\tity has exhau^^ all
•  females.

e]. If tfie Covered Entity notifies the Bus^m Aasocl.ate that Gover^ Er^tliy has egre^.to
be bound by addltiohai restrictions over, and above those us^ or disclosures or security
Mfeguairds of PHI p'ui^ant to the PiWacy and Security Rule, (he Business Associate
shall be boirnd by auch edditlor^l restrtetjons end shell not disdbse PHI in vtdation of
such edditldna] restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) OttliaMloria end ActhrltlOT of Buolrjesn Aendciatd. r

a. The Business ̂ soclate. shall no% the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer irr^mediateiy
.after the Business Associate becprhes aware of eriy use or disdbsure of protected
heotth iriformati'on not provided for by the Aigreernent lr>cludlng b'roachprs of unsecured
prbtdcted health Infonrhatibn an^o'rany Mcurity Ihddent that may have an Irripact on the'
■prot^ed health infonnation of the Covered Entity.

b.. ' The Busliiess Associate shaiUrnr^'diatefy perform a rlsk.e^sesprhenl when It becornes
aware of any of the Bt>ov.e si^atloris. fhe risk assessment'shell Ihdude. but hot be
(Imltedtp:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Ir^rmation Involved, including the
types of Iden^eris ahd Che likeliho.od of i^dentiflcatlpn:

0 The uneirthorfeed ^rsori used the protected health infcrrn.atibh or to whom the
dlsdos'ure.v^s made;

0 V^ether the protected health Infonnetlon was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to Wtilch the risk to the protected healttS jriforrhaUbn has been

rhttigatod.

The Buslnesa Asepciafe shall cpmplefe die ri sk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach arid Imnnedlately report (he landings of the ri sk assessment in to the

.  Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate a.hall comply with elj spcdons pf the. Privacy. Security, end
•  Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available ali .of Its .Internal polldes and procedures-, books
end records relating to the lise arid disclosure pf PHI received frPm. Pr-craatpd or
received by the Busings Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to dte S^etary for
purpPses of determining Covered Entlt/e cpmpljehce with HIPAA and the Privacy end
Security Rule.

e. -Business Associate shall r^ulfe all of tts.busi.hesa asspcieters that receive, .use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrjctidns ehd cbri.dftldnS on thd use arid dlsdospre pf PHI contained herein, l.rtdudlng
the duty to return or destroy the PHI es prbvlcfed under Section 3 (I). The .Covered .Entity
shall be considered a direct third .party twrieftcla ry of die Contractor's business associate
agrMrrfenta wtth Contractor's Intended business associates, who wll]'t>e repeivlno PHI

JO014 Vwvtotnfllkh ■ I X
inunnes.PartabDty Act

Builneu AuodJtD Aonement .
PA^S.ofS Palft I
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pursuit to this Agreement. W(^ rights of enforcement end Indemntficetlon from e'uch
■business essoc^tes iivho.sheli.be gbvemed by s'tshdard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract'pr6vlsldns (P-37) Of this AgrM.meht for the pur^se of use and disclosure of
protect^ twio|th informatlbn.

f. Within five <S) business days of receipt of a wrlt^ request from Qoyerrt Entity, .
Buslheia Auocl^e ^ell make available during riormat busi'hmS hours ^ Its pfR.oes ail
■records, books. e'gnMmentp, policies artd procedu.refs' relating to tl^ use .end disclosure
pf Phil to the Covered Entity, for purposes of ehSbllrig 'Covered Entity to determine
Business Ass'bdate'a cornpliance the terms of the Ad.reemont.

g. Whhln ten (10) business days of rpcetv^ 0 written request from COyered Eritity,
Business Associate shall jpfoylde access to PHI in a pieslgneted Re^rd $et to the
Cpv.eled Entity, or as direct^ ^ Covered Entity, to en indiyldual In cider to me^ the
requlrernents under diS CFR Se^h 164.524.

h. Within .ten (10) business days of receMng a writteh request frorh (^vered Entity for en .
erheridment of ̂ Hl or a r^rd et)but ah Individual contained in a Designated .Record

. Siet, tf^e.Eiuslnesa Assbci.ate 'shell make such PHI .ayalle.ble to C9vered..Ehttty'fbr.
erhendrnent'end incorpor^e any such amendnieht to eriat}ie Covered Entity to fulfil) its
obligations under 45 CFR Siactibh 164.526.

I. Busine^ Associate Shall dpcurr^ni quch disclosures of PHI.and Information retatpd to
fiu^ disclosures .as would be fiequired for Covered Entity to fesporid to a request by en
individual for eh accouhting of disclosures of PHI In accordance Vvtth 45 CFR Section
164.520.

). Withl'ii.ten (10) business dqys of reiving; a written 'request frorri Covered Enti^ for a
.  request for en accounting of disclosures of PHI. business Assodate shall make available

■ to Covert Entity such Infomiatibn as povenad Entity .friay require to ifCilfill Its bbHontibns
to provide an acOourrtlng of dii^osures with respebl to PHI In accoi^ance with 45 CFR
Section 164,520.

k. In the event any ind'iv|dual requests access to. arhendment of. or accbuntirlg of pHl
directly Wm the.Buslnes^ Asspdata, the Business Associate ahall v^ln (2)
busiriess days forward s'uch request to '^vered Entity. Covered Entl^.shali have the

'  redpqnslbiilty of responding to forwarded requests. Hovyever, If fprw'arding the
IndMdual'a r^uest to Co.vered Eiitlfy' wbuld cause Coy.ered Entity or tl^ Business
Assodate 16 vblate MIPAA and ^p Prtyacy pnd Security Ru.le, the Business Assodate
shell instead respond to the Indlvlduare request as required by such taw end notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon ias practicable.

I. within ten (10) business days of termination of tile Agreement, for any reason, the
Buslhpss Associate shall return or destroy, as spMlfied by Coye'red Enttty.'ajl PHI
received from, or created or. received by the Business Associate In cbhnaction with the
Agreement, and shal) not retal.n any copies or bSck-up"tapes of suqh PHI. If re^rn or
destruction is not.fea8ible.. .br ^e dlsposltJorS of the PHI has treen ctherwtsa agreed to in
the Agreemo'nt Buslhess As^date shell continue to qxtond the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI dnd limh ^rther uses and disdosures of such PHl to those
purposes that rhake.the returri or dastiuction Ihfepslble, for Sb long as BuslriessI /

"l V2014 EiNW I Vendor MtM • | ^
^eBh tnuovwe Pphe&Oty Ad ' '
Builiwi AModxte ^qwiemenl • .~7f"iA(iC
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y^ocidte malht^n'seuch PMI; ff Cpver^ En^, in Its sole discrotloh, requjredtfiet^
BusinieM Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Buaihesa A^ociato aha.n certify to
Covered Entity ̂ at dve PHI has bMn'destroyed.

(4) OMIaations of Covered Entttv

e. Qoyereil Entity shall notify Busl.nesa AfiSOcJatO of any charges or limltatlon(s) in its
NdttOe of Prtvacy Practices provided to. IridMduals In accordertoe wtth 45 CFR Section .
164.520. to the ei^nt .that sui^. charts or limitation may af^ Business Associate's
use or disdosure of PHI.'

b. Covert En^ ahaij promptiy notify Business Assodato of any Ranges Iri, or revocation
of permissioh prOyiM to'Coyeted Ent^ Oy Individuals whose PHt miSy. be us^ or ̂ ■
disdbsed by Business Asso'date under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR S^on
164.506 or 45 CFR S^or) l'64.M8.

c. Covered entity shall prorh^ riotify Buslheu AssocljErte of any redrictions on the use or
d^osure of PHI that Covered Entity has agr^ to iri accordance 45 QFR 1^.522,
to extent that such restnction rh'ay-affect ̂ usln^s Associate's use or disclosure of ■
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause '

In addition to Paragraph 10 oil the standard terms and conditions (P>37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity r^y Immediately terminate the Agreerne.nt upon Covered.
Entity's knowledga of a breach by Business Assodate of the Business Associate
Agrearhertt sat forth harelip eS ̂hiblt I. *010 Covered Entity may etthar Imm^lately
terminate the Agreement or provide an oppo'rtuhity for Business >^sddate to.cuiB the
alleged, breach wflHln e timeffarhe specified by Covered EritJty. If Q.O'^ied Entity
deteimines that neither termlhatior) nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shpll re^rt the
vlotation to theSecretary:

(6) MIscenaneeus ■

a. Definitions and ReQulfltortf References. M\ terms iis^. but not otherMse. defined heroin,
.shall Have the same me&hirig as tiipse terms In Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from ̂ e to tirhp. A reference In the A^r^rnent, as amend^ to Include.thls Ei^lblt I. to
a Sedion In the Priva'cy iand SecuHty'Ruie means the Section as In effect or es
emervfad.

b. Amendtherit: Covered Eri^ arid Business A^oclata agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to tirne as Is necessary fpr Covered
Errti^.to coniply wfih^e changes In ̂  requlrernehts Of HIPAA, Priyacy and
S^urfty Rule, end epplicibla f^eral end state law.

c. pata bwnershlD. The Business Associate ac^n.owMges that h has rio crwnershlp rights
wtth fesp^ to the PH) prp.vlded by or creat^ on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Intenprfltation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the.Agreemen) sliaD be ̂'solved
to ̂ rmtt Covered Entity to comply wtth HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.y

3/2014 EfNWl I VenOor HUtii
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ie. Sitfqrwatton. If any tehri or doriditipn of mis Exhibli I or the appUcatibri tho'dbf to any
^r8on(8) or drcumSstanc©. Is held Invalid, such inva.tldi^ bhad hot affect other terms or
condrtloha which i^n .given effect'v^out the" l.riyalld tarm or cphdWbn; iothls. end 'tf»e
terms arid'Mhd.ltibr>8 of this Exhibit I are dai^red eeverabie. -

PtifYtVPl- PrpYlsfona In thla^lbli I ri^ar^ome ySo anddl^oByre of PHI., return or
rtestructloh of PHI. extensions of the prbtertons of the Agreement In eectJon (3) 1, the
defense end Indomnlificetl.oh proylalbr^o of ̂ rtpri (3) e and Porngrsiph 13 of the
standard temtt end cbndWons (P-37).eheireurvive the termlnalibn.of the Aofeemwt

IN WITNESS Hereof, ihe parties herato have duty ex^uted this Exhibit I.

fi/V/rlQt°n^ rnnnmDn/'ny rVienfe.) t-EaifUqiot
• tya^^. the Vendor . J

Depa/tment of HeaHh and Human S.ervlcj9s
The State ^ ^ ^ •

Signature of Auftbrtied RepresehiaUVia" S^haturia of A^orlzed ReprosehtattVe

S  ?eVg.w^ S
Nerrie'bf A.atbbrU'ed RepreMntbtiye"'

■  . • ■ ..

Ndrrie of Authortz'ed Repre'sehtatlve

Tltte of Authorized Representative

Ofa ^1^3 :Date . ' •

Tide of Ai^orlzed Reprcrsentative

.  . -

Data
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THfe PEOERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTV AND TRANSPARgMCV
^  ̂ ACT IFFATAt COMPLIANCE

tho.Fode/^ Fvndlnfl AfeounlabUfty end tranapamncy Act (FFATA). raqylrin prim® owardaes of IndMdual
Fad«r8l.0ia'nt»ofluiaiodr'0nMteflh;anS25.CW"w|daw8ntfedpnpfdftorOdobDr1."2'oiO.l6ropdrtofi

related to' executhm. cornpienatfJoh and easodsted flret^ier lubr^'rants of i25,000 or more. Ff the
initial eiMrd to bekw $25,000 bill oabte<Quent grant cnodiflcatiQr^ resoR to o to^'oi^ OQual tp or over ■
$25,000, the ew^ to eubjeci to (he FFATA reporting r^ubeimenta. as of the date of the pwiud.
In occofdana wtth 2 CFR Part 170 (Repdrttog Subawerd end Executive Com^nsatton Intormotten) the
pepartmertt of McoHh end Human gervlciu (OHMS) muat" r^rt the'foQowfr^g Informotion for ony
Dufooward qr contrdcl'ewerd Mb)ed to (he FFATA reporting requlmrTtema:'
1: Name of'entity . "
2. Amounrofewnrd

3: Fundfr^ dgeirKy
4: NMCS code for corrtreets / CFOA program rtumber for grarrts'
5. Pi^m Murce
6.. Award tfttadesertptive of the purpose of the funding edioh
7. Loc^tiw of the entity
6. ^rtodpto place ̂ p«^orrnonce;.
9. UntquelhtontiTierol-theentityCpUNSP)
10. Total OTnipen^ion end names/of ttw top Trve exeduti^s If:

10. i. More of annual groea revenues qre the Federal government, 'and thoi^
reveh'uM. ore greater than $26M ennuaOy and-.

10.2. Compenaation toformation to not'ei^yeyallBbia through reporting to the SEC.

Prtrine grent reciptonia must submit FFATA required data by lha and of tha month, ptus 30 days to wWch
tha award Of award emendnrtant to rnoda.
The Vendor Wbnllfied to Section i:3 of the Qanarol Pfbvtolbns agreae to comply with the prbvtstone of
The Federal Funding AccbunlAbDity and Transparent,Act Public Law 10^-282 and Public'Law 110.252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Repdrttog' Syb'awa/d iand Ex^irtiva. Compensation Infohaatloh), and further eg^'
to have the Contraftor^a fepriaa'antaWe^ as Wariilflcd to Soctiona.t.'ll ̂  1.12df tha'Ganaral'RrbvIelorts
dxecute tha foIloMng Cprtiflcatldri:
The below.naimad Vendor agrw to provide needed toformation as outlined above to the NH Department
of HeaSh end Human .Sarvtcas arid to 'comply wtth ea ap^icab'la p^siora of the Federal Ftoartial
AccountabDity and Transparency Ad.

VendotNarne: P)iv^rJoei^. (10mmur\ilLi
I menrcti Hcam,inc. '

&MM J - CerVflciOpn Rcgtrfiie the FeOertf FiMlna Vendor (rAsti
Aaart^6«SyA/id1rtrttpo«nivAa'(FFATA)Cofnptott ^v7Z~«i./*OUO«V1IOT1> Pops 1 0(2 tima //^^\\^
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Aatho Vendor Identic In jSiDdbn 1.3 of (he GbnerBl Provtolena; f certl^'lhal (he responaee to'the
be^ (isted Questiphe pre tnie ̂  eccyrdte.

I. ■ The DUNS number'fof your entHy b:

2. In ypur-byolntoo or orpsntzatlbn'o preciBdInp co^pietod.fbcal ̂ r, did your busiheto of organlzatiofi
rebelve (1) 60 perceM or.fnore of your ohnua) grbae revenue in U.S. federal contrects; subcontrKta,
(oah'a, gienta, euh-gmnta. er^or coopensilve egieernenla; end (2) $25,000,000 hr tri ennud
groaa revenueti from U.S. fedef^.cdntrocta. aubcontiecb. bana. gmnta. eubgnintp, .eni^or
eoo^rsU^ a'greemento?

NO •YES

If (he enp^r to 02 eboye b NO, atop here

Ifthefinseerto02eboveb YES.'ptoeseonaworthefDQbwfhg; .

' 3. .Dbeo the-putHb.heve bcceaa (p irrformMlw ebout (he compenaetior of the executm.in your
buatrvaaa or or^rtizellbn through,perbd'c filed .under dedton 13<'B)oir lS(d)of;d>e SeCurtilee
Exchange Ad of 1034 (15 V S.C.76m(d]. T^dj) or cectkm 6104 of the (ntemol Revenue Code of
.'1988?

. NO YES

If ̂  Qiiswer to 03 ebove is YES, dop here

If the' ent.'^r (o 03 obove b NO. pleese ehtwar (he following;

The names enp cdmpeneaUoh of the five .most highly compensated ofnceie'ln ypur.buelnesa or
orgehtzfitbh ereas/dllbws:

Name;

Name:

Name;

Nanrte;

Name:

Amount:

Amount: ̂

Amount:

Amount:

Amount; .

OUQWVtlOTO

. EjMM J-CerSaceUon RagvSlna the Fodefi) Finding
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A.. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described moantng ir> this documenl:

1. 'Breach* meeris the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized e^utsltion, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for en other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to peisonally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard' to Protected Health
information.' Breach* shall have (he same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
1^.402 of TItte 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same, meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in sedion two (2) ot NISI Publication 800^1, Computor.Securtiy Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards end Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

■3. 'Confidential Informaiion' or 'Confidential Data* means all confidential Information
disclosed- by one parly to the other such as ell medical, health, finencial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitalion, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

. Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by'
the Slate of NH - Qreatod, received from or on behalf of the Department ot Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of perfomiing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation.-This information Includes, but Is not limited to

• Protected Health Informatiori (PHI). Personal Informaiion (PI). Personal Financial
information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User* means any person or entity (e.g.. conlraclor.''contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident* means en act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either felled or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Ha data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage, of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplaoemeni, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouting of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modiftcalion or destruction.

■  7. 'Open Wlrelees Network* rrwans any ̂ tWdrk qr eog'ment of a network' that Is
r30t designated by the $tate of New Hampshlre'e Department of Ir^forThatlon
Techriology' or delegate as o protected ndtwbrk (deslghed, tested, and
approved; by .oceans of me State, to trai^miit) wilt be consider eh open
network erid not edebuateily secure' (or .tfSe'trahsmlsslon of unehcrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or cohfldentlal DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information* (or "PC) means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. blometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined wllh other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linKable to a-specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United

.  States Oepadment of Health end Humari Services.

10. 'Protected Health information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F R §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule', shall mean Ihe Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
■ Pmtected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl C, end arnendmenls
Iherelb.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable,, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals end Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the. American Nationa.l Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITieS OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

t

A. B.usiness Use end Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
elxcept as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited Ip ell Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor rhust not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. lut vpdole lOOtfiB EtfiWiK . Contractor inaisii,
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request (or. disclosure on the t>a$is that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifyinig DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS nolifles the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over end ebove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy end Security Rule, the ConlractoV, must be baur>d by such
addltiortal restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such eddillonal
restrictions end must abide by any eciditional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there frorri disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHMS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract..

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of OHHS for the purpose of insp^ing to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

11. METHODS OF SECURE TKANSfMISSION OF DATA

1. Applipatlbn Encryptjoh. If End User is ^nsmlttlng OHHS data containing
Cohfidentiai Data betv^ri appiicqtlor^s. the Contractor atteste the apbllcabons have
beeri eyaluaied by an expert knowledgeable in c^r security and that said
^ppiicatiqn'e encryption capabilities er»ure se.cure transmission the Interhdt

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage devices. End User may not use computer disks,
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Entryptiad Email. End U^'r rnay prily employ email to trarii^rnit Qpriftdentjal Data if
email Is encrvoted and being sent to arvj being received by email addresses, of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web SItt. If End User Is employing the Web to trahismit Cbnfldentlel
Data., the secure socket layers <SSli) rhust t^ used end the sUd rhust be
secure. SSI encrypts data transmitted yia a Wdb site.

5. File Hosting Services, elsb knowri as fite Shanng Sites. End User rt^y .not use file
hosting services, such as Dropt^x or Google Cfoud Storage, to transmit
CordidentiBi Data.

6^ Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
nriail within the cphtlnehtai U.S. and wtien 6er>t to a named Iridiyidual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User Is employing portoble devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must bio ehcryplerd and password-protected.

8. Open Wifeless Networks, ̂ nd User rnay not transmit Confidential Data vi.e eh p^n
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wirtleaa networtt. Erid yser must employ a virtual private rwtwortt jVPN) wt^
rerhotety tra^mittlng via eh open wirbtess heWorli.

0. • Remote Ueer Communication. If End User la employing remote commimlcatloh to
ad^s (or ^rvmlt Corifidentlai Data, a virtual prfvate network (VPN) miist. bp
Iriatalied on the Ertd User's mobile deviMfa) or laptop from.whl^ Informatloh will be
trianamltted or ecpeaaed.

10: SSH nie Trana.fer Protocol (SFTP). also knov^ a'a Secure File Tranater Prptdcdl. If
^nd U^r Is erhploying an S'fTP- to transmit Confldentlal Opta. End' User wl)
stmctufo the Folder ehd aodeto prtvil^M to prevent Inappro^te disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-foWera used for transmitting Confidenlial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data vnll be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Conndenlial Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Ineppropriale disclosure of information.

MI. RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF (DENTIFIABt^ RECORDS

The ContfBctbr will only retain the data and any denvative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permlttod
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shad also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storege capabilities, and includes backup
data end Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities-ere In
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
end/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The ContrBCtor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Departmerit confldenliai infonnation.

4. The Contmctor agrees to retain ail electronic end hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and Identrfied In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Conftdential beta stored in a Cloud must be (n a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant soiutioh and comply with .all applicable etalules end
regulations regarding the privacy and security. AD servers and devices must have
currently-supported end hardened operating systems, the latest antl-vlral. anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anil-spyware. and enti-malware utltitias. The environment, as a

/  ■
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wtiole. must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Conimctor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation vnth the SWe's
Chief Infonriation Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of (he hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contrector will maintain any Confidential inrormalion on its systems (or its
sulxontrector systems), the Contractor will maintain e documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certificetion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by (he
Contractor or eny sut>contractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, end or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverebte vie a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-eccepted standards for secure deletion end media
sanitlzation. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Specie! Publication 600-68. Rev 1; Guidelines
for Media SanHlzation. Natlonel institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, erxl will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certtfic8tloi> will Include ail details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where appllceble.
regulatory end professional standards for retention requirements' will, be Jointly
evaluated by the Sttfe and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Untess otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contrector agrees to destroy ell hard copies of Conridentlal Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this'
Contract, Ck>ntr8Ctor agrees to completety destroy all electronic Confidentiat Data
by means of data erasure, also Known as secure date wiping.

ry. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor egrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contrect, and eny
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protdct Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain, policies arid procedures to protect Department
'  confidential Information throughout the Information lifecyde. where appDcebie, (from

creation, trensformatlon, use. storage end secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the date (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

-vs. Uslupdolo toiovis EiNUtK Ccntreetor lAUtb
OHHS Infenwotton

$«curtry ftaquiiwnems
RflpeSotO Celt

It



OocuSign Envelope ID: 2DAOA1F1-3D46-4A33-82F1-A4438B070FE7

OocuSlgn Envelope 10: C4Ci933F-7ie(M7Sd-AP4A-C0090F2080eA

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibil K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will mslntsin appropriate authentication end access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
v^ere applicable. ^

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monlloiinp capobllities ere In place to
. detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH eystoms artd/or
Department coiSndeniiei information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its £nd
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an iniama! process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, end monitoring compliance to security requirements that at e minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements'.

7. The Conlraclor will wor1( with the Department to sign arid comply with ell applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system eccess and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, end computer use agreements es part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will t)e
complated and signed by the Contractor and -ariy applicable subcontractors prior to
system aocess being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor wID execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to corhplete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, end vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or en alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contmctor, or the Department may request the survey t>e completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, eny State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent b obtained frdrn the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Date Security Breach Liability. In the event of eny security breech Contractor shall
nnake efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breech end minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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.the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitortng services, mailing costs end
costs essociated with website end telephone call center services necessary due to
the breech.

12. Contrector must, cornply 'wlth ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
phvacy and security of Confidentldl lnformatior>. end must in all other respects
maintain (he privacy and sacuriry of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than .the level end scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, tnctudlng.
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5528). OHHS
Phvecy Ad Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rutas (45
C.P.R. Parts 160 ar^d 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
information end as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate edministretlve. technical, and
physical safeguards to proted the confidanUality of (he Confidentiaj Data and to
prevent uneuthoriied use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level end scope of security requirements
established by the State of f^ew Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doltA»endor/indox.hlm
tor the Oepartmeni of Information Technology policies, guidelines, stendards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contrador agrees to rhalntain a documented breach notificalion and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Priva^ Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses

- provided in Sedion VI. This Includes e confidential Information braach, computer
security incideni. or suspected breach which affeds or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire nelworl^.

15. Contrador must rest/Id access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
periorm their official duties in conhedion with purposes Identified in this Centred.

16. The Contrador must ensure that ell End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards es referenced in Sedion IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information (hat is furnished by DHHS

- under this Contmct from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this (nfo/mation at el) times.

c. ensure (hat laptops end other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential information only If encrypted and being
.sent to and being received by email addresses of persons euthorized to
receive such Information.
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e. (emit disclosure of (he ConfidenUel Information to the extent permttted by (aw.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
.  Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically end technologically secure from access by ynauthortted persons
during duty hours as well as non^uty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometnc Identihers, etc.).

g. Only authorized End Users may transrhil the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally Kjentlfiebla Information, and In ell cases,
such data must t>e encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media es required in section IV above.

h. in atl other instances Conftdentiat Data must be maintained, used end
disposed using appropriate safCguerds, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user neme and password) must not be
shdred .with anyone. End Users will keep their credential informatibri secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Infdirectly through
e third party applicatipn.

Contractor is responsible for. oversight end compDence of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to rnonitor compliance with this
Contract. Including the privacy end security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
end other eppllcebie laws and Federal regulations until^.such time the-Confidential Date
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer.end Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Sectlon.Vl.

The Contractor must further handle end report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notiftcdtion
procedures and Iri accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 308. In addition to, end
notwiihstending. Contractor's comptiance wHh atl applicable obligations end procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable informafton Is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In (his Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identity end convene a cote response group, to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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S. Determine whether Breach noUfication is required, and, if so, identrfy appropdate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, end contents from among different
options, end bear costs associated wtth the Breach notice es well 68 any mitigation
measures.

Incidents end/or Breaches that .impllcata PI must t>e addressed end reported, as.
appltcabla, in accordance with NH RSA 359*C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

OHHSInform8tlonSecurilyOffice'@dhha.nh.gov
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